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CORPORATE PROFILE ARG

SHOUGANG FUSHAN RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED ENBELEREEERAA
is one of the most sizable integrated coking coal corporationsin s RIS EBRE SO ERME Y — o
CENTRAL-WESTERN CHINA.

Taking Shanxi Province as its major investment base, it PAILFEEEATBIREEM

is principally engaged in MINING OF COKING COAL, toxy=fHERE BREENEEEEELS
PRODUCTION AND SALES OF RAW AND CLEAN COKING %%7_]'% .

COAL.

The Group has three premium operating coking coal mines and 7N B IR = [ 7F 2 AOMB B AR 1 Ko — PR e B MR ©
three coal preparation plants.
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MAIN OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE

THE MAIN OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE OF
THE GROUP AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 IS AS

FOLLOWS:

(SEHK:639)

Annual Report 2021
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OFFSHORE
a5

Jade Green
Investments
Holding Ltd.

Thechoice
Finance Ltd.

Worldman
Industrial Ltd.

Gumpert
Industries Ltd.

Fushan Energy

Group Ltd.
BsRER
ARAF

Mount Gibson

Iron Ltd.
(ASX: MGX)

Benefit Rich Ltd.
#EARAR

J

Thechoice

HONG K‘g‘; Finance (HK) Ltd.
BE(FE)
AERAF

Worldman

Industrial (HK) Ltd.

SR (FE)
BRATF

Gumpert
Industries (HK) Ltd.
RER(E®)
BRATF

100%

Fushan
Resources

100%

Shougang
Resources
(Hong Kong)
Ltd.
HHER(EE)
BRATF

37.40%

1 6.52%

APAC
Resources Ltd.
TAERERAE
(SEHK:1104 )

PRC

(“Xingwu Coal Mine")
(Coking Coal Mine and
Coal Preparation Plant)

Shanxi Liulin
Jinjiazhuang Coal

(Coking Coal Mine and
Coal Preparation Plant)

([ SFFEHM] )
(RIS

0., 3
(“Jinjiazhuang Coal Mine”)

(“Zhaiyadi Coal Mine")
(Coking Coal Mine and
Coal Preparation Plant)
T
BERRDF
(TREREE])
(RIS

100%

Shanxi Fushan
Resources Group
Company Ltd.*
(Safety Production Management)
WAL ERE
ARAF
(RREEEE)

67.17%

Jinshan Energy
Group Ltd.
(Coal Preparation Plant
and Trading of Coal Products)

Liulin Luenshan

Coking Co., Ltd.*

ISR LR
AR
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*  The unofficial English translation is for identification purpose only.



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

“To-FFH ERMELAREEARAF 5

MBRE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLFE

Percentage

(HK$'000) 2019 2020 2021 change
(F7%7T) —h&E ZZT-TF ZB-—-F HIL#E{L
Revenue g 3,869,308 3,996,951 7,075,818 +77%
Gross profit EF 1,988,743 1,869,207 4,394,574 +135%
Gross profit margin EVES 51% 47% 62% +32%
Profit for the year FEH A 1,176,141 1,187,283 3,060,831 +158%
Profit attributable to owners of ArrEEANTHAEAD

the Company (“Owners") FEAE 5= 1,140,413 1,080,041 2,538,495 +135%
EBITDA! EBITDA! 2,088,250 2,178,672 4,735,627 +117%
Basic earnings per Share BRA ARG EREF

(HK cents) (AL 21.51 20.62 50.25 +144%
Dividend per Share (HK cents) TR A R IR AR 2 GBAL) 17.2 16.5 40.0 +142%

= Interim (HK cents) — R ER (L) 8.5 75 8.0

~ Final (Proposed) (HK cents) - REF () (BL) 8.7 9.0 32.0
The Group recorded historical high profit for the year ended 31 ZISEIESZ?: T —F+ZA=+—HIEFEH

December 2021.

BESLHFHNE -

As at 31 December

Rt+=A=+—H
Percentage
(HK$'000) 2019 2020 2021 change
(F#ET) —h&E ZZTTF ZEB--F HIL#E{L
Total assets BEME 21,472,710 21,433,646 24,779,977 +16%
of which: HEP
Cash and cash equivalents and RekBeFEMR
time deposits with original JRTF R EARE A
maturity over three months —@AZEMFHR 4,761,884 4,062,115 6,425,886 +58%
Unpledged bills receivables IR EINE R 950,696 1,048,729 1,983,738 +89%
Total liabilities BERE (4,426,398) (4,142,576) (5,631,759) +36%
of which: Hrh o
Total borrowings BE®E - - - -
Total equity EmaaE 17,046,312 17,291,070 19,148,218 +11%
of which: Hr
Equity attributable to Owners B AR ER 15,681,580 15,837,166 17,300,083 +9%
Equity per Share attributable to BB AGRARIRGEMN
Owners (HK$) #E= (BT 2.96 3.13 3.42 +9%
Current ratio (times)? MBI (f5)2 2.61 2.77 2.69 -3%
Gearing ratio? BEREEL R 3 - - -
Notes: Bt 5t
1. EBITDA is defined as profit before income tax plus finance costs, share 1. EBITDA.Z 7E 3% K& F

of (loss)/profit of an associate, depreciation and amortisation.

2. Current ratio is computed from total current assets divided by total 2.

current liabilities.

3. Gearing ratio is computed from total borrowings divided by total equity.

E—FBENT
TREN L LR

@EI
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (continued)

PROFIT & LOSS SUMMARY

MBEHEE@®

BERRE

Revenue Gross profit
0y &= E¥
177% $135%
HK$'000 HK$'000 4,394,574
000 [rarssn) 4000 [osas7g
8,000,000 ‘ 5,000,000 ‘*
6,000,000 |3,869,308 3,996,951 /000,000
3,000,000
4,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
0 0
2019 2020 2021 2019 2020 2021
Profit for the year Profit attributable to Owners
FERT WAAEERT
1158% 1135%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FR FER 95
3,500,000 3,000,000
2,500,000
2,500,000
2,000,000
[vesr)  [mmass)
1,500,000
1,500,000
1,000,000
500,000 500,000
0

2019

2020

2021

2019 2020 2021

HEALTHY FINANCIAL POSITION

BEM B R

Net assets Gearing ratio & current ratio
HERE BFARILFERRENLLE
1%

HK$'000 -19,148,218 %
TR Current ratio
20,000,000 30 ° FELL R 3

A °
25 L4 2.69
15,000,000 261 2.77
20 2
1,000,0000 15
1.0 1
5,000,000 Gearing ratio
0.5 BEXREMLE
0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0 0.0 o 0
2019 2020 2021 2019 2020 2021
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OPERATING MINES

XINGWU COAL MINE

e 6 km south of Liulin County and the mining right area extended
over 11.6 sg. km and spans 4.5 km east to west and 4.5 km
north to south

e Operation commenced in 1968

e Annual approved raw coking coal production capacity: 1.75
million tonnes

e  Operate a coal preparation plant with annual designed input
processing capacity of 1.2 million tonnes (put into operation in

October 2002)

e Mainly production of hard coking coal

EE IR

L4 S R

R HFEAEEN R - HBERR AL
MN6FHAE  RFEMAE4ASAE - BibiAE
4518

o R—ARNFRIHEE

o REFRERLERT 1758

. EE—EE AR BI208HEZHER(K S
T2+ ARE)

o IEAEWMEK
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OPERATING MINES (continued)

JINJIAZHUANG COAL MINE

e 14 km south of Liulin County and the mining right area
extended over 6.08 sq. km and spans 6.8 km east to west and
3.4 km north to south

e Operation commenced in 1996

e Annual approved raw coking coal production capacity: 1.75
million tonnes

e  Operate a coal preparation plant with annual designed input
processing capacity of 3.0 million tonnes (put into operation in

June 2009)

e Mainly production of semi-hard coking coal

LERIEE®

EREHE

R BEARI4RE - REEREBL
6.08F A2 - RAMEE6SRE » FdbiAEE
34RE

o R—ANARFRIKEEE

o REFRERLERT 1758

o RE—PFEFAMERI00EM 2 KM=
ZETNFRARE)

o IEAENEER
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OPERATING MINES (continued) EE R 2 KB @

ZHAIYADI COAL MINE REEKE

e 16 km southwest of Liulin County and the mining right area o IRAUIMBEAFEI16AE @ RERER(GHL
extended over 13.9 sg. km and spans 5.5 km east to west and 13.9F 5 RE - REMESSAE » FitAE
5.0 km north to south 5028

e Operation commenced in 1988 o R—ANNFRBEE

e Annual approved raw coking coal production capacity: 1.75 o (O EFREEAEELES - 17580
million tonnes

e Operate a coal preparation plant with annual designed input o  £&& —EF AKEH2108 08 2 EER (K=
processing capacity of 2.1 million tonnes (put into operation in T -TEFNEEHRE)
the 4th quarter of 2010)

e Mainly production of semi-hard coking coal o FEAEYEEHE
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OPERATING MINES (continued)

COAL CHARACTERISTICS

e  Located within the Lishi-Liulin mining area of Hedong coalfield,

Annual Report 2021

SEh 2B @

KR4S E

one of China’s key reserve areas for high-quality hard coking

coal.

e Regarded as “panda coal” because of its scarcity and high e

economic value.

e The Group's coking coal is of particularly good quality due to e
its high calorific value and caking index with low ash and sulfur
content characteristics that are highly desirable for coke and

steel making.

Major Clean Coking Coal Average

R RAEAZBENER  ZEATEEE
BEKzIEFEREZ — -

HRERBUEMSEEEE  KE/IRERHE
B o
AEBzERERMESLEEER  NLERX

0 K M%ffﬁ E{Et FE2FEARR

Basic  Specification

Quality Characteristic TERBRETYEERH HE 28
Moisture (%) KD (%) Ad 0.3-0.4
Ash (%) R (%) D 9.0-9.5
Sulfur Total (%) BETE(%) D 0.5-2.0
Volatile Matter (%) 1BEYESE(%) Daf 18.5-21.0
Fixed Carbon (%) & 7% (%) Ad 66.0-72.0
Calorific Value (Kcal./kg) BRE(TR /TR Gr.v.d 7,400-7,540
Caking Index (G) isF =kt {(C) 70-88

Source: Internal laboratory testing results.

BEHANR : NEFERERHER -
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OPERATING MINES (continued) =B 2 BB @
RESOURCES AND RESERVES BERERRE
Operating Mines
EEDZIEE
Xingwu Jinjiazhuang  Zhaiyadi Total
ik SxRHE EER e
Resources and Reserves ERENHE
In-Place Resources as of HE-_TE+F+-_A=1+—H
31 December 2007 (Mt) ZFEMERE (AEME) 63.23 64.18 78.34 205.75
Recoverable Reserves as of HE-_ZZ+F+-A=1+—H
31 December 2007 (Mt) ZARFE(EEm)
~ Proven reserves -BEHE 11.11 20.78 13.32 45.21
~ Probable reserves -FEAREE 35.23 23.02 38.89 97.14
Total proven and probable BE_ZTZLFT_A=T—
recoverable reserves as of ZRFEENBARGEE(BEM)
31 December 2007 (Mt) 46.34 43.80 52.21 142.35
Less: Total raw coking coal output ~ Jif : —EZENFE-T=—F
in 2008 to 2021 (Mt) ZJ?EX%'EE( ) (24.11) (18.82) (30.05) (72.98)
In-Place Resources as of BE-_Z2-_—H+-HA=+—
31 December 2021 (Mt) (Note) ZE#ERE(FEM) (&) 39.12 45.36 48.29 132.77
Recoverable Reserves as of BE-_ZE-_—H+-R=+—
31 December 2021 (Mt) (Note) ZAR#E(EEmW) (&3 22.23 24.98 22.16 69.37

Note: Resources and reserves have taken into account the coal reserves of the
Operating Mines prepared by John T. Boyd Company, an independent
mining and geological consultant, as of 31 December 2007, in
accordance with the JORC Code, after deduction of the total raw coking
coal output for the period from 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2021.

T BRERFBEDH KB IUFERNEBRLNS
T.ERRIRBIORCHEEEEEH E£2007F 12 431
HIE&ER Z EENFERENR2008F1A18E
2021F 12 A3 A MM RERGEEMHE -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear shareholders:

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to present to the
shareholders the annual report of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021, and report to the shareholders on the performance
and operation of the Group for the year under review.

In 2021, COVID-19 continued to ravage the world. Due to strict
pandemic control measures, China’s economy continued to recover.
Under the effect of diminishing marginal return and the Chinese
government'’s rigorous measures to prevent inflation, investment in
real estate, infrastructure and other fields has gradually declined.
Especially, a double-digit decline was recorded in new property
construction area. However, the annual gross domestic product
(“GDP") growth rate still exceeded the estimation of International
Monetary Fund (“IMF"”), reaching 8.1%, successfully achieved all the
goals.

In the downstream of the coking coal industry, the national “dual
carbon” emission reduction target and energy consumption control
policy suppressed the production of steel industry. The output of
crude steel fell by 3% YoY for the first time in six years, and the
output of pig iron also fell by 4.3%. However, on the supply side, due
to the increasing intensity of safety and environmental inspections,
the overall supply of domestic coal mines was tight, and the amount
of imported coal dropped sharply due to the disturbance of the
pandemic and geopolitical relations. Both thermal coal and coking
coal prices hit record high during the year of 2021. Subsequently, the
National Development and Reform Commission issued a price ceiling
on thermal coal in October 2021 and put forward several measures
to ensure stable supply. The price of thermal and coking coal fell
sharply, but it still fluctuated at a historically high level. The 2021
annual average market price was 70% to 80% higher YoY.

The market has brought huge profits to the entire coal industry. All
employees of the Group did not just sit back and enjoy. We kept
exploring the potential in various aspects such as mining, production,
sales and cost control to further improve quality and efficiency. At
the same time, we strived to seize the opportunities brought by the
market. We worked together and achieved brilliant performance
again. Profit of the Group in 2021 hit historical record high again.
The Group is pleased to report to shareholders that during the year
under review, the Group achieved raw coking coal production of
5.17 million tonnes, representing an increase of 4% YoY; the sales
volume of clean coking coal reached 3.3 million tonnes, representing
an increase of 1% YoY. The average selling price (inclusive of VAT)
of the Group’s main clean coking coal product was RMB2,019/tonne,
representing a significant increase of 66% YoY. For the year ended

Annual Report 2021

ﬁﬁﬁ%%%Aﬁﬂuhﬁi 2AEEBE_FT
“H+ A=+ -BUEFEZFHR  XREMA
BREHRAEEEDEFENEERANELE
;E/Q

T F ERRARBEEERERIE
FEREBRNRIGHIE - BiEEE - RERER
B KA - BE BB B R R E A K
FEBAANILBEBRMRNEERR - Fit
E - ERFRENRETETSER  BHEHR
IEFE EEMHEER  AMEFEANEE
TE(FGDPJ)iEﬁﬁ%tﬂTIT? SRS AR
WMWWEW #8.1% @ EMTEREHARE -

EERTE TN BERIMERIBEEREFEE TR
REEEEERE TERER  AMEE T
RERFILLTH3%  EEESI N#4.3% 8
HEFHE  SLERBREREHNEHB RS
HAREEEHESS  ENHEXREIEED
Mt & BORRBEKNIE B - B ERE R E
TR HEZEAZENT  ERPIBEERE
BEEBNR_ZEZ—FHRIPELF = HEER
BRER T -—F T AU HIELARERR
AR ZEERBREEE - SEEEITRES
NEEREBE - BNEELSUEEET =%
T —F2FHESRERL AR RO EZE MK -

MIGHEREERITESNTRTLEENFE - A%
ERETUWAAAMBAF ML FEHRK - m%
maEE ERR EE - HE - REEHS

EIRENE— 2 IRE IREB H&Yﬂm
ETISAERNHES - REINE - BRAGESERE
B R FEVRAEENBELTS - K
EEENTEASUERER: BBFEA -
NEBERREEESS17EME - BLIEMNA% ;
BREEEEEI0OEM - ALEMI% o AEE
FEEMRBRERTHEB(SEER) ZEARYK
2,0197C,/ W » AR EF66% - HE-T =
—FE+ A=+ —HILFE  AEBTKHEEW
A70.8EBTT  BILLKIBIERT7% : 2FEF=R
2% BT _TF FHISEAED - £EEF



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

31 December 2021, the Group achieved sales revenue of HK$7.08
billion, a significant increase of 77% YoY; the gross profit margin
for the year reached 62%, an increase of 15 percentage points
compared to 2020. The Group's net profit reached HK$3.06 billion, a
significant increase of 158% YoY, in which the net profit attributable
to shareholders was HK$2.54 billion, a significant increase of 135%
YoY. The Group achieved considerable return to shareholders. The
financial position of the Group has become more stable, and our
funds are abundant, which lays a solid foundation for the further
development of the Group.

At the beginning of 2022, the world has been undergoing
tremendous changes. The economic situation has become increasingly
complex and volatile. The geopolitical conflict has once again pushed
up the global raw material price. The conflict between Russia and
Ukraine has brought great uncertainty to the global economy.
COVID-19 is still ongoing around the globe and the monetary policy
is tightening in the United States. The world economic recovery lacks
momentum and the external macro-environment becomes more
complex, severe, and full of uncertainties. Even under such a situation,
China will still adhere to the development concept of “seeking
progress while maintaining stability” and withstand the downward
pressure on the economy. The annual GDP growth rate target is set
at 5.5%, which means there will be some degree of policy relaxation.
Therefore, we see that the real estate industry will soon bottom out
under the keynote of “housing not for speculation,” and a series of
policy adjustments similar to the housing purchase policy for new
urban residents will be gradually introduced and the real estate’s
market will tend to remain stable; the State Council has stated that
the issuance of RMB3.65 trillion of local government special bonds
will be completed by the end of September this year, to support
the follow-up financing of projects under construction and to start
several construction projects such as qualified major projects, new
infrastructure, renovating existing public facilities etc.. At the same
time, the government also mentioned that infrastructure investment
should be carried out moderately ahead of schedule, including key
water conservancy projects, comprehensive transportation networks,
urban gas pipelines, and other pipeline networks. Infrastructure
investment is expected to exceed expectations. The infrastructure
investment of the first quarter of 2022 has already exceeded 8%
growth YoY. It is expected that the growth will accelerate after the
pandemic situation eased in China. At the same time, in the field of
energy conservation and environmental protection, the government
emphasised the principle of “establish the new before abolishing
the old”, this helps avoid the market shock brought by uncontrolled
carbon reduction. This implies that the domestic steel industry
demand will remain strong in 2022 and production will remain stable.
In terms of coking coal supply, it is expected that imports of coking

Tog4E EEELEREESRAR 13
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

coal will still be constrained. In addition, coal prices in the domestic
and seaborne markets will be inverted which will further restrain
imports. Although the domestic coal price has dropped significantly
from the highest point in 2021, it is still at a historical high. Of course,
multiple outbreaks of COVID-19 in China have caused some impacts
on the economy and industry. The government departments have
emphasised multiple times that they must maintain smooth logistics
and therefore, there is still hope that domestic demand will still grow
under the dynamic zero-COVID policy. Under the circumstance that
domestic demand is expected to grow while import is difficult to
increase, we expect coking coal prices to remain at a relatively high
level.

In 2022, the Group will, as always, strive to improve ourselves,
further strengthen production safety, improve quality and efficiency,
maintain rigorous management, follow market trend closely and react
timely to seize historical opportunities brought by the market.

I would like to express my sincere gratitude to the management team
and all employees for their contributions to the Group. Fortunately,
the COVID-19 in 2021 did not cause significant impact to the
Group’s employees and the Group’s business. | would also like to
thank the shareholders of the Company for their support to the
Group. The Board of Directors recommends the 2021 final dividend
to be 32 Hong Kong cents per ordinary share to share the Group’s
operating results with our shareholders. We look forward to further
creating beautiful and fruitful returns for shareholders, society, and
all employees in the new year!

FEREE @)

B I EBERINEERSE - E—FHHED -
BAREBRECR _T_—FH=MAEEE -
BIHANRELSH - BER  HIERBEEERS
BB HEAKHERTRER —EFE  BA
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B BARFRERBHRBETOMRETNELE
Tt OB AKIBIZMOERT - ARG
FRERIERE SAETT -

AEBE—_FT-_—_FHH-—wREBH#MTA
o E-PMRTEEE - REEW - HIFRA
LEE - BHMSEE( DTS ARE  E
R i S - T M5 RAE L8 -

FHREREFEE2RE THRERENERE
TRUEH  IE_T - —FHEMARBERY
AEEETMAKERBEREATE TR
RABREAEEN R EFEERZ_FT_——
FERYBRESREBRI2EN - BERMANOKR
DEARENEEXR - MHGHO—FE—FR
BRR - HEMNEEBETAERIFEENDR |

Low-concentration Gas Power Generator Project

ERE LA EIHE



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The key operational data of our three premium operating coking
coal mines in Liulin County, Shanxi Province (Xingwu Coal Mine,
Jinjiazhuang Coal Mine and Zhaiyadi Coal Mine, collectively referred
to as the “Three Mines”) for the year under review together with

T FFH ERMELAREEARAT 15

Al

=

E 3 3E1) ]

that of the same period of 2020 (the “Last Year” or “2020 FY")is | :

summarised as follows:

Intelligent Dry Separator System

BEERE RS

AEBEURILBAENINFE=ZEEENETER
B (EERE  SHRERBNREERE 8
[ZB)EEFEEREABE_T_ZFRHTE
FEIR-Z-_ZFEDNIBLEEREEN

For the year ended 31 December Change
BE+-A=+—BH1LEE 21k
Quantity/
Unit 2021 2020 Amount Percentage
By ZTB=—F C"T_TF HE LH BAk
Production volume: EF
Raw coking coal R R Mt
ER=1 5.17 4.95 +0.22 +4%
Clean coking coal R Mt
=R 3.20 3.23 -0.03 -1%
Sales volume: HE
Raw coking coal JREHE Mt
Er=qu 0.00 0.08 -0.08 -100%
Clean coking coal REK Mt
BENE 3.30 3.26 +0.04 +1%
Average realised selling price ~ FHEHEE
(inclusive of VAT): (S8 EH)
Raw coking coal JREH RMB/tonne N/A N/A N/A
AR, TEA 597 8 A TNiE A
Clean coking coal BRI RMB/tonne
AR#ETT,/ T8 2,019 1,218 +801 +66%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group produced
approximately 5.17 million tonnes (“Mt"”) (2020 FY: approximately
4.95 Mt) of raw coking coal, representing a year-on-year (“YoY")
increase of 4% and also produced approximately 3.20 Mt (2020
FY: approximately 3.23 Mt), representing a YoY slight decrease of
1%. Excluding the effect on the purchase of clean coking coal of
approximately 0.07 Mt for washing from outsiders in the Last Year,
the production volume of the Group’s clean coking coal slightly
increased by 1% instead.

As the lower coal seam of Jinjiazhuang Coal Mine had been returned
to normal operation since the resumption of production in August
2019, the raw coking coal production volume of Jinjiazhuang
Coal Mine increased by 27% YoY. Although the Three Mines had
temporarily suspended production in the late of June 2021 with
details disclosed below under “Safety Production and Environmental
Protection”, the Group has adjusted its production plan for the
second half of 2021. Eventually, there is neither significant economic
loss nor significant negative effect on the operation and production
of the Group for the year under review. Finally, our raw coking coal
production volume was increased by 4% YoY for the year under
review.

Despite the slight decline in production volume of clean coking coal,
after adding up the purchase of clean coking coal of approximately
0.13 Mt (2020 FY: 0.09 Mt) from outsiders for sales for the purpose
of over-quality control, the sales volume of clean coking coal slightly
increased by 1% YoY for the year under review. For the year ended
31 December 2021, sales of clean coking coal accounted for 100%
of the Group’s revenue. Sales of clean and raw coking coal accounted
for approximately 99% and 1% of the Group’s revenue respectively
for the Last Year. This is in line with the Group's long-term strategy
to concentrate on clean coking coal sales.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Benefit from rapid rebound of China’s economy, certain policies on
restriction of imported coal to China and the strong coal demand
in the domestic coal market in 2021 especially in the second half
of 2021, etc., the average benchmark market selling prices of clean
coking coal surged by approximately 78% YoY for the year ended 31
December 2021. In particular, its average benchmark market selling
prices for the second half of 2021 increased by 134% YoY. For the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's average realised selling
price (inclusive of value added tax “VAT") of clean coking coal sharply
increased by 66% YoY to Renminbi (“RMB") 2,019/tonne when
compared with that of the Last Year (2020 FY: RMB1,218/tonne)
which was in line with the upside trend of coking coal market prices.
The growth rate in average realised selling price of clean coking coal
was less than that of market price because of adjustments of long
term contract selling prices quarterly in general and the different
qualities of clean coking coal produced within the same kind for the
year under review. In terms of its sales volume, sales of No.1 and
No.2 clean coking coal accounted for 33% and 67% (2020 FY: 33%
and 67%) of the total clean coking coal sales volume respectively for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded a
revenue of approximately Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$") 7,076 million,
representing a sharp increase of approximately HK$3,079 million or
77% YoY as compared with that of approximately HK$3,997 million
for the Last Year. The sharp increase in revenue was mainly driven
by the significant increase in average realised selling prices of clean
coking coal by 66% YoY, the rise in average exchange rate of RMB
to HK$ by approximately 6.67% YoY and the slight increase in sales
volume of clean coking coal by 1% YoY for the year under review.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the total revenue to the top
five customers accounted for 78% (2020 FY: 83%) of the Group’s
revenue. Of which, the total revenue to the largest customer
accounted for 40% (2020 FY: 36%) of the Group’s revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, gross profit margin was 62%
while 47% for the Last Year. Gross profit was sharply increased by
approximately HK$2,526 million or 135% YoY. The sharp increase in
gross profit was attributable to the significant increase in revenue by
77% as explained above. In addition, benefit from the appreciation of
average exchange rate of RMB to HK$ by approximately 6.67% YoY,
the profit which was mainly derived from the Group’s coal business
in China, with RMB as its functional currency, was increased.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded a net
profit of approximately HK$3,061 million representing a significant
increase of 158% YoY and profit attributable to the owners of
the Company (the “Owners”) of approximately HK$2,538 million
representing a significant increase of 135% YoY and also recorded
historical high profit. During the year under review, the significant
increase in the Group’s net profit by 158% YoY is in line with the
surge in gross profit by approximately HK$2,526 million or 135%
YoY. In addition, as a result of the significant rise in coal market
prices, income from sales of coal related by-products increased by
approximately HK$57 million or 158% YoY; and the increase in
dividend income amounting to approximately HK$13 million or 27%
YoY generated from financial assets during the year under review.
Nevertheless, interest income was reduced by approximately HK$26
million YoY as a result of the drop in market interest rates and the
net foreign exchange gain decreased by approximately 43 million in
the year under review. Eventually, the Group recorded net profit of
approximately HK$3,061 million, significantly increased by 158%
YoY, during the year under review.

During the year under review, basic earnings per share was HK50.25
cents (2020 FY: HK20.62 cents), representing a significant increase of
144% YoY as a result of the significant increase in profit attributable
to the Owner by 135% and the reduction of weighted average
number of issued share capital of the Company by 4% YoY resulting
from the repurchase of 250 million shares in September 2020 by the
Company.

The Group recorded EBITDA of approximately HK$4,736 million (2020
FY: approximately HK$2,179 million) and generated a positive cash
flow of approximately HK$3,858 million (2020 FY: approximately
HK$837 million) from our operating activities during the year under
review.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group continues to maintain a
healthy financial position and has free bank balances and cash
of approximately HK$6,426 million (As at 31 December 2020:
approximately HK$4,062 million). The sharp increase in free bank
balances and cash is mainly due to the considerable positive cash flow
generated from our operating activities of approximately HK$3,858
million during the year under review. The Group earned the return
on cash resources amounting to approximately HK$158 million (2020
FY: approximately HK$227 million) during the year under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Cost of Sales

During the year under review, cost of sales was approximately
HK$2,681 million, representing an increase of approximately HK$553
million or 26% YoY, as compared with that of approximately
HK$2,128 million for the Last Year. The increase in cost of sales was
mainly due to the increase in actual usage volume of raw coking coal
for sales, the reasonable increase in unit production costs as disclosed
below and the appreciation in average exchange rate of RMB to HK$
by approximately 6.67 %.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)
FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Cost of Sales (continued)

The unit production costs are summarised as follows:
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For the year ended

31 December Change
BE+=-ZBA=1+—HLEE 21t
2021 2020 Amount  Percentage
=B —"ZT-TF X [EpiNd
Production cost of raw coking [REEBE A ER AR
coal 379 313 +66 +21%
Less: Depreciation and Ja e R
amortisation (75) (76) -1 -1%
Cash production cost of raw REREREEKAE
coking coal 304 237 +67 +28%
Less: Uncontrollable costs = JB - RAMERIKAN -
resources tax and levies BIRB I E (84) (48) +36 +75%
Total CEl 220 189 +31 +16%
Processing cost for clean coking &R MNT &
coal 50 47 +3 +6%
of which, depreciation B rE 7) (8) -1 -13%

Included in cost of sales, amortisation of mining rights was
approximately HK$256 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
representing an increase of approximately HK$29 million or 13%
YoY, as compared with that of approximately HK$227 million for the
Last Year. The increase in amortisation of mining rights was mainly
due to the increase in actual usage volume of raw coking coal for
sales during the year under review and the appreciation in average
exchange rate of RMB to HK$ by approximately 6.67%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Cost of Sales (continued)

Due to the substantial increase in average realised selling prices
of clean coking coal by 66%, resources tax, which is charged
on the basis of the selling price of coking coal, and levies of city
constructional tax and additional educational surcharge, which is
charged on the basis of the VAT, increased sharply by RMB36/tonne
YoY, during the year under review.

Nevertheless, the Group faced the rising concern in cost pressure,
the stringent cost controls continuously implemented by the Group.
Excluding the effect on the increase in these uncontrollable costs,
unit of production cost of raw coking coal just increase by 11%
YoY resulted from (i) the increase in environmental and restoration
related costs by RMB14/tonne YoY as a result of the removal and
reconstruction of estates and implementation and the strengthen
of various environmental protection policies; (ii) the increase in staff
costs by RMB15/tonne YoY due to the additional bonus paid to the
staff as recorded a significant increase in profit and reached historical
high profit according to performance appraisal system and there was
reduction of social insurances payment under the central government
relief policies as a result of the outbreak of COVID-19 in the Last
Year, there was no such reduction during the year under review; and
(i) the increase in electricity charges YoY due to the rise in electricity
price as a result of shortage in supply in the second half of the year
under review and the electricity relief in the Last Year due to the
outbreak of COVID-19.

In addition, the unit processing cost of clean coking coal also
increased by 6% YoY as a result of the decrease in clean coking
coal production volume by 1% YoY, the increase in labour cost
and electricity charges due to the reason mentioned above and the
increase in drainage fee for gangue.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

As a result of the reasons above, gross profit was approximately
HK$4,395 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
representing a significant increase of approximately HK$2,526 million
or 135% YoY as compared with that of approximately HK$1,869
million for the Last Year. Gross profit margin was 62% for the year
under review and 47% for the Last Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Interest Income

During the year under review, interest income was approximately
HK$70 million, representing a reduction by approximately HK$26
million or 27% YoY as compared with approximately HK$96 million
for the Last Year. The decrease in interest income was the result of
the decrease in market interest rates.

Other Income and Gains, Net

During the year under review, other income and gains, net
was approximately HK$244 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$25 million or 11% YoY as compared with
approximately HK$219 million for the Last Year. Excluding the
impact of net foreign exchange gain of approximately HK$88 million
(2020 FY: approximately HK$131 million) during the year under
review, other income and gains, net was significant increased by
approximately HK$68 million or 77% YoY, was mainly attributable
to the increase in income from sales of coal related by-products
by approximately HK$57 million or 158% YoY as a result of the
significant rise in market prices of coal; and the increase in dividend
income amounting to approximately HK$13 million or 27% YoY
generated from financial assets during the year under review.

During the year under review, the Group recorded net foreign
exchange gain of approximately HK$88 million, representing a
decrease of approximately HK$43 million or 33% YoY, as compared
with that of approximately HK$131 million for the Last Year. The
reduction in net foreign exchange gain was due to the drop in
appreciation in RMB to HK$ exchange rate from approximately 4.55%
as at reporting date on 31 December 2020 when compared with that
as at 31 December 2019 to approximately 2.61% as at reporting date
on 31 December 2021 when compared with that as at 31 December
2020. The Group has monetary current assets denominated in RMB,
which RMB is not the functional currencies of those group entities,
amounting to RMB1,400 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Selling and Distribution Expenses

During the year under review, selling and distribution expenses
were approximately HK$270 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$47 million or 15% YoY as compared with that
of approximately HK$317 million for the Last Year. Selling and
distribution expenses mainly included logistic costs such as the
trucking fees for short distance and freight costs by sea and trucks
for sales of clean coking coal, of which are usually re-charged to
customers. The decrease was due to the drop in customers in long
distance sales by trucks during the year under review.

General and Administrative Expenses

During the year under review, general and administrative expenses
were approximately HK$208 million, representing an increase
of approximately HK$26 million or 14% YoY as compared with
approximately HK$182 million for the Last Year. The increase was
mainly resulted from the rise in average RMB to HK$ exchange rate
by 6.67% and the increase in labour related cost as disclosed above
during the year under review.

Other Operating Expenses

During the year under review, other operating expenses were
approximately HK$96 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$32 million or 50% YoY as compared with
approximately HK$64 million for the Last Year. The increase was
mainly resulted from the rise in average RMB to HK$ exchange rate
by 6.67% during the year under review and there was a reversal of
impairment loss on trade receivables amounted to approximately
HK$23 million in the Last Year.

Other operating expenses mainly included the additional depreciation
arising from the accelerated depreciation related to the underground
mining structures of the upper coal seam of Xingwu Coal Mine
amounted to approximately HK$73 million (2020 FY: approximately
HK$76 million), as it was expected that production will be transferred
from upper to lower coal seam in 2023 as disclosed in the 2020
Annual Report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Finance Costs

During the year under review, finance costs were approximately
HK$1.3 million (2020 FY: approximately HK$1.3 million), of which
approximately HK$1.2 million (2020 FY: approximately HK$1.3
million) was the interest expense on lease liabilities recognised under
the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the remaining balance was interest
derived from the early redemption of bills receivables of the Group
for the short-term financing. For the year under review, no borrowing
costs (2020 FY: nil) were capitalised in the construction in progress.

Income Tax Expense

During the year under review, income tax expense amounted to
approximately HK$1,071 million (2020 FY: approximately HK$425
million). Income tax expense mainly includes the enterprise income
tax calculated at a tax rate of 25% for the Group’s major PRC
subsidiaries incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") (“major PRC Subsidiaries”) and the provision of withholding
tax of 5% on the dividend to be declared from the major PRC
Subsidiaries in accordance with the relevant tax regulations in the
PRC. The income tax expense was increased in line with profits during
the year under review.

Owner’s Attributable Profit

By reasons of the foregoing, the profit attributable to the Owner
during the year under review was approximately HK$2,538 million, a
sharp increase of approximately HK$1,458 million or 135% YoY and
also recorded historical high profit, while approximately HK$1,080
million for the Last Year.

Material Investments and Acquisitions

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
material investments and acquisitions.

the Group had no

Material Disposals

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
material disposals.

the Group had no
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2021, save for disclosed below, none of the
Group's assets was charged or subject to any encumbrance.

As at 31 December 2021, bank deposits of approximately HK$358
million and bills receivables of approximately HK$183 million were
used for securing bills facilities. As at 31 December 2021, bills
facilities of approximately HK$337 million has been utilised.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, there were no guarantees given by the
Group and the Group has no material contingent liabilities.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no borrowings. The gearing
ratio of the Group was 0% (As at 31 December 2020: 0%).

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates

As at 31 December 2021, other than assets and liabilities
denominated in RMB and Australian Dollars (“AUD"), the Group
had no material exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations. As at
31 December 2021, RMB and AUD exchange rate were appreciated
by approximately 2.61% and depreciated by approximately 5.2%
respectively, when compared to that as at 31 December 2020. As
the net assets value of PRC business operations denominated in
RMB represented approximately 78% of the Group’s net assets
value as at 31 December 2021, the appreciation in RMB also led to
an exchange gain of approximately HK$259 million (other than the
foreign exchange difference recognised in profit or loss stated above)
recognised in the other comprehensive income upon translation of
its net assets in the financial statements of coal business operations
in the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2021. Besides,
the aggregate carrying amount of assets denominated in AUD
represented approximately 2% of the Group’s net assets value as at
31 December 2021. Thus, such fluctuation in AUD exchange rate is
not expected to have any material impact on the financial position of
the Group. The above exposure to fluctuation in exchange rates did
not have any material impact on the financial position of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current ratio (total current
assets divided by total current liabilities) was approximately 2.69 times
and the Group’s cash and bank deposits amounted to approximately
HK$6,784 million, of which approximately HK$358 million was
deposited to secure bills facilities of approximately HK$180 million.
The Group continued to maintain a healthy net cash balance.

The Group has total bills receivables amounting to approximately
HK$2,260 million (of which approximately HK$94 million represented
endorsed bills receivables and approximately HK$183 million was
used for securing bills facilities of approximately HK$157 million) as at
31 December 2021. The free bills receivables were readily convertible
into cash, but would be subject to finance cost upon conversion
before the maturity. Taking into account for the free bills receivables
of approximately HK$1,983 million, the Group's free cash resources
would have approximately HK$8,409 million as at 31 December 2021
(As at 31 December 2020: approximately HK$5,111 million).

Capital Structure

Total equity and borrowings are classified as capital of the Group.
As at 31 December 2021, the share capital of the Company was
approximately HK$15,157 million, represented approximately 5,052
million shares in number. During the year under review, there is no
change in number and amount of issued shares. The Group had no
borrowings as at 31 December 2021.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 4,594 PRC and Hong Kong
employees. The remuneration packages of the employees are subject
to annual review. The Group provides mandatory and voluntary
provident fund schemes for its employees in Hong Kong and the
state-sponsored retirement plan for its employees in the PRC. The
Group also provides training to employees in the PRC. The Group
has a share option scheme. During the year under review, no share
option was granted or exercised. As at 31 December 2021, no share
option was outstanding.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

SAFETY PRODUCTION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

The Group has always been paying great attention to production
safety and environmental protection while achieving stable coal
production. Thus, the Group makes great efforts in promoting
safety management and strengthening measures for environmental
protection, aiming to build itself into a safety-oriented and
environmentally-friendly enterprise. The Group has constantly
complied with the relevant environmental protection rules and
regulations. The Group fulfilled our responsibilities of energy
saving, emission reduction and environmental protection by strictly
managing production procedures, eliminating discharge of waste
water and waste gas and controlling vegetation damage, etc. in
material aspects. All coal mines of the Group have obtained necessary
permission and approval from the relevant Chinese regulators.

As stated in our 2021 Interim Report, the Three Mines had
temporarily suspended production in the late of June 2021. An
incident has occurred in Zhaiyadi Coal Mine in the late of June 2021
in which one person died. According to the investigation being
performed by the third party, this incident would be classified as a
general incident. According to the relevant rules and regulations in
the Mainland China, Zhaiyadi Coal Mine had suspended production
for comprehensive checking and it had already passed all checking
and resumed its normal production in the early of August 2021. In
addition, according to the notice of the local industry management
department on 22 June 2021, all domestic mines, including Xingwu
Coal Mine and Jinjiazhuang Coal Mine, had temporarily closed for
safety inspection. Xingwu Coal Mine and Jinjiazhuang Coal Mine have
already resumed their normal production in the early of July 2021
after closed for approximately 10 days. As the Group has adjusted
its production plan for the second half of 2021, the Group produced
raw coking coal of approximately 5.17 Mt in 2021, representing
an increase of 4% YoY. The Group would neither have significant
economic loss nor significant negative effect on the operation and
production of the Group resulted from the aforesaid incident for the
year under review.

Except for the aforesaid events, all coal mines of the Group operated
smoothly during the year under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC while the Company itself is listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. The Group's establishment
and operations accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this report, the Group have
complied with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's principal business activities are engaged in coking coal
mining, production and sales of coking coal products in the PRC.
As the Group's coking coal products are mainly used for refining of
coke which is the second largest raw materials for steel, our major
customers are steelmakers. The Group exposed to a variety of key
risks including financial risks (including market risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk), market price risk and operational risks. Details of the
aforesaid financial risks and risk mitigation measures are elaborated
in note 3 “Financial Risk Management” to the consolidated financial
statements.

The market price of coking coal is highly depended on the demand
of the downstream steel industry and the supply of coking coal.
During the year under review, coking coal prices had risen steadily in
the first half and then sharply increased to its historical high in the
second half. In the fourth quarter of 2021, the prices were dropping.
The overall market prices of coking coal were in an increasing trend
in 2021, of which, the average market prices of benchmark clean
coking coal significantly increased by 74% to 81% YoY in 2021. If
coal prices were dropping, the Group’s results would be affected
directly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Operational risks include the estimation of remaining coal reserves,
the renewal of mining rights and the mining works. The lives of our
coal mines are highly depended on the estimated remaining coal
reserves and the possibility to renew the mining rights. Engineering
estimates of the Group’s coal reserves involved subjective judgements
by engineers that the inherent inaccuracy of technical estimation
exists. If the past estimates change significantly, the lives of our coal
mines would be shorter. In addition, the remaining license period
of the mining rights held by the Group range from around 11 to 21
years which are shorter than the estimated useful lives of the coal
mine estimated by the Group. If the Group is unable to renew the
license of the mining rights from the relevant authority continuously,
the respective mine may need to be closed down. Nevertheless,
according to our past experiences and with our competent
management team, we have renewed our mining rights at minimal
charges in the past years. Mining works would become difficult and
the environmental standards would be increased, resulting in rise in
mining costs in the future.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group's success also depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise employees, customers, suppliers and
shareholders. Employees are regarded as the most important and
valuable assets of the Group. Details of employees are disclosed
above under “Employees”.

Customers

The Group’s principal customers are steel manufacturers. For the
year ended 31 December 2021, the total turnover to the top five
customers accounted for 78% (2020 FY: 83%) of the Group’s
turnover, of which, the total turnover to the largest customer,
Shougang Group, together with its subsidiaries, accounted for 40%
(2020 FY: 36%) of the Group's turnover. We have maintained a long
and good co-operation relationship with these top five customers.
The competent sales team established by the Group is capable to
utilise various means to strengthen the communications between the
customers and the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS
(continued)

Suppliers

The Group's principal suppliers are material vendors and contractors.
The Group will continue to derive cost effectiveness by tendering,
negotiating, improving the purchase system and developing new
suppliers. In the meantime, various means have been established to
maintain the quality of material and construction.

Shareholders

Shougang Group, together with its subsidiaries, is the largest
customer of the Group. To maximise shareholders’ interest is one
of the corporate goals of the Group. The Group will continue to
enhance production management, cost control and strive to increase
our production capability, resources and reserves through acquisitions
to improve the Group's profitability in order to create better value for
our shareholders.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

China’s Gross Domestic Product (“GDP") growth was 8.1% in
2021, exceeded the 8.0% estimated by International Monetary Fund
("IME"). China’'s economy continued to recover steadily in 2021
and maintained a leading position in economic development and
pandemic control, major economic indicators have achieved the
expected goals.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FUTURE PROSPECTS (continued)

In 2021, factors like repeated resurgence of the pandemic, floods
during the year, bulk commodity prices increased, weakening
margins of policy support, and the central government’s mid-long
term structural policy adjustments in various sectors since the third
quarter caused short-term economic impact. China’s GDP quarterly
growth rate YoY showed a trend of high to low during the year.
The growth of infrastructure, fixed assets and real estate investment
generally showed a similar trend in 2021, the cumulative YoY
growth rates were 0.4%, 4.9% and 4.4% respectively. On the other
hand, due to the “Dual Carbon” target and energy consumption
control policy, strict crude steel reduction policy has been introduced
countrywide since July 2021. In 2021, production volume of crude
steel and pig iron were down by 3.0% and 4.3% respectively. Crude
steel production volume dropped YoY for first time in six years.
Despite the production of steel industry declined slightly due to the
policy, the domestic coking coal supply being restricted by safety
and environmental inspections, and the coking coal import fell by
25% YoY due to the impact of the pandemic and geopolitics, the
prices of domestic coking coal products kept hitting record highs
since second half of 2021. The annual average coking coal market
price also increased significantly. Although the supply has increased
accordingly after National Development and Reform Commission’s
policy of ensuring supply and price stabilisation, the prices of coking
coal products have fallen rapidly but still running at historically high
level.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FUTURE PROSPECTS (continued)

Looking forward to 2022, seeking progress while maintaining
stability is the main tone of China’s economy this year. After a
series policy adjustment in real estate industry in the past two years,
the conventional real estate-led economic growth model has been
changed gradually. Since 2022, real estate policy has shown signs
of relaxation. Real estate investment is expected to bottom out
and rebound during the year. The Two Sessions Work Report in
2022 proposed that the scale of new special bonds issuance will be
RMB3.65 trillion this year. Moreover, it mentioned that infrastructure
investment should be carried out moderately ahead of schedule.
The RMB1.46 trillion new special bonds arranged in advance at
the beginning of this year has already been issued more than
70% in January and February. It is expected that a proactive fiscal
policy regime will promote a significant rebound in the growth of
infrastructure investment and becoming an important growth engine
of China’s economy this year. On the other hand, recently, three
government departments namely Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology, National Development and Reform Commission, Ministry
of Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic of China
jointly issued a guideline for the high-quality development of the
steel industry, suggest to delay “Carbon Emission Peak” to 2030.
The pressure on steel production control in 2022 is expected to be
significantly lower than 2021. This macro environment is constructive
for the healthy development of the demand side of China’s steel
industry. On the supply side of coking coal, the domestic coking coal
output is expected to remain stable; on the import side, geopolitical
crisis at the beginning of the year has caused severe turbulence in
the commodity market, supply shortage and the reshaping of the
global raw material supply chain pushes commodity price to go high
continuously. To sum up, the coking coal industry is expected to be
benefited from the stimulus of the Chinese government’s economic
policy and import disturbance. The prices of coking coal products are
expected to remain stable at a high level in 2022, especially in the
first half of this year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FUTURE PROSPECTS (continued)

On the other hand, due to the outbreak of variants of coronavirus
such as Omicron recently around the world, a series of precautionary
and control measures have been implemented and are expected to
continue across the country. Up to the date of this report, the Group
is not aware of any material adverse effects on the financial position
and operating results of the Group as a result of the pandemic
outbreak. The Group will pay close attention to the development of
the pandemic outbreak and evaluate its impact on the Group, and
the Group shall take proactive measures in response to the impact.
The Group believed that the current healthy financial position and
strong cash position not only could suffice to service its operating
activities and investments in the foreseeable future, but could also
face the adverse effects as a result of the pandemic, if any.

Our Group will continue to strengthen production safety, introducing
cutting-edge mining technology, promoting smart mining gradually
to enhance production efficiency, cost control and contribute
to sustainable development in respond to the plan of Chinese
government in transforming to a green and low-carbon economy.
With the Group’s stable financial position and strong cash flow,
we will continue to monitor the development of the pandemic
and economy to timely adjust our operating strategy. The Group
will continue to maintain stringent corporate governance and
leverage our competitive advantages to create greater value for our
shareholders, employees and society.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THE REPORT

The report details the corporate social responsibility ideas
and practices and the progress made by Shougang Fushan
Resources Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
collectively referred to as (the “Group”) in the economic, social
and environmental aspects. It truly reflects the Group’s proactive
performance of its economic, social and environmental responsibilities
for comprehensive, coordinated and sustainable development. The
report is designed to allow shareholders, investors (including potential
investors) and stakeholders to have a more comprehensive and
profound understanding of the work done in the environment, social
and governance (“ESG") areas of the Group.

Reporting Period

The reporting period is from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2021.

Scope of the Report

The report mainly covers the operations of the Group’s major
subsidiaries in Liulin County, Shanxi Province, including Xingwu
Coal Mine, Jinjiazhuang Coal Mine and Zhaiyadi Coal Mine,
which are engaged in the operation of three premium coking
coal mines and the associated coal preparation plants for the
production of raw and clean coking coal.

Data Source

All data is mainly sourced from official documents, statistical
and financial reports of the Group, as well as the ESG
information collected from the Group's statistics, summaries
and verifications. The report is available in Chinese version
and English version. If there is any conflict or inconsistency
between the two versions, the Chinese version shall prevail.
Unless otherwise stated, the currency used is the Chinese yuan
("yuan”).

References

The report is prepared based on the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Reporting Guide”) in
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). It also refers to the core
option of the GRI standards issued by the Global Sustainability
Standard Board (“GSSB").
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

ABOUT THE REPORT (continued)

Availability

You can browse the report and dynamic information about
sustainable development activities of the Group from the
“Investor Relations” section on the homepage of the Group's
website (website address: www.shougang-resources.com.hk).

BOARD ESG STATEMENT

The Group is committed to enhancing sustainable
business practice, establishing a comprehensive ESG work
mechanism, striving to achieve the harmony in the society
and the environment, and creating long-term stable social,
environmental and enterprise value.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is the
highest responsible and decision-making body for ESG issues
and takes full responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy
and reporting. As the main ESG monitoring unit, the Audit
Committee formulates ESG management policies and strategies,
specifically assessing, prioritising and managing material ESG
related issues and their risks to the Group’s business, reviewing
the Group’s ESG performance and the achievement of ESG
objectives, and promoting ESG resolutions in the Board. The
Board conducts regular debriefs on ESG works, reviews and
determines the results of stakeholders and makes decisions on
major issues, and based on Audit Committee recommendations
reviews and approves the annual ESG report of the Group.

The report details the progress and effectiveness of the Group'’s
ESG efforts in 2021 After being submitted for the approval in
the Audit Committee meeting on 17 March, 2022, the report
was approved at the meeting of the Board on 24 March, 2022.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

The Group sees sustainable development as the guarantee
for the Group’s long-term stable development. The Group
continuously improves the company’s ESG management system
and governance structure, and breaks down and implements
sustainable development functions and division of responsibilities
to ensure the effective operation of the ESG management
system and create excellent sustainable development
performance. The Group attaches great importance to
communication with stakeholders, identifies ESG issues, actively
responds to the demands of all stakeholders, and continuously
promotes the sustainable development of the Group and all
stakeholders.

2.1 ESG Management

The Group follows the requirements of ESG policies,
specifications and guides at the place where it is listed,
systematically plan ESG governance, establishes and
improves the ESG governance system, and provides an
organisational guarantee for the smooth development and
implementation of the Group’s ESG affairs.

The Board is the highest responsible and decision-making
body for ESG issues and takes full responsibility for the
Group’s ESG strategy and reporting. As the main ESG
monitoring unit, the Audit Committee formulates ESG
management policies and strategies, specifically assessing,
prioritising and managing material ESG related issues
and their risks to the Group's business, reviewing the
Group’s ESG performance and the achievement of ESG
objectives, and promoting ESG resolutions in the Board.
The Board conducts regular debriefs on ESG works, reviews
and determines the results of stakeholders and makes
decisions on major issues, and based on Audit Committee
recommendations reviews and approves the annual ESG
report of the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

2. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

(continued)

2.1 ESG Management (continued)

The Group has set up an ESG management team at the
management level to coordinate the implementation of
ESG affairs under the policies and strategies formulated by
the Board and the Audit Committee, identify ESG risks and
opportunities, regularly report ESG issues and progress to
the Board of and the Audit Committee, and present the
Group's annual ESG performance and annual ESG report.

ESG working group is the executive body set under the
ESG management team to comprehensively carry out ESG
affairs. The ESG working group is composed of ESG staff
from various departments of the Group. It implements and
promotes specific ESG issues of the Group, and regularly
reports the ESG progress to the ESG management team.

The Board
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(continued)

2.2 Stakeholders Engagement

The Group attaches great importance to stakeholder
engagement. An efficient stakeholder communication
and feedback mechanism has been established, through
different channels to listen to the opinions and suggestions
of the government, investors, employees, customers,
suppliers, community organisation and other stakeholders
and to identify the feedbacks and expectations of various
stakeholders of the Group. The demands of various parties
have been responded to in a targeted manner in order to
improve the Group's social responsibility performance on
all fronts.

The following table shows the main communication

channels the Group uses, the main concerns and the

expectations of stakeholders:

Stakeholders

Expectations and Demands

2.2 FIF=HEHEL S8R

AEBESERMNERELER  EUYEH
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HER  HRARSNEREINER

MEE - BRIBNEAATEAEHE
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TREREEMAEANBHRRS  Mx
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e

Communication Channel

MBEES BOXEE BERE
Government ° Emission management ° Government work conference
BT e e BN TIEg
e Addressing climate change e Information report
JESTRIREL AMER
e Ecological protection
HRER &
° Energy use
BEIRE
e Anti corruption
RIE1E Rk
Investor e Addressing climate change e General meeting of shareholders
REE icEapaR(3-did RS
e  Technological innovation e Notice
A AR N
e  Roadshow
7974

e  Reception
B RERA
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2. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 2. AIEEREEE(H&)

(continued)

2.2 Stakeholders Engagement (continued)

Stakeholders

2.2 FsEHEES SRR

Expectations and Demands Communication Channel

FEAEBE T BERE BERE
Employees Employee care Labour Union
8T BITHAE Ig
Employee rights Performance appraisal system
8 THEw and meeting
Employee development B EZGIE R
BI%RE
Workforce safety
TREE
Occupational health
Customer Product quality Product report
B EmEE EmRE
Business ethics Regular visits
BRER EHED
Stable supply
R fE
Supplier Supplier management Annual bidding announcement
e HrEr e FERERE
Fair competition Special project announcement
NFEF HEHEEERE

Community organisation

A [ 4R AR

Technological innovation

AT

Public charity
R AR

Special technical meeting
SRR

Village Visits
FERIRED
Community engagements

R E
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2. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

(continued)

2.3 Response to ESG Reporting Principles

Materiality: In accordance with the requirements of
the "ESG Reporting Guide” issued by Stock Exchange,
combined with the capital market’s concerns about
the Group’s sustainable development, the Group
communicated with various stakeholders via different
channels, and based on a benchmarking analysis of the
issues disclosed in the reports of companies in the same
industry to identify and to select ESG issues related to the
Group.

In 2021, the Group conducted online questionnaire surveys
to prioritise selected issues and understood the importance
of internal and external stakeholders put on the relevant
issues. The Group regularly reviews the material issues
matrix in combination with external development trends
and the characteristics of our business operation, adjusts
the importance of certain issues, and ensures the timeliness
and appropriation of the material issues matrix.

Ecological Protection

® Rl

Public Welfare
o HEAZH
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o ° e Climate Change
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

2. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
(continued)

2.3 Response to ESG Reporting Principles
(continued)

Quantitative: The Group conducts regular statistics on
key performance indicators involving the “Environmental”
subject area and “Social” subject area in accordance with
the ESG Reporting Guide. Statistical data are summarised
and disclosed at the end of the year. ESG quantitative data
calculation method and reference standard are disclosed in
the relevant sections of the report.

Consistency: The report has no major adjustments to
the scope of disclosure compared with previous ESG
reports, and adopts consistent statistical and disclosure
methods and further refines some categories of
disclosure corresponding to the ESG Reporting Guide. For
comparative figures, please refer to the relevant sections of
the report.

3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE

Operation in compliance is the foundation for the steady
development of the Group. The Group continues to improve
corporate governance, standardise the internal control system
and sharpen the Group's ability to resist risks. The Group always
abides by business ethics, strengthens operation in integrity
and compliance, follows antitrust and unfair competition, and
ensures the sustainable development of the company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued)

3.1 Corporate Governance

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC while the Company itself
is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. The
Group's establishment and operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and
Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2021
and up to the date of this report, the Group have complied
with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation
and performance monitoring of the Group. It delegates
day-to-day operations of the Company to the Executive
Committee and the management within the control and
authority framework set by the Board. In addition, the
Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

The Company adopted a board diversity policy on 28
August 2013 which sets out its approach to achieve
diversity on the Board with a view to achieving a
sustainable and balanced development of the Group.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Company will also
take into account factors based on its own business model
and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued)

3.1 Corporate Governance (continued)

The Board currently comprises a total of 11 (10 males and
1 female) Directors, being 5 Executive Directors, 2 Non-
executive Directors and 4 Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Directors give sufficient time and attention
to the affairs of the Group. All Directors are required to
disclose to the Company at the time of their appointment
and to provide the number and the nature of offices held
in public companies or organisations and other significant
commitments with an indication of the time involved
annually.

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) have made a positive contribution
to the development of the Group’s strategy and policies
through independent, constructive and informed
comments. They give the Board and the committees on
which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise, varied
backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance
and active participation.

Directors are continually updated on the latest
development of the Listing Rules, legal and other
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep
of good corporate governance practice. Directors are
also encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company Secretary facilitates induction and
professional development of Directors and the Company is
responsible for arranging and funding suitable training for
the Directors.
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3. ERE¥(E

3.1

3.2

Corporate Governance (continued)

The Company maintains close communication with
shareholders through regular general meetings, investor
meetings, roadshows, investor visits and other activities,
and provides investors with reports and materials to
inform the investors of the Group’s information timely and
comprehensively.

Risk Management

The Group continues to strengthen the development of the
risk management system and internal control system, carry
out comprehensive risk prevention and control, improve
the company’s anti-risk ability, optimise the reform of audit
and supervision agency, ensure the compliance of the
Group's production and operation, and prevent business
risks and legal compliance risks.

The structure of the Group’s risk management system
based on: 1) Risk Governance Structure; and 2) Risk
Management Procedures.

Risk Governance Structure

The Group’s risk governance structure is based on a
“Three Lines of Defense” model, with oversight by the
Board on an ongoing basis and is reviewed by the Audit
Committee and subsequently reported to the Board on the
effectiveness of the risk management system.
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3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued) 3. EHRE®(E
3.2 Risk Management (continued) 3.2 ERERE (&)

Under the “Three Lines of Defense” model, major risk
management functions and measures in each line are as

EZEHSEEAT SN ETERRK
EIRBRRE AR MO T ¢

follows:
1st Line of Defense: 2nd Line of Defense: 3rd Line of Defense:
Risk Management Function Risk Monitoring Function Independent Assurance Function
E—ER  AREEREE ETIERR - EREEEAE EEBR  BURFBHEE
1) Identify and evaluate risks, 1) Monitor design appropriateness | 1) Independent assessment
adopt measures to manage risks and implementation of risk on the appropriateness
A R AT h RS - BREUE LA management procedures and effectiveness of risk
EEE R EERRERIEFHRAEHE management system
2) Self-assessment on the 14 FFRTT A T HEREERGANESBIEFNE
effectiveness of the measures, |2) Promote delivery of risk BT T I R B
adjust timely to mitigate risks management information
B e BRI - B R R EIREMIEE
BIDEARE R
Risk Management Procedures EBRERERERF

The Group adopted and implemented the Group's risk
management policy and procedures that is appropriate
to the Group by making reference to the Committee of
Sponsoring Organisation of the Treadway Commission
Enterprise Risk Management Framework.

The Board is responsible for assessing and determining the
Group's risk appetite regarding the nature and magnitude
and constructs a risk management procedures allowing a
tone at the top and bottom up reporting.

rEE2RzERERVMBREEZES
TENZREAZSSNENECEERE
BEEREVMETESASENERE
BEHRMER °

EEC AT TENBTAREBERER
BIZRFTEMNRRIEE RIZE - Wik
YT—EBEMT A TmENERRE
B2 o




46 SHOUGANG FUSHAN RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2021

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
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3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued)

3.2 Risk Management (continued)
Top-Down Approach

The Board, through the management of the Group,
communicates to entities, divisions, operating units and
subsidiaries regarding potential effects on inherent risks
and emerging risks, and defines standards on the Group's
risk appetite and risk tolerance level.

Bottom Up Approach

Based on the guidance from the Board and incorporation
of annual operating plan, the Group’s entities, divisions,
operating units and subsidiaries identify potential risks that
affect the achievement of objectives. Every potential risk is
evaluated based on the impact and likelihood. Appropriate
risk responses, such as accepting, avoiding, transferring
and controlling, are used to manage the risks based on the
assessment results and the risk appetite and risk tolerance
level defined by the Board.

In 2021, in order to further identify and manage the
internal risks of the company, the Group invited 12
subordinate units and departments to prepare measures
to identify, quantify and measures within their authority,
set annual goals of the units or departments, and measure
their risk factors, risk impact, possibility and response
strategies on the basis of annual objectives, so as to
prevent potential risks in operation.
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3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued) 3. SREZ(E)

3.2 Risk Management (continued) 3.2 ERERE (&)

Compliance management

To reinforce the compliance governance and internal
control system, the Group optimises the internal risk
management policies, carries out an overall compliance
audit, reduces the Group’s compliance risk, raises the
legal compliance awareness of internal employees, and
promotes the Group’s compliance and sustainable and
stable operation.

Based on the audit results and the problem summary by
each department, the Group refines the imperfections of
management and revised the system. In 2021, the Group
revised 121 documents and established 15 new policies,
and officially issued new policy documents to support the
Group's compliant operation.

In terms of the compliance audit, the Group continues to
promote the development of internal audits to ensure the
compliant operation of the Group. The Group conducts
audits around the Group’s business scope, sums up
the problems identified to form a problem summary,
and prepares problem risk level, problem description,
rectification plan, rectification measures, and rectification
progress to promote the compliant and optimised internal
management. This year, the Group audited a list of 24
problems, and the problems are rectified and formulated
rectification plans.
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3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued) 3. SREZ(E)

3.2 Risk Management (continued)
Compliance management (continued)

To strengthen all employees’ compliance awareness and
ability, the Group further publicises and implement legal
compliance, and conduct compliance system training
and legal compliance training for all employees. The
training mainly covers business development skills, legal
explanation, case studies, etc.

3.2 EREE(E)
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Case: Interpretation of the New Workplace Safety Law

In August 2021, the Group invited lawyers from Shanxi Jinkai
Law Firm to train internal employees on the new Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Work Safety (the new “Law on
Work Safety”).

The training focuses on the general requirements of the
new Workplace Safety Law and details the requirements for
enterprises and the criminal responsibilities involved with
case studies of safety accidents to strengthen employees’
awareness of workplace safety and legal compliance.
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Picture: Training on the New Law on Work Safety
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued)

3.3 Business Ethics and Anti-corruption

The Group follows the business ethics of honesty,
integrity and self-discipline. The Group strictly observes
the Supervision Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic
of China, Law of the People's Republic of China Against
Unfair Competition and other laws and regulations. Also,
the Group insists on zero tolerance for corruption, bribery,
fraud and other unethical behavior, and conduct business
under the norms. In 2021, the Group strengthened its
business ethics development from the aspects of clean
governance, disciplinary supervision, and a culture of
integrity. The Group has no corruption cases.

To promote clean governance and combat corruption
across the Group, the Group inspects and corrects the clean
governance risks and supervises the system efficiency. The
Group focuses on the major violation of the Eight Provisions
of the Central Committee and the embezzlement and
abuse of power; the Group carries out special rectification
on illegal subsidies, sightseeing at public expenses, illegal
allocation of vehicles, and illegal business travel while
advocating spending holidays and festivals with integrity to
improve the clean governance among all departments. At
the same time, the Group organises management to sign
the Letter of Commitment for Honest Duty Performance of
Management of Shanxi Fushan Resources Group Co., Ltd.
In 2021, 45 management signed the Letter of Commitment
for Honest Duty Performance.

The Group further strengthens and improves the enterprise
management, enhances the corporate operation, and
supervises disciplinary violations in the internal operation.
This year, the Group formulated the Regulations on
Efficiency Supervision of Shanxi Fushan Resources Group
Co., Ltd. (for Trial Implementation), and performed policies,
decisions and responsibilities for the efficiency to be
supervised. Those moves helped to develop the diligent and
clean governance across the Group and augmented the
overall benefits of the Group. In addition, the management
inspected the mines, factories and departments under the
Group for law and discipline violations, and found no major
problems. During the reporting period, the Group had no
lawsuits against corruption.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued)

3.3 Business Ethics and Anti-corruption
(continued)

The Group offers integrity training for internal employees.
With the help of warning education and integrity culture
learning, the Group reinforces employees’ awareness of
integrity, ensures anti-corruption and anti-bribery are
effectively implemented during operation, and creates
a clean and honest atmosphere internally. During the
reporting period, 100% of the Group’s designated
employees signed the integrity agreements and the senior
management received 4 hours of anti-corruption training.

Annual Report 2021
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Case: The Management of Group Attended Anti-

Corruption Warning Education

On 16 March 2021, the Discipline Inspection Commission of
Liulin County deployed anti-corruption warning education
and publicity in the Group for education and prevention. A
total of more than 160 management personnel attended
the two warning educations. Those activities stimulated
management to behave in accordance with law and
discipline, enhanced their self-control, built a strong vision on
defense against corruption, and further improved their spirit

and morals.
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Picture: The Management Personnel of the Group Attended Anti-Corruption Warning Education
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued)

3.3 Business Ethics and Anti-corruption

(continued)

In order to fully ensure the Group’s clean governance
and strengthen the supervision from internal and external
personnel, the Group prepares the whistleblowing
Policy of Shougang Fushan Resources Group Co., Ltd.,
actively unblocks the complaint channels and reinforces
the whistleblower protection mechanism. The Group
discloses the open complaint channel, and all personnel
can whistleblow the fraud of the Group and its staff.
In addition, the Group strictly protects the safety of
whistleblowers and creates a healthy and good business
climate by assigning personnel for complaints and visits,
and strictly keeping whistleblowers’ information and
complaints confidential.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group attaches great importance to product quality
control, ensures product supply and continues adequate quality
production. At the same time, the Group strictly protects users’
information security and privacy, improves customer service,
and strengthens supply chain management and responsible
procurement to ensure the sustainable development of the

Group.

4.1 Quality Assurance

The Group formulates the Regulations on the Quality
Management of Coal Products of Shanxi Fushan Resources
Group under the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Product Quality. The Group continuously optimises the
engineering standardisation, manages the troubleshooting
and audit of quality hazards, establishes and improves
the innovative management system and mechanism, and
promotes the stable and high-quality development of the
Group.

Ensuring Product Supply

The Group promotes the stable supply of products and
scientifically prepares production plans adjusting to the
customers’ demand for products and the production of the
Group to match its output and demand.

To ensure a stable supply of products, the Group holds
a production planning meeting every month to arrange
and deploy the production tasks for the next month.
The Group also organises a zero-distance discussion
and exchange every quarter to communicate the status
quo and improvement in the current production. At the
same time, the Group scientifically prepares the clean
coal production plan, efficiently links and connects
production, transportation, and sales, refines the clean
coal proportioning in various coal mix, and promotes the
smooth and orderly integration of production and sales.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

4.1 Quality Assurance (continued)

Ensuring Product Supply (continued)
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Picture: Production Planning Meeting of the Group
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In 2021, when the coal market became promising, the
coal price continued to rise but the raw coal output saw a
shortfall, the Group facilitated adequate quality production
and operation through flexible measures such as adjusting
the production plan, strengthening process control, making
incentive mechanism and assessment.

Product Quality

To stabilise and improve product quality, the Group
increases the unified management of production processes
and imposes stricter requirements for product quality by
assessing coal quality, supervising and spot sampling, and
standardising operation.

In 2021, after repeated communication and research,
the Group specified the main member units’ roles in coal
quality management, formulated the internal coal quality
assessment policy, strictly required them to manage coal
quality. In addition, the Group strengthened its supervision
and control over by-products during production and strictly
managed the non-coal impurities to greatly reduce the
impurities in coal preparation.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

4.1 Quality Assurance (continued)
Product Quality (continued)

To achieve the Group’s goal of improving quality and
efficiency and ensuring product quality, the Group strictly
monitors and randomly inspects the coal quality in the
process of raw coal production and clean coal preparation.
The Group takes underground and ground on-site samples
records the coal sample number and inspection indicators
and collects, arranges, analyses and summarises the data
on coal quality, and standardises the test of coal quality
continuously.

In addition, the Group continues to better select operation
process standards for mining positions and strengthen the
standard position-specific operation process in the mine.
In 2021, the Group carried out three internal selection
activities and three external benchmarking activities
to promote standardise for position-specific operation
processes.

During the reporting period, the Group had not
experienced any product recall due to safety and health
issues.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND %fﬁ CHER
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4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued) 4. EREEE
4.1 Quality Assurance (continued) 4.1 EERE (&)

Case: The Group carried out special training on roof Xfl: SEHEEREENEREIEE
management and mine pressure observation =3

From May to June 2021, the Group engaged professional M-ZE-——FRHENAH  ALEEFH
lecturers to provide technicians from mines with special ¥R ' S BEEBEMAERE TR
training on roof management, anchor mesh support, mine REE  #HHLE BEEAMEHAERE
pressure observation and application. The Group was timely — 53| o AN @ 2 b5 T R S5 48 =7 s R fl 9 2%
aware of the development frontier of anchor mesh support  ERIE A REEEREANEZE o 23
technology and the importance of mine pressure observation.  hli% T HTEIR EIZAIRAR - SR{L R A B
The training deepened technicians’ understanding of ¥i%=H

roof management and strengthened their professional

competence.

Picture: Special Training
C B
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

4.1 Quality Assurance (continued)
Technological improvement

Innovation is the inexhaustible driving force for the
sustainable progress of the Group. The Group continues
to improve technological innovation management and
improve equipment upgrading and transformation. At
the same time, the Group promotes intellectual property
protection and ensures the Group’s sustainable innovation.

The Group always attaches importance to the protection
of its own intellectual property rights and respects the
intellectual property achievements of others. The Group
strictly abides by the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of
China, and the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of
China, increases internal intellectual property management,
forms and optimises its own intellectual property protection
mechanism and avoid infringement. During the reporting
period, the Group had no lawsuits against intellectual
property theft.
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4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued) 4., EmEIGE
4.1 Quality Assurance (continued) 41 EEREE)

Technological improvement (continued) F5 17 2% 2 (#F)
In 2021, the Group continued to promote the upgrading RIZZEZ—F  RAEETEHEEER
and transformation of production equipment, made HEOFRNRE - HBEEBRENRREL
production more standardised with the process, reduce MIZAE( - BEE T TIERE « I
employees’ work intensity and improve productivity. This EEME AEE NEBEEHETT
year, the Group mainly transformed and upgraded three —HERBIENARIE  AEEST
pieces of equipment, automatised the system and applied REMUETHB U RER ST IERE -
efficient work equipment. At the same time, the Group AR NEES=-RETEEENTIE
optimised and rectified the mining panels of three high- FEITE BN ZEEEERESED
quality coking coal mines and their primary intelligent RIBYRE s LR TEEBRUL -

tunneling passed the test for acceptance.

Picture: 110 Operation Approach for Mining Face at Zhaiyadi Coal Mine
C REEEBEIEEI10IE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

4.1 Quality Assurance (continued)

Annual Report 2021
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Technological improvement (continued) F5 17 2% 2 (#F)
Case: The Group, Together with the China University =4|: Z&EBHASTRBEANEHREIE

of Mining and Technology, Used the Roof Cutting
and Pressure Releasing to Retain Gob-Side Entry (“110
Operation Approach”)

Zhaiyadi Coal Mine and China University of Mining and
Technology used roof cutting and pressure releasing to retain
gob-side entry in 9# coal to solve the problem of less tunneling
during mining, ensure the balanced and orderly production of
the mine, increase the resource recovery rate and prolong the
service life of the mine.

From April to December 2021, 110 Operation Approach was
tested to be good based on the comprehensive analysis and
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judgment of stress states, for instance, the variation of the top 4T * #IBf » 110 AABRRERLT ©
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND RE HE8EK
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BEREE @
4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued) 4. EmEEGE
4.1 Quality Assurance (continued) 41 EEREE)
Technological improvement (continued) B # ()
Case: Widely Used Polyester Fiber Plastic Mesh Rl BEAEERENERER

In May 2021, Xingwu Coal Mine under the Group replaced the WZZT=—FH A ' ANEE T B EHE KT
metal diamond-shaped mesh with polyester fiber plastic mesh. F#4&BEFH AT EREEBEE - £F
Hence, the whole mining panel only needed two mesh, getting ~ FIZBR A BRI 2 1% - B(ERE TIEE
rid of repeated mesh connection. Employees did not need to R EMKRPI EFTEEERN - BEHES
frequently transport mesh and connected the mesh to the ®BEMEARME TE TR TEFEIELE
mining panel, and the injuries caused by network connection #8 - BR/MNITF @ BEEFF RO EES
was avoided. Besides, the technology saved downtime A& ' Rk @ AT AN EBBENLHESE
and time for network connection and effectively improved MR8 @ SiREKERERE - E8UEs T
productivity. EETM -

Picture: On-site Arrangement of Polyester Fiber Plastic Mesh at Xingwu Coal Mine
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)
4.2 Information Security Protection

The Group attaches great importance to customer privacy
and personal information protection. The Group strictly
abides by the Personal Information Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Data Security Law of The
People’s Republic of China, and the Cybersecurity Law
of the People’s Republic of China, and formulates the
Regulations on Sales Confidentiality to strictly protect the
safety of customers’ privacy. In 2021, the group had no
customer privacy leak.

During routine operations, the Group strictly manages
the access rights of important materials such as customer
information. Only employees who are authorised are
allowed to access relevant information, and business
personnel is not allowed to lend sales-related files,
contracts, data and other materials in an effort to
standardise the management of customer information.

4.3 Customer Service

The Group continuously optimises the quality and level of
its customer service. The Company strictly abides by the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection
of Consumers’ Rights and Interests, actively responds to
customers’ demands while providing them with high-
quality products, and enhances the Group's procedure and
services and makes sure mutual benefit between the Group
and customers.

The Group strives to create reliable and high-quality
services, strengthens the customer complaint mechanism,
tracks and improves the service quality, and provides
superior services to customers. The Group’s sales team
actively maintains a good relationship with customers and
communicates with customers through phone calls, site
visits and other forms. The Group requires employees to
actively respond to, follow up and timely solve customer
complaint or feedback while addressing customers’ queries
and improving problems in service, so as to continuously
upgrades the service quality and customer satisfaction of
the Group.

During the reporting period, there was no customer
complaints, and the customer satisfaction rate was 100%.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

4.4 Supply Chain Management

The Group attaches great importance to supplier
management. In accordance with the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Bid invitation and Bidding, the
Regulations on the Implementation of Law of the People's
Republic of China on Bid invitation and Bidding, and other
laws and regulations, the Group formulates internal rules

T FFH BRBLERKERRAT 61

R 45
of Wik

-

o

He
=0 )

4. EmEFEE

4.4 HrEgEEE

AEE+HDERHEAEE - KE(P
FEARKMBEBERITE) - (FEAR
HKMBERIRRBEEIRD) FERE
B BIECRBERINED) SAHBRES
B BREZHERNEAN - BRAK
R RERBOGR  BEERHR

and regulations such as the Regulations on Procurement, ABTEEARE 2EBERQLE B
strictly reviews the entry, assessment and withdrawal of B AT B ESE -
suppliers to ensures the compliance of procurement. The
Group practices responsible procurement with partners
and comprehensively orchestrates a fair, transparent and
sustainable supply chain.
Table: Number of Suppliers of Shougang Fushan in ® ZE--FEEBLHERYE
2021
Indicator 2021 2020
BE —B--§ C"ZT-FF
Total Suppliers 261 236
HERAH
Number of suppliers by region China 261 236
HER A E
Overseas and Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan 0 0
BINRERE
Number of suppliers certificated Certificated by 1SO 9001 102 92
HERREHRE 151509001327
Certificated by 14001 70 60
151400138
Certificated by ISO 45001/0OHSAS 18001 70 60

JEISO 45001/0HSAS 18001335
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

4.4 Supply Chain Management (continued)

The Group fully incorporates the ESG concept into different
parts of supplier management and forms a complete
management standard and process.

e Supplier entry: The Group strictly implements the
Group's tendering policy and supplier entry standards,
and manages suppliers’ qualification check, entry,
audit, and assessment to establish stable supplier
resources. The Group based on the tendering policy
conducts infrastructure and environmental projects
and requires suppliers to submit audit documents
to ensure they are qualified enough during the
procurement process. In 2021, the Group added 43
new suppliers.

e Supplier assessment: The Group dynamically
manages its suppliers. The Group assesses suppliers
every six months by various factors such as
qualification, quality, delivery, price, technology, after-
sales service, quality of enterprise and cooperation.
The Group then rates suppliers with three grades:
excellent suppliers, qualified suppliers and unqualified
suppliers, and issues a supplier qualification
assessment report.

e  Supplier withdrawal: The Group dismisses the
supplier whose result in the assessment is unqualified.
In 2021, based on the results of the supplier
qualification report, the Group dismissed four
unqualified suppliers.

To implement the green operation and sustainable
development strategy, the Group integrates the ESG
concept into supplier management, encourages and
increases green procurement. The Group gives priority
to environmentally-friendly suppliers with low pollution
through site visits and qualification reviews. The Group
requires suppliers of production to present the certification
of occupational health and safety system and other relevant
certifications to promote the suppliers’ ESG management.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

WORKPLACE SAFETY

The Group insists that workplace safety is the guarantee of
employees’ lives and property and also the utmost task of
enterprise production and development. The Group practices the
concept — “safety is employees’ best welfare and the enterprise’s
greatest benefit”. The Group always prioritises workplace
safety management, focuses on improving safety management,
strengthens workplace safety training for employees and
relevant parties, optimises a safe operation environment, and
ensures the health and safety for front-line production and
management staff.

5.1 Safety Management System

In accordance with the Law of The people’s Republic of
China on Workplace Safety and the Regulations on Coal
Mine Safety, the Group increases investment in workplace
safety, with promotes standardisation on safety production
procedures, establishes comprehensive safety regulations,
position-specific responsibility rules, and position-specific
operation procedures, and timely eliminated causes
of insecurity in production facilities. At the same time,
the Group regularly held workplace safety meetings,
prepared safety management objectives, and assessed the
performance in strict accordance with relevant documents,
so as to fully ensure a safe and stable production
environment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued)

5.1 Safety Management System (continued)
Establishment of Safety System

Based on the principles of “those who take charge of
production and operation must also emphasise safety” and
“whoever is in charge is responsible”, the Group assigns
the senior management on at all levels fully accountable
for workplace safety, requests business departments to
respond safety and business guidance, requires their own
management to ensure business safety and enables safety
supervision department to conduct comprehensive safety
supervision. At the same time, the Group has made it clear
that professional management have the responsibilities to
manage their own management at all level, professional
safety, mine management to manage their mines safety,
and the deputy general manager of safety to supervise
overall safety, They report level by level from bottom to
top in strict accordance with the requirements, so as to
comprehensively and effectively supervise and ensure
employees’ workplace safety.

During the reporting period, the Group’s three coal mines
under continuous production passed the level Il workplace
safety standard issued by the Provincial Coal Mine Safety
Supervision Bureau, and their coal processing plants
obtained level | workplace safety standard issued by the
Municipal Energy Bureau.

Workplace Safety Management

The Group creates a workplace safety committee led by
various the general manager and deputy general manager
of safety and composed of the heads of departments. By
establishing a comprehensive safety accident emergency
management system, the committee covers 12 functions.
The Group holds 2 workplace safety meetings every month.
In 2021, the Group conducted monthly self-inspection of
workplace safety standardisation, quarterly assessment on
workplace safety standardisation with ranking, rewards and
punishments monthly major safety inspection and quarterly
major professional safety inspection, and special skilled
personnel is arranged to stay in the mine for supervision
during certain periods.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND E;i% CHER
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GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BE|E @
5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5. RE2EEE)
5.1 Safety Management System (continued) 51 Z2EERAE)
Workplace Safety Management (continued) LBRLEEEE(E)

Functions of Workplace Safety Committee ZEEEZESHE

1. Strictly implement the workplace safety 1. BEREBEEE —ZNERDIE  LRAZE]WH
responsibility system of deeply matched TREEEEH

responsibility and power;

2. Organise the formulation of annual and phased 2. X T FEMBEMENLZT2EEREFL 2

safety management plans and safety production SEBE THEHZEIESE
objectives, and regularly hold safety work
meetings;

3. Check and assess the implementation; 3. EEENMITIERETREMZRZ

4. Establish a long term mechanism for investigating 4. 2 EME BT R ENRBUES - EHIBEL
and treatment of potential accidents, and RZERNIRE :

regularly organise major safety inspections;

5. Formulate and improve the emergency rescue 5. #HIEMEE EK%E&FE%TUET@“ B A
plan for major accidents, urge all mines to TEESIETESR - ERERESR
improve the emergency rescue plan and organise
emergency drills in a timely manner;

6. Ensure the investment necessary for workplace 6. BEREZELEMMBENELRA @ EELEE
safety is in place and implement the project of TR
safety prevention technical measures;

7. Study, deploy, guide and coordinate the 7. Ifi%tEE « EEHBASELZE2AETIE
workplace safety in each mine;

S

}n
Eﬁa

8. Establish comprehensive accident emergency 8. &3/ fi& % B HUE = HIE
rescue system;

9. Supervise, inspect, guide and coordinate 9. B - & - B AL LEEREEIIT
workplace safety education and training; E

10. Implement various efforts in workplace safety; 10. IFSELEEETEREE ;

11. Promote the application of workplace safety 11. HEER L 2 £ ER SRR
technology and research;

12. Examine and approve the reward scheme for 12. BEHLZ2AEMERE RN ER TR &
outstanding contributions to workplace safety, FEHEREHNEREER °
and examine and approve the opinions to handle
major accidents.

Table: Functions of Workplace Safety Committee xR ZEEEZEEREE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued)

5.1 Safety Management System (continued)
Workplace Safety Management (continued)

An incident has occurred in Zhaiyadi Coal Mine in the
late of June 2021 in which one person died. According
to the investigation being performed by the third party,
this incident would be classified as a general incident.
According to the relevant rules and regulations in the
Mainland China, Zhaiyadi Coal Mine had suspended
production for comprehensive checking and it had already
passed all checking and resumed its normal production in
the early of August 2021.

Table: Workplace Safety Key Performance Indicator
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Indicator Unit 2021 2020 2019
= B —EB-—fF —ETEF —ET-NEF
Safety incidents Cases 3 7 3
LEEW (&3
Employee work-related injuries Cases 3 7 3
BTITEREZE (&3
Working days lost due to work-related injuries Days 90 210 90
BTTHBERTIEAH =
Employee work-related fatalities Person 1 0 0
BIRTIRTAE A
Rate of Employee work-related fatalities % 0 0 0
BTETITHALLE %

In 2021, the Group invested sufficient resources in
workplace safety, mainly for optimising the information
management system of workplace safety and promoting its
digitisation and standardisation to achieve stable results of
workplace safety.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND I%{fa‘, HER
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) ERmE@®

5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5. R24E(E)

5.2 Occupational Health and Safety 5.2 BiERRELTE

The Group strictly abides by the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Work Safety, and the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases. The Group continues to improve
the mechanism, strengthen training and education, invest
sufficient money, deepen the treatment at the source and
enhance supervision and inspection as per the prevention
of the occupational disease under Regulations on Coal
Mine Safety, so the efforts in occupational health have
been operating effectively in accordance with the law and
regulations. The Group further improves the employees’
ability to protect themselves, regularly carries out an
occupational health check, and creates a people-oriented
safe and healthy work environment for employees.

Disbursing Safety Protective Equipment

The Group allocates sufficient funds to purchase protective
gears from the safety-related expenses every year to
equip and upgrade employees with clothes, safety hats,
dust masks, waterproof boots, trackers, etc. The Group
strengthens the safety publicity, education and training
among employees in the workplace, and strengthens
employees’ understanding of safety risk factors.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued)

5.2 Occupational Health and Safety (continued)

Organising Regular Health Check

The Group continues to promote the establishment
and improvement of occupational health management
measures, strengthen health checks and monitoring
on employees, set up occupational health records and
improve the environment in operation sites. The Group
conducts pre-employment health check-ups and annual
occupational health checks for employees exposed
to occupational hazards in strict accordance with the
regulations, The Group also publicises the core contents of
occupational diseases and their prevention and control and
comprehensively ensures employees avoid work-related
health problems or occupational hazards.
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RE  HEK

=

SRS @

5. RE4HEH)

52 BERRERZZ(R)

AEEKBEDETREBEREER
RIEFEE - MARETRBREE  BUR
XREEER  NEEXRSERR - AR
EERRBAEHEEREEERRN
BTHEIT AR RR BTN TEHRE
Rt - SERBERBLEETHEDN
BOAR - 2HURES T#EETIE
HEARERESIRERSE -

Picture: Occupational Health Check
CREERRE



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued)

5.3 Stakeholder Safety Management

Since the operation of the mines, the Group has invested
massive manpower and resources to implement safety
measures for stakeholders such as “one ventilation and
three preventions”, emergency drill and fire management,
and regularly carrying out on-site inspections on
contractors. The Group has always implemented the
original intention of prioritising human life and health to
drive all safety-related work and practice the safety goal.

Management Measures of “One Ventilation and
Three Preventions”

The Group places importance to mine ventilation, gas
prevention, coal dust prevention and fire extinguishing
("one ventilation and three preventions”) for safe
production in the coal mine, establishes a “one ventilation
and three preventions” management system led by the
chief engineer. The Group establishes one ventilation and
three prevention department to supervise and guide the
due diligence on “one ventilation and three prevention” in
the mine. The responsible department prepares the guide
on “one ventilation and three preventions” management,
formulates and inspects the objectives of ventilation and
gas extraction; the Group organises monthly meetings
and carries out the quarterly special inspection on “one
ventilation and three preventions” in the three coal mines
during production. In 2021, 1,336 hazards were found in
the three mines, and all of them have been rectified.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued)

5.3 Stakeholder Safety Management (continued)

Management Measures of “One Ventilation and
Three Preventions” (continued)

In 2021, the Group updated equipment for “one
ventilation and three preventions” toward digitalisation.
The automatic damper installed in the Group opened
automatically when vehicles and personnel passed to avoid
personnel injury. At the same time, the use of remote
control local fan system shortens the start-up time of the
local fan and effectively avoids gas overrun caused by the
delayed gas drainage due to cumbersome procedures.
After using the local fan startup procedure, there was no
gas overrun after a short power failure. The Group invested
resources to purchase 1000m-drilling rigs, controlled gas in
the mining area, pre-pumped coal seam gas, and shortened
the drainage cycle. The Group adopted a nitrogen injection
fire extinguishing system to take multiple measures to
ensure the safe and orderly production of each mine.
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Picture: Nitrogen Generation System Device in Mine Panel at Zhaiyadi Coal Mine
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND I%{% CHER
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) ERmE@®
5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5. R24E(E)

5.3 Stakeholder Safety Management (continued) 5.3 HEAFZ2EE (&)

[—E=E | &R ()

Management Measures of “One Ventilation and
Three Preventions” (continued)

Case: Training on “One Ventilation and Three
Preventions”

In 2021, to effectively prevent and resolutely curb gas,
fire and other accidents in the coal mine, and improve
employees’ professional and technical competence, the
Group comprehensively sorted out the safety risks in different
operational procedures, positions and operation sites of the

=6 - [—B=Rr13E

R-ZB_—%F  AREREUHEMNER
BEIRBERL - AKFER - THIRSE
TEXRRMEE - H—B=F | TEEE
ERIRE - TR - (EERSEREME
RETEERE  KERBUIHABAZE

PR FLHT 5 =8 - &3 AR a3 1
B EL RSB - REPAFRRER
BT

“One Ventilation and Three Preventions”, carefully learned
the lessons of much recent domestic coal mine gas and other
accidents, formulated training plans for different positions and
held learning and training. The training conducted during the
reporting period is as follows:

BFERRZRERAN—B=M]TE
H AR B AR HE T TR

e  Carried out training on relevant knowledge of “One e
Ventilation and Three Preventions” every quarter;

NABRRIEMMRTETERE

BHRBBE

e  Carried out practical operation and theoretical learning e
for “gas extraction workers” of special types of work in
June;

NARR2BSE S EERIERAEA
AE LR

e  Carried out 2 training sessions on relevant knowledge e
among mine ventilation team leaders in August;

NARE BASHRESBISEE
EABBEI

e  Retrained the special operation personnel in each mine in e
batches every month from September;

T—AE—B=P0IehHEBERD R
KARNETTT KRAEE - 5l -

e  Conducted joint study and training on Guides on Fire e
Prevention and Extinguishing in coal mines in the regular
meeting of “One ventilation and Three Prevention" in
November.
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ZEEEGE
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5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued)

v

5.3 Stakeholder Safety Management (continued)

Management Measures of “One Ventilation and
Three Preventions” (continued)

[—E=E | &R ()

Case: Research and Practical Application of Safety
Learning

To specify the development direction and improvement goals
of “One Ventilation and Three Preventions” in the next step
and further enhance the Group’s “One Ventilation and Three
Prevention” management. The One Ventilation and Three
Preventions Department organised the heads of various
departments and professional technicians in three coal mines
in production to hold on-site seminars on benchmarking
learning and conduct research and discussion with peer
companies. Through mutual communication, the Group finds
out the gaps between the Group and advanced mines in terms
of equipment, technology and management, and consolidates
the foundation of “One Ventilation and Three Preventions” to
provide a reliable guarantee for safe production.

Internal learning and sharing:

NEPEAEEE

e The explosion-proof cover can be fixed remotely when
the main fan is reverse ventilation
TBRARKERERpREEIZETE

e Main fan switching without stopping

IR RS

e  Special ladder and toolbox for gas personnel shift
management board and air receiver

R RZME R RERARERAMN R TAME

e  Detectors hanging

R 2s B

R REBEATRERER

RAET —F[—B=F1EREN T A RE
B R  E—FRAANEE—B=]
BHEKF - — B[P AP AR = R E R
BRI EEAMEERMA R BRYR
BERSHNE - MR DB
WE - AKRBEBEBMAERN  FEEKEA
FTEBHAERE  RMMERTEMNT
R ATHBE—B=ITEER AL
RHAERMAERE -

Research and benchmarking with peer
companies:

SR EAL AR AR -

° Control the gas with a 1,000 m-drill in
the mine and explore and drain water
at the same time
TR R T oREMETTRLETRIE - I
B AR 3 B IR UK ETS

e  The protective device of gas added
blowout prevention buffer pressure
relief extraction airbag
AN EL BB 8 4% & R B B SR T 0B o

KE

e  Formulate gas management plan
HERERE R &

e  The evaluation system of gas drainage
unit

RET B R B IR H R4

e  Hole sealing and connection technology
of gas drainage boreholes

RET R B L SR TE

e Instrument inspection

FEasER AR
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5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5. Z2EEE)
5.3 Stakeholder Safety Management (continued) 53 HEAFZ2EE (&)

Contactor Safety Management FROBLLEE
The Group focus on the safety management in AEEEIBIERTHNLEER 8
construction, including the inspection and training of its BHEEETINABEBIAENERE
own employees and contractors’ construction personnel, HEF| - RELT 2O TERG - WRE
the provision of safe work conditions, and the protection AEEZRERBEES - A5E@A
of personnel from health threats and injuries. The Group MIZ2ERERERISER - BIRE
ensures the life safety of the contractor's construction BEBIABNEGLZE o

personnel through the construction safety management
system and on-site assessment.
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5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5. R24E(E)

5.3 Stakeholder Safety Management (continued)

Contactor Safety Management (continued)

53 HELSRZEEE@R

REBLEEE (H)

Case: Workplace Safety Management Assessment on the
Construction Site

The Group conducts workplace safety management
assessments on the construction site for contractors. On-site
workplace safety management includes placing the general
layout of the construction site, project snapshot board and
workplace safety system board in a clearly visible place at the
main entrance and exit; the contractor must provide necessary
protective gears for the construction personnel while the
construction personnel should correctly use those gears in
accordance with the current industrial standards. The Group
also posts safety warning signs at eye-catching positions in
dangerous and hazardous workplaces, which comply with
the provisions of the current national standard — Warning
Signs of Occupational Hazards in Workplace. The contractors
also conduct regular health checks and training for personnel
engaged in operations with occupational hazards in line with
relevant regulations.
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Picture: Old Office Building Reconstruction Project at Jinjiazhuang Coal Mine
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GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) =
5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5.

5.3 Stakeholder Safety Management (continued)
Emergency Management

The Group adheres to the policy of “safety and prevention
first”, establishes and improves the emergency plan
system, and carries out special emergency drills and
emergency training. In the safety training for all employees
at the beginning of 2021, “Liangongbao” was used to
train employees’ emergencies online. In June 2021, the
video recorded the mine refuge chamber as a tutorial. In
regular operation, the Group took full use of the pre-shift
meeting to educate and train employees on emergency risk
avoidance, and self-rescue measures. During the year, the
three coal mines in production prepared 17 emergency drill

plans as per the annual plan, and organised 17 emergency
drills, with a total of 1,184 participants.
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Case: Electric Shock Emergency Drill In Central Substation
of Xingwu Coal Mine

In September 2021, Xingwu Coal Mine of the Group organised
the electric shock emergency and on-site response, covering
the whole process from the occurrence, duty officer cutting off
the power supply, rescuing the injured, eliminating potential
safety hazards and investigating the causes. After the drill
was successfully completed, the participants exchanged their
views on the correct measures and experiences learned from
the simulation scene and summarised how to deal with such
accidents and what needs to be improved. Through various
emergency drills, the Group made every employee aware
that they should actively abide by workplace safety operation
procedures and policies, developed their emergency response
skills, and ensured the smooth progress of workplace safety in
the mine.
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Picture: Electric Shock Emergency Drill In Central Substation of Xingwu Coal Mine
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
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5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued)

5.3 Stakeholder Safety Management (continued)

Fire Safety Management

The Group adheres to the fire-fighting policy of “prevention
first and also elimination”, enhances the intensity and
frequency of fire-fighting drills, increases investment in fire-
fighting, and gradually improves fire-fighting infrastructure.
The Group strives to reduce fire accidents and fully protect
the life of employees and the property of the Group.

Safety Improvement Measures

As a high-risk industry, the coal mining industry has its
special situation where disaster problems in gas, coal dust,
fire, roof, and rockburst are more prominent. In response to
the National Three-Year Action Plan for Special Rectification
of Workplace Safety issued by the Workplace Safety
Committee of the State Council, the Group formulated
and issued its own Three-Year Action Plan for Special
Rectification of Workplace Safety which will be effective
until December 2022, including four stages: mobilisation
and deployment, investigation and rectification, centralised
tackling and consolidation and improvement. The Group
has comprehensively investigated the existing risks,
carefully identified and scientifically assessed them, and
formulated effective prevention measures. For loopholes,
problems and major hazards, the Group improved and
implemented the responsibility chain, established system,
policies, key projects and protection mechanism, and
eventually achieve fundamentally eliminated the accident
hazards. The Group also has established and perfected the
system to investigate and prevent safety hazards, mainly
by making the coal mines more mechanised, automated
and intellectualised, and enhanced the system and capacity
together for workplace safety governance.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND I%{ﬁ HER
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5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5. R24E(E)

5.3 Stakeholder Safety Management (continued)

Creating a Safe Work Environment

The Group endeavors to reduce the incidence of
occupational hazards and occupational diseases. To ensure
a healthy and safe work environment for employees,
reduce the health and safety risk at the workplace and
improve environmental quality, the Group comprehensively
promotes system optimisation and equipment upgrading
projects.

53 HEAFZZEE(E)
HERDIEEIEE

AEEREERSNRERERTEN
M ERELE - SHRE T THERE
MiEEZE REETIESHRERLZEH
mOER NEREBEE  AKEEZE
HERRBL  REARTRERER -

Case: Intellectualised Fully Mechanized Mining
Equipment for Thin Coal Seam

As the main production equipment at the coal mine, the
mining equipment directly affects the output of the mine and
the completion of tasks.

The Notice on Printing and Distributing the Guiding Opinions
On Accelerating the Intelligent Development of Coal Mines
(FGY [2020] No. 283) required all coal enterprises to actively
construct and upgrade the Intellectualised fully mechanised
mining panel, reduce operators, improve safety factors,
lower labor intensity, improve work environment, and
gradually realise man-free mining or few manned mining
Liulin County [2020] No. 103 Guidance on Accelerating the
Intelligent Development of Coal Mines in the County requires
local mining companies to achieve man-free operation or
few manned operations in the fully mechanised mining
panel in 2021. In 2021, the Group purchased a new set of
Intellectualised fully mechanised mining equipment for thin
coal seams, the intact rate of mining equipment increased by
3%, and the failure rate decreased by 1.5%. Five new sets of
intelligent tunneling equipment were successfully accepted by
the county and municipal industry management departments,
greatly reducing employees’ intensity of work and improving
their work environment.
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5.3 Stakeholder Safety Management (continued) 53 HEAFLZ2EE (&
Creating a Safe Work Environment (continued) HEZRIEERE(E)

Case: Intellectualised Fully Mechanised Mining Xf|: BEES#LEREREE
Equipment for Thin Coal Seam (continued)

Picture: Intellectualised Mining
R bR

R g

Picture: Intellectualised Tunneling
C B bR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND I%{ﬁ HER
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5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5. RE2EEE)
5.4 Developing the Culture of Safety 54 ZE2XILERE
The Group values the life of employees and contractors’ AEESEEREIHEHABREMEIAE
construction personnel. According to the Regulations on WAEBRZE  RBREBEZZ2HE) - &
Coal Mine Safety, the Group actively carries out various BARSELEHAEI - RBAZEE
safety education and training, enhances the technical FABHRIMRIERT  RATESEZ R
operation skills of all operators, organises safety emergency EHUERIEE E TEEEMMESN - 2
drills in advance, improves employees’ ability to deal with HRALXEEEEH#HNL RN -

accidents, and comprehensively raises workplace safety
awareness and ability in safety.

Workplace Safety Training ZEEELE

The Group train employees through teaching, video, AEERABER  SHEHE - £BX
experience sharing, lecture and discussion. For the T B BEHEmRE B TSI
needs for core technology training closely related to the HREEETEBREZZMNZORMNE
production process, the safety training center objectively BT - —RAT2EINPOIREE
analyses, studies and formulates practical plans to EMEIIESR - BE LREEFFIFAR
effectively complete the training as per requirements SENER BEESONTARGTUEE
collected and in combination with the objectives of the BREVETE - BREII TENEREE T
requlatory departments and the Group. In 2021, the Group e RZEZ—F  AEEFARRS
carried out training every month and 6,239 employees Al - BT #5r6,239 AR EEE - A
participated in the training on average, 22 training hours B EBRF22/) EF o

for each person.

Table: Statistics of Workplace Safety Training xR RR2EEEIGST
Indicator Unit 2021 2020
BE By —EB-—F —TEF
Employee workplace safety drill and training Person 3,413 3,694
BT HEE BRI AR
Hours per person 20 20
NSk T
Employee occupational health and safety training ~ Person 3,413 3,694
BTBXRERERTHE AR
Hours per person 4 4

Ay
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5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued)

5.4 Developing the Culture of Safety (continued)

Workplace Safety Training (continued)

v

RE -HER
SRS @

ZEEEGE
5.4 ZEXLER(H)
B ER ()

Case: Training for Personnel with Certificates in “Three
Posts” in Luliang City

In 2021, to strengthen the training of workplace safety
knowledge and skills for enterprise principals, workplace safety
management personnel and operators in special operation
posts, and further raise the workplace safety awareness and
safety production management in “three posts” in high-
risk industries, the Group actively responded to the offline
training and examination requirement of Luliang Emergency
Management Bureau, and fully asked employees to obtain
certificates and receive training before onboard so that 100%
of the employees work with certificates.

e  The principals and safety management personnel of the
enterprise are educated and trained in strict accordance
with national policies and guidelines, and the personnel
should be timely organised for off-duty training in
qualified companies and 100% of personnel are supposed
to obtain the qualification with certificates.

e  The initial training and retraining of special operation
personnel shall be organised by the safety training
center, and the name lists of trainees shall be thoroughly
reported by each unit in advance. After review, the Group
uniformly arranges the training to ensure a sufficient
number of special operation personnel as required, with
100% of employees holding certificate and accepting
training.

vio X60 - ZEIS5
2022104121 15:09
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Picture: Personnel with Certificates
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5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5.

5.4 Developing the Culture of Safety (continued)
Publicise the Culture of Safety

By carrying out safety culture activities such as “safety
month” where employee technical competitions are held,
the Group generates workplace safety knowledge and
raises employees’ workplace safety awareness and sense
of responsibility. The Group also builds a safety sharing
platform, an all-around safety culture system and a safety
education and training system, laying a good foundation
for the Group’s workplace safety.

SRS @

ZEEEGE
54 ZEX{LERGE)
ZEXEE

AEBBBRARIZEEHAIE TR
HRELE2XES  ERLELEEN
B RBET LA EERMEER
BREREXRFE  BRESULZEX
EREMZEHREEIRE  REAEE
RELEEFERIFER -

Case: Technical Competition

In June 2021, the Group carried out activities such as safety
activity month where the technical competition of electric
fitters, and pointing-at oral expression by winch drivers and
belt conveyor drivers in the safety activity month. The Group
selected 6 chief spot inspection technicians from more than
500 special operation personnel through multi-link assessments
such as theoretical examination and fault handling. The contest
standardised employees’ operation behavior, increased their
awareness of technology and specialised research technology
and strengthened the comprehensive quality of spot inspection
personnel.

RO BMLEEAE

RZZB-_—FRA A&ERZ2EH A
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Picture: Spot Inspection Technician Contest
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT

Protecting the ecological environment, coping with climate
change and maintaining energy and resource safety are
common challenges facing the world. Adhering to the concept
of green development and ecological civilisation, the Group
actively identifies and responds to climate risks, comprehensively
strengthens the environmental management system, establishes
and improves the environmental management mechanism,
and effectively integrates low-carbon emission reduction
into all aspects of daily operation. By improving resource
utilisation efficiency, reducing the impact of pollutants on
the environment, strengthening biodiversity protection and
continuously improving the level of green development.

6.1 Coping with Climate Risks

Climate change is a systemic challenge facing the world.
In response to China’s national goal of achieving carbon
neutrality by 2060, exactly and completely implements the
requirements of “Action Plan For Carbon Peaking by 2030”
published by the State Council, the Group is committed to
formulate effective emission reduction strategies, examine
thoroughly the carbon status, reduce energy consumption
and increase the share of renewable energy, so as to not
only effectively reduce greenhouse gas emissions, but also
commit to achieve the 2°C temperature control target
stipulated in Paris Agreement which reached by the parties
to the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate
Change (UNFCCC).

In 2021, the Group actively identified and responded to
the transformation risks and entity risks faced by the Group
due to estimated change with reference to the Task Force
on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD"). The
Group has developed a list of climate risk identification
and assessment. Combined with the framework of the
Group's comprehensive risk management system and
its own business and operation features, the Group has
developed special measures to deal with climate risks,
scientifically manage and deal with various climate risks,
and improve the Group's adaptability to climate change, so
as to mitigate the impact of climate change on the Group's
business operations.
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

6.1 Coping with Climate Risks (continued)

Table: List of Climate Change Risk Identification
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6.1 EH R IZE (&)

® I RERSCEARBEIEE

are stricter. The Group needs to improve
the comprehensiveness and accuracy of
environmental information disclosure, which
may increase research or development
expenditure and compliance cost

A BRNEEEL - ERTSTRBES
HOERRRBESNRERRTHRA - &
SHRETHRARRESREN ALY £
BRI SR gENAENRRARE S -
EMARKA

Risk type Risk classification Risk point Risk description Risk response measures of the Group
ERER ERE5 BB BT FEERRENER
Transformation risk | Policy and legal Energy structure and o Itisestimated that the national energy structure | o Formulate objectives and strategies for energy
BERR risks energy use will shift toward nonpetrochemical energy in conservation and emission reduction of
BERERRR RERR the long run, which may affect the energy use enterprises
HRER structure of each production unit of the Group HIE R EE R B B RRR
and increase the operating cost
REGHAZEREREERAERA{ER T | o Develop energy-saving and consumption
ﬁﬁ@%%$§.%$§$7ﬁﬁ%zm RRgE reducing technologies and introduce advanced
BYRERTEN equipment
e iR - SR ERR
o Increase the business transformation of clean
energy
MAEE R RN ERER
Environmental o Requirements from international and domestic | o Track and learn the latest policy documents
disclosure requlatory authorities, capital market rating Bt SEEFOBRM
requirements agencies and other for the disclosure of
RREERBREX enterprise environmental related information | ¢ Improve the Group's environmental information

disclosure

TEARENREEERE
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

6.1 Coping with Climate Risks (continued)

Table: List of Climate Change Risk Identification
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B

HER
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6. REBEGE

6.1 EYRIZER (&)

*®  RIRBERRRERBEE ()

(continued)
Risk type Risk classification Risk point Risk description Risk response measures of the Group
BRER BB &5 BB BT FRERBEYER
Transformation risk | Policy and legal Carbon trading market | ¢ The government continues to improve the | o  Training carbon trading professionals
(continued) risks (continued) | R 5T5 carbon emission trading market and operating BERRFEEAS
BERR(E) BEREZRR(E) mechanism, and the Group is a coal enterprise,

may be included in the carbon emission trading
market, resulting in an increase in operating
costs and low-carbon investment costs. At the
same time, the quota and carbon price will also
bring the risk of increased performance costs to
the enterprise

BRAE T ERERR TS RETHE - &
SEERERTELE  TRERBARIN
R5M%  BRRANEENA - ERLEE
RAEN BE BRERIE  REAZH
SREZFREONAEMN AR

Prepare for carbon market performance reserve

irmmARARE

Pollutant emission risk

ARMRER

The government is constantly tightening the
regulation of pollutant emissions. The pollutant
emission risk of enterprises will continue to
increase according to China’s policy of reducing
consumption and emission reduction, resulting
in the increasing operational investment of
enterprises in reducing consumption and
emission reduction

BREEMHUZ SR NHNES  RERE
PRREBHIOEER - CEMNSENFHERET
EEM RECXARERATANEZRA

TEIEM

Conduct comprehensive and detailed carbon
investigation of enterprises

HRFETREFANRAE
Prepare the objectives and steps of consumption
reduction and emission reduction

HERRESN BB RIR

Regularly monitor the carbon emission data of

enterprises
ERBHCRNRARAE
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

6.1 Coping with Climate Risks (continued)

Table: List of Climate Change Risk Identification
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6.1 EH R IZE (&)

*®  RIRBERRRERBEE ()

(continued)
Risk type Risk classification Risk point Risk description Risk response measures of the Group
EBRER BRES BB B rEEEREYER
Transformation risk | Policy and legal Carbon tax o Under the "double carbon” policy, the | o  Accumulate and learn the knowledge related to
(continued) risks (continued) R government is constantly increasing fiscal and carbon tax and prepare for it
BERRE BRREERR (@) tax policy for “double carbon” policy. As a coal HREBRHERNEER  fITEHER

enterprise, the Group may be included in the
scope of requlations, resulting in an increase in
costs
EIERIMET - B EENS RIEH IR
EMBRRESS ARBERERAEL
2 AUReRBAEEEE  SREBNAL
il

Compliance risk
AHER

In the long run, it is estimated that the
formulation of domestic and international laws
related to climate change tends to be stricter,
which may increase the compliance risk of the
Group, including the difficulty to get approved
RAGHEANERBRR R LB AR
HEBRESR R eREAEENARAR
£ REBEENEENAS

Track the update and development of laws and
strictly abide by laws and regulations

BLERNERNER  BRETERER

Litigation risk
FLER

Land occupation, environmental pollution and
resource occupation of mine construction may
lead to litigation of the company and increase
financial expenditure

BAREINTHER  BR5E  ERERS
BRI EERR AT ERD - EMF B

Actively communicate with residents in the
community and listen to their opinions

BREERFER BBEUEERER

Discharge of hazardous wastes after treatment

BERENERRIN

Restore the environment after the use of
resources

BiFEREAENERRELE
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. ZEERE(E)

6.1 Coping with Climate Risks (continued)

Table: List of Climate Change Risk Identification

6.1 EH R IZE (&)

*®  RIRBERRRERBEE ()

(continued)
Risk type Risk classification Risk point Risk description Risk response measures of the Group
EBRER BRES BB B rEEEREYER
Transformation risk | Technological risk Energy saving and o The low carbonization of the process will | o  Increase technical research and integrate
(continued) BiER consumption lead to increased operating costs, increased industry-university research resources
BERRE reduction technology R&D expenditure on new and alternative MARTHE - BREEHER
investment technologies, increased investment costs in
BB RERARA technology development, etc ¢ Increase investment in scientific research

TENERCSTILMELHA - EMAE
MEREEMHEIL  ENRIFENRE
A%

EMETRA

o Trace the development and application of new
technologies in the industry

B TERA RN R ENER

o Feasibility analysis of technical replacement

RINERRR TN

o Establish energy-saving and consumption
reduction technology test points to reduce large-
scale losses caused by technology replacement
RUSERERGARS  RERRGERE
RAAREER

Market risk
THEER

Changes in market
demand

T5BED

o As the national energy structure reform are
underway, the market demand for coal may
decline, and customers may tend to choose low-
carbon energy products
BERRREBIENEE  THURRR
NERAIREET TR TFIREEMER
EERMERER

»  Develop and cultivate new revenue models or
profit growth
RERERMNBTIER SRR RE

o Establish a new model of coordination between
coal production and ecological protection

RURREERERREDROMER
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

6.1 Coping with Climate Risks (continued)

Table: List of Climate Change Risk Identification
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(continued)
Risk type Risk classification Risk point Risk description Risk response measures of the Group
EBRER BRES BB B rEERREHER
Transformation risk | Market risk Promote clean energy o Influenced by carbon emission reduction | ¢  Develop low-carbon and energy-saving
(continued) (continued) use and substitution targets, both China and other countries are technologies and promote the transformation of
BERRE TERR(E) in conventional promoting clean energy use and substitution cleaner industries
energy reduction in conventional energy reduction in the coal RERRS R EEEXSR( B
EEEZNAER market, which might be the market trend of the
HEER coal industry in the future o Develop and introduce technological talents
ERAENERRHER BOPET  BETE in innovation, and increase the research on
BERRTAMEZNBANAZER B0 energy conservation and consumption reduction
HERARERITENTISES technologies
BERNERMERAL - MAH LR
ik
»  Replace or upgrade equipment and facilities and
eliminate energy-extensive equipment
BRATRRERE  BASREELRE]
Harder toraise money | o Due to the risks related to climate change, the | ¢  Find the key points to transform business
REAREEA fund-raising standard of the coal industry has cleaner and increase the attention and trust of

been tightened, making it hard to raise money
REEERREEENER  FRTENR
ERETHNE - BEREEA

the capital market
BHEBBRIBENERY REEAMS
BIEAGEEE

o Actively cooperate with the financial agency
and insurance brokers to exchange the Group’s
strategy and risk management practices,
including climate risk management and the
resilience of the product portfolio
BPRRRBALARRESE  TRAEE
HEELEREREE  REMMERARE
BRERAREREA NI
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% #HER

ERHE @
6. IR (E)

6.1 EH R IZE (&)

Table: List of Climate Change Risk Identification xR CRARBEEE @)
(continued)
Risk type Risk classification Risk point Risk description Risk response measures of the Group
EBRER BRES BB B rEEEREYER
Transformation risk | Reputation risk Investor attention o Investors and other stakeholders pay more | o  Put more emphasis on climate change in the
(continued) BEAR REEBT attention to climate change, the Group’s poor Group, identify and respond to climate change
BERR(E) performance in environmental protection and risks and opportunities as soon as possible,

carbon emission reduction will not only affect
its public image but also will be distrusted and
unfavoured by investors and customers
BEREENAMAGHE I UREELER
B AEEERRERAEAENTRERR
TEEVELARVS  heGHREENEF
WRMEE - TXH

strengthen management and improve corporate
image

MAAEEHRERCHEREE 2285
B RACEVA

Establish regular communication channels with
investors or customers, and timely feedback the
company's actions on climate issues to improve
attention

BUEREAGZPHTHERRE IR
BREEEREHBAENTE NRABT
&

Strengthen the expectation management of
investors and customers

MESREEEEPHHZER

Corporate image

REFR

As the public's attention focus on climate
change, as the coal enterprise, the corporate
social image may be affected to some extent
BEHEARERRRNET  FREZH
HEVEIRER-—EVE

Continuously strengthen the Group's
environmental protection management, control
greenhouse gas emissions and pollutant
emissions, and ensure better environmental
performance

TIMEARERRAANERLE  #iHFR
SREFHEHNANS AR BRFEAE
BEARY

Carry out publicity on environmental protection
and energy conservation, and establish channels
for communication and exhibitions to the public
FREROESE BUEREARNERA
RRARE
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. ROBREE
6.1 Coping with Climate Risks (continued) 6.1 FEX KRR (&
Table: List of Climate Change Risk Identification xR CRARBEEE @)
(continued)
Risk type Risk classification Risk point Risk description Risk response measures of the Group
EBRER BRES BB B rEEEREYER
Physical risk Acute risk Extreme rainfall/ o Extreme rainfall, waterlog and flash flood may | e Strictly stop production and evacuate personnel
ERAR SHER waterlog/flash flood threaten the safety of production equipment in extreme weather worse than the blue
WREE/ N5/ and personnel warning of extreme weather to ensure the safe
T BN - mERLLTEEREERER production of the mine
ABR2RERHE BRRTEBERAREEREN LEARA

FERANE RERAZEEE
»  Road collapse, wall collapse, landslide,
debris flow, etc., and coal mine | ¢ Arrange people on duty 24 hours in the

displacement and settlement caused flood season, and strictly adhere to the three

by external forces may result in safety inspections in the flood season in the daily

accidents operation of the mine = investigation before the

BRER - BREES LEER RR rain, patrol in the rain and verification after the

S BRIMNBEBA TR & rain

RZ2FH SR E  RENE - BAERE LD
BRERIEHHE  RPUE  WREEIN

»  The flooding risk of plants and mining AE=%

areas located in low-lying areas increases,
damaging the production facilities and
equipment of mining areas and coal
processing plants, affecting the supply
stability. Flooding inside the mine will
easily cause abnormal water inrush in the
coal mine and threaten the workplace
safety of employees
fIREEHRNEE  BEEKERE
m WREE  ERBNEERHR
- FEReREL  NPRE5EN
BRATELEZEASEY FEET
EERZ:
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Table: List of Climate Change Risk Identification
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6. REBEGE

6.1 EH R IZE (&)

*®  RIRBERRRERBEE ()

cost of temperature regulation of facilities, and
generates the cost of facility maintenance
BRBREARENEIREZ2AR - BN%
BRIERERENANESKA  EEREL
BRERA

(continued)
Risk type Risk classification Risk point Risk description Risk response measures of the Group
BRER BB &5 BB BT rEEEREYER
Physical risk Acute risk Extreme heat o Extreme high temperature increases the health | o Formulate an emergency plan for heatstroke at
(continued) (continued) BRAXR and safety risks of employees, increases the a high temperature
ERER(E) SHER(E) operation cost of temperature requlation of HERRPBEREER
facilities, and generates the cost of facility
maintenance o Timely provide anti-heatstroke drugs for front-
BHRARRENEIRRZ2AR EN% line employees
BRIEREEEAAMESNA  EERiES RER—REIRENZER
BRERA
o Adjust the work hours as daily temperature
changes and try to avoid the high-temperature
period
RESKRRECRERERY TERMENT
#% ZEBRRRRR
o Carry out equipment inspection every day,
identify and handle abnormalities in time
BRRERREREMR REERRERRE
RUETRE
Extreme coldness o Extreme coldness increases the health and safety | o Strictly implement safety precautions and take
BRAR risks of employees, scales up the operation emergency measures in time for snowy and

icing roads on the plant and operation sites
HRERER  (FERSHRES  BREK
BWRR BEEBERZ LB RERNE
SREEE

Carry out equipment inspection every day,
identify and handle abnormalities in time
SRRRRBR2 MR IEERREEEE
RLETRE
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GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BRHRE @
6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. ZEERE(E)

6.1 Coping with Climate Risks (continued) 6.1 FEX KRR (&

Table: List of Climate Change Risk Identification xR RIEBCRARBEEFEE)

(continued)
Risk type Risk classification Risk point Risk description Risk response measures of the Group
EBRER BRES BB B rEERREHER
Physical risk Chronic risk Sea level rise o Destroy the existing coastal roads and railways, | ¢  Regularly monitor the rise of sea level for a
(continued) BiEkR AYE LA the migration from coastal cities to inland long time, research and judge the product
ERRRE affects the existing logistics routes transportation and export routes, and reduce
WERANEBEARERE - BN TR the impact caused by the interruption of
NEEBTLREYRERRE logistics routes
RENEHENSTELARR HHERE
BREORE  BRERMRBETEHERNY
iiiﬂ
Average temperature o Increase the risk of the heat wave, drought, and | ¢ Incorporate climate risk factors into the
change fire, and raise the maintenance cost of facilities construction of future engineering projects and
THRRHE and equipment the procurement of facilities and equipment
BIER - ER - ASEER - EmEER to improve the adaptability of production and
g ERERA operation under the background of long-term
climate change
BRERREZAARRIRERRRREIE
HERERS  RAEEEEERBARE(
HER TREEE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

6.2 Emission Management

The Group strictly abides by the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’'s Republic of China, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Air Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Solid Waste Pollution, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Noise Pollution and other environmental
protection laws and regulations. The Group also formulates
internal rules such as Regulations on Environmental
Protection and improves the environmental management
system. Starting from waste and pollutants, the Group
fully measures and reduces the impact of its operations
on the environment, and systematically improves its
environmental performance in an effort to achieve
harmonious coexistence with the natural environment. The
Group refined the emission management policies including
the Guide on Environmental Protection of Shanxi Liulin
Xingwu Coal Mine Co., Ltd., the Guide on Environmental
Protection of Shanxi Liulin Zhaiyadi Coal Industry Co., Ltd.,
and the Guide on Environmental Management of Shanxi
Liulin Jinjiazhuang Coal Industry Co., Ltd., strengthened the
monitoring of pollutant indicators, and regularly supervised
and inspected them to ensure the normal operation of
environmental protection facilities and the stably standard
discharge of pollutants. In 2021, the Group received no
environmental penalty due to environmental protection
management.
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ERHE @

6. FEBIREGE)
6.2 BrRMEE

AEEBBET(REARKMBERER
REE) ~ (hEARKMBEARIG R
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RaE) FERRBERER - $IE
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(LA RERBEEREEQFR
BREEBAR) - (UEIIMEERRK
EARQPRRREE AR MU
NS FEREERATREEEER
MAD - BETE RS RMIERER
B FRAEBHFREERS @ BRF
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Mo MZF_—%F  AKRERARRE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. REEE(E)

6.2 Emission Management (continued) 6.2 HE M EE ()

Environmental Management Organisational System

The Group implements the environmental protection
guidelines, policies, laws, regulations, standards and
environmental protection management policies of the
state and the supervising units. The three coal mines in
production set up environmental protection committees
respectively. The mine manager acts as the chairman and
the technical manager acts as the deputy chairman, and the
committee is composed of the main principals of various
departments in the mine. The committee is supported by
an office which is set in the mine environmental protection
division and it is responsible for the regular supervision and
management of environmental protection. The chief of
the environmental protection division acts as the principal
of the office. In 2021, one coal mine in production of the
group had an effective environmental management system
certificated by I1SO 14001, and the other two coal mines in
production are preparing the certification.

Supervision, Management and Assessment System

Environmental protection departments are set up under the
three coal mines in the Group. The department supervises
and manages water pollution prevention, air pollution
prevention, solid waste disposal and pollutant emission
control in the areas under the environmental responsibility
of each mine, mainly on the main coal yards, domestic
sewage treatment plants, mine water treatment plants,
third-party fleets, company operated by third parties,
etc. The environmental protection department combines
supervision and inspection with the grade assessment of
the departments involved in environmental protection
in the whole mine. What's more, the Group will fill in
the Form of Environmental Problems Supervision and
Inspection for any problems found on site, and sends it to
relevant departments in written form, requiring relevant
departments to rectify within a time limit and canceling
the name list after being accepted. The principal of the
department and the party concerned who fails to rectify
within the time limit or have other worse behaviors will be
deducted for integral assessment.

REEHEHEBERR

AEERBEERNTERM EHRIFR
TR R R AR ZEM
BHERBRETENE - - EEERE
DRRIREFREZES  ETAHER
A SETARITER  ZEHEE
EBIMFANEZAEAMENK - BRER
FRERRR AERRAPEBERET
B WRAZEEAHBREBIRET - K=
T-—FE AEEE—EEEFER
HEBERZENSO 14001) EAB K
AN - LA AT E R I T EHAE
BEHRETEH -

EEEEZRAE

AEE=-EEERE NIRRT B8R
KIZHRBIA - RRIFRA - ElRRRE
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g ORESBSMRRORE  BHS
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. REBEGE
6.2 Emission Management (continued) 6.2 HE M EE ()
Pollutant Discharge Management SERYHEEE
The sewage of the Group is sourced from mine water and AEEFKRBBERBRESFK - £EA
domestic water in the mining area, and the main pollutants K FESERYRELEFTEAENERA -
are chemical oxygen demand and ammonia nitrogen. The REBEREHE=FELNEAKEE
Group builds mine water treatment plants and sewage UhELSKEEIB YL - 2 O EREEISEY
treatment plants operated by third parties to fully control PSR, - RS AGERYER - B -
the discharge of pollutants and ensure that the sewage is RNEEEBREREEIKFAEIE - AR(K
discharged up to standard. At the same time, the Group FEBERIIKERRENENLR - E8)
utilises reclaimed water to reduce the waste and loss of FETEERSUESBENAKEIR -

water resources during production and efficiently and
properly utilise water resources with the help of advanced
technology.

Picture: Mine Water Treatment Plant
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

6.2 Emission Management (continued)
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6. REBEGE

Pollutant Discharge Management (continued)

The general solid waste of the Group mainly comes from
coal gangue produced by underground mining, while the
hazardous waste is mainly waste engine oil. The Group
centrally stored general solid waste in the exclusive area
for waste discharge, and hired a professional third party
for land reclamation and greening to improve resource
efficiency. At the same time, all hazardous waste has
been transferred to a qualified third party for centralised
disposal. The Group also explores how to comprehensively
utilise solid waste resources and strives to achieve the goal
of the reduced, recycled and harmless waste.

6.2 BFEMERE (F)

JTRY G EE ()

AEE-REBEZMEIZRAHFTH
RELNRITO  BEEENIERE
ol - ARECH -—REBERDET
FEEBTOREY  URAER
FZTARTHEEER L - ERER
AN ARAERENEIBERE
BENE=NETRE - AEBEER
RREEERNGEILNE  BHER
BEEMIRENL  BEREMEZ(EINAE
=

Picture: Green in the Gangue Landfill

AT AIRIEEAR

The Group has fully used gas oxidation heating technology
and air energy heat pump heating technology in 2020,
so it had no boiler exhaust pollution. At present, the air
pollutants mainly come from dust and smoke generated in
the operation of the mine. At the source of dust, the Group
strengthened measures to prevent dust during production
and operations and transportation roads and effectively
promoted the modern dust control system and capacity.

$EIEE"_?_$$FiﬁﬁH§EHﬁ
ST o 2 AL R LAV -
EIRESFERISR IEEK':LE ~)
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ReZRE
6.2 B EE (H)

TRY R EE ()

Case: 3MW Low-Concentration Gas Power Generation
Project in Zhaiyadi Coal Mine

The Group has been building JunLiu Low-Concentration
Gas Power Station Project since 2020 to safely deliver the
low concentration gas extracted and produced by Zhaiyadi
Coal Mine to the low concentration gas heat island through
gas pipeline and safety transmission equipment. Through a
series of safety techniques and patented technologies, low
concentration gas can burn safely and stably on the heat
island. The high-temperature flue gas generated by gas
combustion was transmitted directly into the waste heat boiler.
The high-temperature flue gas successively passes through the
steam superheater, evaporator, economiser and energy saver in
the waste heat boiler. At last, after the temperature is reduced
to about 80T, the flue gas enters the chimney through an
induced draft fan and flue gas pipeline to emit.

The waste heat boiler absorbs the heat energy of high-
temperature flue gas and heats the demineralised water to
produce superheated steam (whose P = 2.5MPa/T = 400C).
The superheated steam is sent to the steam turbine generator
unit through the steam pipe network; the steam is fully
condensed in the steam turbine for power generation; the
low-pressure steam is condensed into the water through the
condenser and pressurised by the condensate pump to the
deaerator as the main part of boiler water to form a cycle,
The water loss caused by waste heat boiler blowdown is
supplemented by the demineralised water system through
the condenser of the steam turbine. The generating voltage
of the steam turbine generator unit is 10kV, which is directly
connected to the 10kV substation of the coal mine for the
production and self-use of the coal mine, so as to reduce the
purchased power consumption.

P REERBEIMWERER T #EIH
B

AEER_Z_TFEEREWERER
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REBEMBEN M - ETRERENN
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AR - SIRERERAME P KL B
ROVBEEE  RITE ARSI METRESS
R&REFEE 80T KL B EMEME
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o 0 58 08 I UK 1 O T SR A R RE S B B K D
ENEAP = 2.5MPa/T = 400T HYBENK S, -
BEKAKBERAEMEE AmEER
M ERREARKRETERESR - &1&
R BR 2 ST AS @R /T B2 /R A K AR B R A
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Ho o ERER  BRRREBESEEKK
BRKE BB EKRF LR TN RS
BT AmEEREAREEREIONV ' B
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. REERE
6.2 Emission Management (continued) 6.2 HE M EE ()
Pollutant Discharge Management (continued) SERY BN EE ()

Case: 3MW Low-Concentration Gas Power Generation =l : EEEEBIMWEERERTHE
Project in Zhaiyadi Coal Mine (continued) B (%)

The power station is an energy-saving and emission reduction ~ ANE Ui EEREK X IFHE L REEEE -
project supported by national policies. When completed and BRI EBET F A% E2,1608E - Mk
put into operation, it is expected to generate 21.6 million FETEHEH1,2008Nm? » I & B 412 %
kWh of power per year, and reduce gas emissions by 12 #£5,698MF - JFBE — & LAk 19.228 M - [F
million Nm3, equivalent to saving 5,698 tons of standard coal B » R HT4 & FIB A MR REH T REE
and 192,200 tons of carbon dioxide. At the same time, the IBFMMEL - #E—HIRESH THLZE2M - 12
comprehensive utilisation of gas is conducive to promoting = BEFNAS B RS ©

underground gas treatment and extraction, further improving

underground safety, productivity and economic benefits.

Picture: 3MW Low Concentration Gas Power Generation Project
MWIRRE R AT EIRR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

6.2 Emission Management (continued)
Cleaner Production Audit

The Group responds to requirements in the cleaner
production audit in enterprises in a national key industry.
The Group determines the focus of audit around the goal
of “energy conservation, consumption reduction, pollution
reduction and efficiency enhancement”, comprehensively
explores and implements the result-oriented technological
transformation of cleaner production and establishes a
long-term mechanism of cleaner production. Through
the cleaner production plan, the Group reduces the
consumption of raw materials and energy consumption,
improves material efficiency, drives the green
transformation and upgrading, and helps to achieve the
goal of carbon peak and carbon neutrality.

The Group engaged a qualified professional third party to
conduct cleaner production audits for three coal mines in
production, in accordance with Cleaner Production Audit
Measures formulated by National Development and Reform
Commission and Ministry of Ecology and Environment, the
spirit of The Notice on Enhancing The Standardisation on
Cleaner Production Audit issued by the Bureau of Ecology
and Environment of Shanxi Province. The conclusions are as
follows:

RE -HER
ERHE @

6. REBRRE(E)

6.2 BFEMERE (F)
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GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BEE @)
6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. ZBERE)
6.2 Emission Management (continued) 6.2 HE M EE ()
Cleaner Production Audit (continued) PEEREEFL(E)
Table: Cleaner Production Review Conclusion in Three RIZEBEREEBERER
Coal Mines
Mine Content of review conclusion

&L

BEEW

Xingwu Coal Mine

Jinjiazhuang Coal Mine

TRERE

Zhaiyadi Coal Mine
EERKTE

e After summarising the benefits generated by all programs implemented in
this round, the post-audit production level was compared with the cleaner
production standard and cleaner production evaluation index system, and then
the changes in the cleaner production level of this mine were analysed.
BABERNEHTREEN AR ETERR  BRENEEKTEBRE
ERE fD/m%EFHH ERBRETHR  ROMAEBZEEKTEIE
S e

e The post-audit cleaner production rating of this mine was evaluated as level
lll, and there was no change in the grading, but the overall cleaner production
level had been improved.

ARBEEZEBBSREEXKFIESHRDAINER BEZABSREESHAEE
B BEEFREEKTEMER -

e The post-audit cleaner production level of this mine was evaluated as level I,
and the post-audit cleaner production level had been improved.

RiEEZRBREEKFHERIA  BREBREEKTFEE

e The post-audit cleaner production rating of this mine was evaluated as level II,
there was a significant improvement from unclassified to level Il. The overall
cleaner production level was good.

K%%Tﬂé}a)%i?%ﬁﬂfﬁi%lli& BREEFESRABRANTER
""""" BRIR - BERRIFTREEKTERLT
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. REEE(E)

6.2 Emission Management (continued) 6.2 HE M EE ()
Table: Emissions of Environmental Pollutants ® BRESRYHEKRE
Indicators Unit 2021 2020
EEZ By —B-- —ETEF
Atmospheric pollutant Gas ‘0000 cubic meters 5,055 4,547
KRG FLHf By HK
Water pollutants Mine wastewater ‘0000 tonnes 73 232
USEELY) i A g K =
Chemical oxygen ‘0000 tonnes
demand 2 2
ftEFEaE =L
Non-hazardous waste Gangue discharge ‘0000 tonnes 220 174
BERBEEY HadEmE E A
Hazardous waste Waste engine oil Tonnes Disposed of by Disposed of by
BEREEY JEE H i the third party  the third party
E=ZFRE F=NRE
6.3 Resource Use 6.3 EREHA

The Group strictly abides by the Law of the People's
Republic of China on Conserving Energy, the Water Law
of the People’s Republic of China and other laws and
regulations, and establishes and improves the energy
management system. The Group also systematically
standardises the energy use of each party in the Group, and
strictly sets and regularly formulates the fixed consumption
targets of water and electricity. In this way, the Group
implements the concept of cost reduction and efficiency
increase in every part of production and operation and
creates a resource-saving model enterprise.

AEBERET(REARKMBEHL
BERE) ~ (REARKMBIOR) FE
AR HERUHRIEREERE
AR EREREREIBELT
1 BRREBELTERHETK - BHHR
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EBENE —ERE - FTEERMHE
EZEINE S
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

6.3 Resource Use (continued)

The Group comprehensively promotes the development
of an energy management system in combination with
the production and operation features. The Group
strictly monitors the power and energy consumption
during production and establishes the performance
evaluation mechanism of energy consumption indicators
including daily fixed power consumption, ton coal power
consumption and peak-subsection evaluation every year.
The Group evaluates those indicators according to the
actual difference in power consumption indicators and
gives rewards and punishment in order to implement the
energy management responsibility mechanism.

The Group actively tries to use new technologies, new
processes, and new energy and fully explores the practical
digital transformation. While reducing energy consumption,
the Group realises fine and efficient management of
energy and strives to improve the efficiency of energy and
resource use.

In the future, the Group will explore the possible use of
new energy, fully introduce electric vehicles and install
clean energy power generation devices to continue
the transformation of existing energy structure and
comprehensively reduce greenhouse gas emissions.
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6.3 BERMEMA (&)
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

6.3 Resource Use (continued)
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6.3 BERMEMA (&)

Case: Replacement of Conveyor Drive System

R ERMEHRRER

In 2021, the Group actively eliminated the energy-intensive
equipment on the mime and underground. Specifically, the
Group changed the driver of the original belt conveyor to
a permanent magnet electric drum drive. Compared with
the original drive system, the transmission efficiency of the
permanent magnet drum system was increased by 25%,
and the power consumption was reduced by 30%. Also, the
consumption caused by an oil change and bearing oil filling of
hydraulic coupler and reducer during equipment maintenance
was effectively reduced.

REB-—F AEEXEHHAFLHFT
BAERERE  BRENFEGHES LY
BEXHESREES - HLRARS X
B OKEORE AR EESRERETTE25% -
FAEREREIRIE30% @ WHRR D RE#E
BIER BN BAE 3 MRR IR - WAE
JHHRE ©

Picture: Permanent Magnet Electric Roller
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. REEE(E)

6.3 BERMEMA (&)

6.3 Resource Use (continued)

Case: Application of Power Network Cloud Management
Platform

In 2021, the Group launched the power network cloud
management platform to monitor substation power data,
transformer, power operation, distribution diagram, power
extreme value and other data in real-time. The Group also
conducted an automatic analysis of the monitoring results to
assist the production unit timely to discover the hazards and
abnormalities of power consumption when electrical route and
equipment operated. It thus effectively reduced the occurrence
of abnormal power consumption caused by equipment failure
and operation error, fully achieving the goal of reducing costs
and increasing efficiency.

N, AT AR E

=

[ =ams

&

LWAEE W
3 BN

"o ~
| REIETIRA
| & L&

NELUERREARBRRDERTFE

100] (#) s wat0E s &5 soc |11

=P BREPREEETYARER

}?

i @ m

~

R-F-_—F AEELRELEPRE
BYG HESHENHE  ZER T
HET - REE  ENBREFRERE
RER  YEREBEEMNERETEDED
W BEESBNREERERERRE
BETERTFENRERERBER
F o ARREEREBSRE  BIERRER
MEFTHREBRELE  2HEKBERER
KB A e

N
1)

14:55:04 4 O

LiLE

- d S QmRKW h)

409100

EERRW )
395070

AR 53 BN h)
3.56% 6014650 |

E1=1 30

§ -

48, == 0

Picture: Smart Power Operation and Maintenance Platform
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6.3 Resource Use (continued)
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6.3 BERMEMA (&)

Case: Coal Mine Gas Drainage and Utilisation

In 2021, the Group utilised shale gas in Jinjiazhuang Coal
Mine. Based on the actual geological and gas conditions, the
Group implemented the overall planning and comprehensive
treatment for coal mining and gas production, orderly
connecting gas drainage, mine construction and coal mine
production. The Group gave priority to the in-depth analysis
and research on the geological conditions and the formation
of topography and landform of the coal mine. The Group
continued to extract gas at first and then mine, making both
met the standard. Through the pre-extraction of gas from
coal seams and surrounding rock layers, the possibility of
underground water and gas outburst was greatly reduced
from the root, and the greenhouse gas emission and worse air
quality caused by gas escape in mining were also prevented.
The Group actively developed ways to increase gas utilisation,
built and operated low concentration gas power generation
and gas oxidation heating projects, reduced operating energy
consumption, and achieved the goals of safe production,
environmental protection, energy conservation, and emission
reduction.

E VIS U e D

RZEZ—F  AEBEFRESRERES
BRABEE  AEELESERMENR
Hrig M iEn » BETRERRAERE K
BRE  BRTREEER  BHER K
BEENEFEE - AEEELEHEED
B {1 0 HE T Hb 3R O T BRI R HETT R A
BT - FEHE T RE LT E R
- mEEZ - BRYHEERESENR
HrFEHER - #EARIR £ KB PR EF TKEE
HRE EHRA A REME - wEEIR I R HT
FRFEPRHERNEEREEREER
HETR - ~EEEGHERSELSFA
AN ERETERKEERNBEEE
FrEHAEE @ REEEEFERIHRE
B BRETEEE  BIRRE - SRk
—EEEEK -

Picture: Shale Gas Utilisation Project in Jinjiazhuang Coal Mine
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

1

6.3 Resource Use (continued)

Table: The Group’s Energy Use
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BE 2K
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6. BEREGE
6.3 ERERE)

®AKEREREARER

Indicators Unit 2021 2020
B Efr ZR--F —T_FF
Energy Gasoline L 70,151 9,989
EA i vy
Purchased electricity ‘0000 kWh 17,637 21,416
SNEEN ETRE
Total comprehensive energy Tonnes of standard coal 21,751 26,384
consumption’ MR
GegRERas
Comprehensive energy Tonnes of standard coal/ million 4 7
consumption density yuan output value
GEMREREE WEER BETER
The energy consumption is calculated according to the conversion ERBEREERB(RS AT EMBIGBT2589-
coefficient of various energy into standard coal in General Principles for 2008) H B AL RITIR ER RGBS -

Calculation of Comprehensive Energy Consumption GBT2589-2008.
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

6.3 Resource Use (continued)

Table: The Group’s Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Annual Report 2021

BE 2K

ERHE @

6. BEIE(E)
6.3 ERERE)

®RIAEERERBHRER

Indicators Unit 2021 2020
B Efr ZR--F —E-FF
Greenhouse gas? Scope 1 emission? tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 155 132
BERE HERERBHNE W_E{iREE

Scope 2 emission* tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 107,603 130,659

HE_REREHNE B_SitiEs

Total greenhouse gas emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 107,758 130,791

RERBHNASE B_StixEe

Greenhouse gas emission density tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/ 18 37

Nol R
ES

=
I3

R

A0
kol

B

million yuan output value
M_StHES AETER

2 The greenhouse gas emissions is calculated based on the Guidelines for 2

Accounting Methods and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions of
other Industrial Enterprises, and the gasoline consumption is calculated
by conversion; the power consumption is converted with reference to
the Guidelines for Accounting Methods and Reporting of Greenhouse
Gas Emissions of Enterprises and Power Generation Facilities issued by
the Ministry of Ecology and Environment.

Direct greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1): mainly including direct
carbon dioxide emissions from gasoline combustion.

Indirect greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2): mainly including indirect
carbon dioxide emissions from purchased electricity.

3 N

¢ ORERBEMEFRE(EE D)

REREFREMHABREOTECERERE
PP E DR RREER) - HIUAERERES
H o AEE2EZLRRFM(ERRERBIRZ
B EmEEERERE) £THRE -

RERBEZRHRE(HE—) - T2RETHM
et R ey — EAC R E R PR o

T EREINESE
N R — B REE P o
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

6.3 Resource Use (continued)

The Group continues to widely uses sewage treatment
facilities, increases the reuse of water resources, and
proactively improves and introduces new equipment,
technologies and processes for water saving and
consumption reduction, lowering the consumption of water
resources during production. The Group deploys mine
water treatment plants and domestic sewage treatment
plants separately in production areas and office areas. After
being treated, the mine water and domestic sewage are
recycled and reused to remove soot in underground mines,
clean the equipment, planting as well as other purposes to
achieve multi usage.

Table: The Group’s Water Consumption

To-FFH BEHBLEREEERLA 107

RE -HER
ERHE @

6. REBRRE(E)

6.3 BERMEMA (&)

REEFEHERESKREREREM - LA

RIAKEBERBRANALLA -

BN E

A SIHEEKFERERT R A  FTEAMT R T
2 RELEBETKEREBR - A&
BN AEER QKD R RE BRI KEE
ub R AR KERIR UG - BRFFKEAIR)S
KB RIBRETERREENA - 1F
BRI TRE - REBL  RCEERE

HBRER—IKZM -

*® I AKEKERERER

Indicators Unit 2021 2020
BE B —B--F —T_TF
Water consumption Municipal water supply ‘0000 cubic meters 41 51
IKETRERE [BIEC:N BYUHK

Groundwater ‘0000 cubic meters 58 65

Hy TRk Bk

Total water consumption ‘0000 cubic meters 99 116

kg By K

Water consumption density ‘0000 cubic meters/million 0 0

FREE

yuan output value
BURK/BETEE
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

6.4 Ecological Development

The Group always adheres to the concept of “clear water
and green mountains are as good as mountains of gold and
silver”, combines mine development and environmental
protection, and continues to carry out mine geological
environment protection and land reclamation. The Group
strictly abides by the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Water and Soil Conservation, the National Regulations
on Mine Geological Environment Protection and other
laws and regulations. The Group follows the national
environmental protection requirements, reduces the
disturbance to the ecological environment, fully protects
biodiversity, and realises the harmonious development
between man and nature.

Environmental Impact Assessment of Construction
Projects

In order to fully understand the impact of the project on its
surrounding environment, under the Law of the People's
Republic of China on Evaluation of Environmental Effects,
Regulations on the Administration of Environmental
Protection of Construction Projects and other regulations,
the Group conducted an environmental impact assessment
before the commencement of each project. The Group
assessed the natural environment of the selected location
(such as the soil erosion, distribution of water resources,
vegetation coverage and biodiversity) in detail. In this
way, according to the characteristics of the project and
local environment, the Group determined the main
environmental problems, such as the impact on water,
sound and atmospheric environment; the impact of land
occupied by the mine, gangue stacking and disposal on
water and soil protection and ecological environment,
as well as the impact of the project on regional water
resources; the Group also ensure that mitigation measures
for corresponding problems were implemented.

RE -HER
ERHE @

6. REBRRE(E)

6.4 EREER

AEBRKRBEREHKSURRSILR
WS BEELUFAEERERER
¥ HERERLUMERBRERL
BEBRIE - AEBEEET(PEAR
HMBKEREEE) « GELHERBR

ERIE)FEEER  ITRRERER
&gi TR EEE E IR IEE) -

RORELYZEMN > BRAEBRM
J:b%}f(\):'

BEREAR

%

AEETHEBHHEREBRENTE

BE(PFEAREMBERE L EFE
E)  GERIBERBERETEK) S
ERBE - AEBEESEER B
EITIRE S ETE - AEEFEIERN
AEREHETHAENEARARE(WNLE
FaMIRA  KEBRDMIER « B
BEEREMSEM) ETFMATS
HEBERMREMIRERE  BEX
ZIRBRABMEK - B - RRRENY
%:%mmmim AR REES
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

6.4 Ecological Development (continued)

Environmental Impact Assessment of Construction
Projects (continued)

Through environmental impact assessment, the Group
defined the environmental protection requirements at all
stages of project construction and operation, identified
eco-environmental sensitive targets, and avoided the
prohibited development areas around the ecological red
line. What's more, the Group took biodiversity protection
measures to ensure that the impact was minimised or
eliminated.

Mine Environment Restoration

The Group believes that properly planning and repairing
the mining area will help restore the environment and
maintain the long-term sustainable development of the
land. The Group actively cooperates with third-party
contractors to use solid wastes such as gangue to level
site, cultivate soil stripping, and restore plantation. In the
process of greening, the Group gives full consideration
to the characteristics of the surrounding ecological
environment, gives priority to local tree species and plants
with strong adaptability, large biomass and rapid growth,
and avoids the use of species with foreign invasion risk.

—FFH HEBLEREEERLE 109

B ek
SRS @

REREE)

6.4 EREER(E)

BEREERF &)

BEREFENE  AEERPETEB
AR E & % (R B R AR R
A ERRIRIBGR BT - BRLRAR
LR - WREBMERNEY S
MEREREE - R RAIEERMESOBR

B2 488
T o

BLIRERE

AEBEREZZREFBERRLEER
B BBMERERER LR REA]
SERR - AEEBIGETRE=TK
BEAE MR AFEREZEYRRE
BIEGHTE - HEEREBE - ERIRE
F—RI T - AKEERCBERT T
DEERABENERRERE B
BEAMA  EENE  EMEXN &
RAFENEREEY  TBeRAABI
RKARRBEYE -

Picture: Land Greening in the Mining Area

CHER IR AR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)
6.4 Ecological Development (continued)
Green Finance

The Group placed a Green Deposit at the Bank of
Communications (Hong Kong) Limited on 30 December
2021, with a total amount of HK$36,7 million. The
Green Deposit service was performed on the basis of and
complied with the Green Bond Principles published by the
International Capital Markets Association.

7. CREATING HARMONIOUS WORLD

With adherence to the employee-oriented principle, the Group
fully protects the rights and interests of employees, values
employees’ potential and the possibility of career development,
and assists employees to improve their professional ability
with diversified training. In this way, the Group walks hand in
hand with employees with a commitment to an equal, friendly,
harmonious and warm workplace.

7.1 Employment

The Group strictly abides the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Social Insurance Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other applicable laws and
regulations. The Group insists on treating employees
of different nationalities, with ethnicity, races, genders,
religious beliefs and cultural backgrounds equally, and
paying equal pay for equal work and treat employees
equally. The Group absolutely forbids and prohibits
child labor and forced labor and effectively protects the
legitimate rights and interests of all employees.

In 2021, the Group had 4,575 regular employees under the
scope of the Report, including 3,997 male employees and
578 female employees.

RE -HER
ERHE @

6. REEE(E)
6.4 £REERGE)
#wesH

KAEEBRZZ-—F+A=+THEXR
BIBITROERRBBEDITENEE
T #1750 85T £ %36,700,00078
T B BERRERELFEBEEER
mEHeEmNEEReEERA) -

7. MEHE

AEBRFABTIA/ANRA - ROREER
THezm  FEETHRAIZBERALBEERN
ATREME - AZ TN IE I B B T E 7t
HEgH BEIBRFTEIT  BARTE—
E¥% - BBy - Mak BRENBISRIER -

7.1 EIEE
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ERERER > BRE(PFEARKNE
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7. CREATING HARMONIOUS WORLD (continued) 7. Fz£iLAlI(&)

7.1 Employment (continued) 7.1 ETEEGE)
Table: Employment Statistics *  EEGE
Unit 2021 2020
B —e--% —z-2%

Number of employees by employment type
REBEILESETIHE

Regular employee Persons 4,575 4744
EAET A
Dispatched workers Persons 85 85
LBKEBRT A

Number of regular employees by region

mitE D EXNETHE

Mainland China Persons 4,575 4,744
REAES T A

Number of regular employees by age
REREDERABEIHE

18-28 Persons 320 473
A

29-40 Persons 1,921 1,868
A

41-49 Persons 1,098 1,194
A

>50 Persons 1,236 1,209
A

The Group also pays attention to the problem of talent loss AL EREEMAFEN  NEER

to enhance the sustainability of employment management. BEEAST RABE WEIRAKER

The Group makes statistical analysis on employee turnover, EITHRETDT - BWEIREARE - 12

summarises the causes and puts forward corrective HENEEARBAS - BEZT——

measures to retain talents. As of 31 December 2021, the FTZA=T—8 ' AEBEBEIRXA

Group has lost 184 employees, accounting for 4%. 184N » BITiRKLHA4% -
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7. CREATING HARMONIOUS WORLD (continued)

7.1 Employment (continued)

Table: The Group’s Employee Turnover

RiE -#HEBR

ERmE@®

7. MHBHA(E)
7.1 ET{EEE)

R IAKEEEIREEBER

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZETHF

Divided by Persons Percentage Persons Percentage
Pk kit REAE K Ee Bl MR ANB MR LB
By gender Male employees 158 3.45% 198 4.17%
RIERIE 8T

Female employees 26 0.55% 23 0.48%

ZET
By Region Mainland China 184 4.00% 221 4.65%
iR E HEAEET
By age 18-28 39 0.85% 37 0.78%
BRFEREBE D

29-40 40 0.87% 67 1.41%

41-49 20 0.43% 26 0.55%

>50 85 1.85% 91 1.91%

The Group also is committed to providing employees
with fair and competitive remuneration in the industry,
recognising excellent employees with incentives, and
helping more employees achieve self-development and
value realisation. During the year, the Group carried
out an annual salary survey in the similar industry and
nearby enterprises, deeply understood the impact of
the remuneration components on employees in newly
enterprises and the similar industry, and analysed
the direction and measures for the improvement of
remuneration management. The Group also set up an
incentive reward system matching employees’ positions,

AEBERKBRNNSETREAFLHE
TERBEFIOFHH  REFWE
THRERAMBE  EHELETER
BRERAEBEER - AFERN - AL
BHARTFERTERBEFMHEL
AATHEERRATEFMHERHET
R E - DITEIE EDCE S T M
e o ARBERERE TrAAETAH
BB - T HERT H B E K
R TEERERRS  BESEES
HEE - IREHRAFEE THEME e
B RAMETRIR

regularly revised the remuneration and welfare policies,
and improved the performance appraisal system to link
performance with bonuses. The Group strives to achieve

mutual benefit between the Group and employees.
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7. CREATING HARMONIOUS WORLD (continued)

7.2 Employee Training

The Group always believes that employee diversity is the
driving force of sustainable development and insists on
creating more opportunities for employees. Based on the
guidance on human resources strategy and the employee
training management manual, closely focuses on the
Group's overall development and operation directions,
and works on “enhancement of effectiveness and
efficiency through job transfer appraisal, remuneration
raise, leadership role and benchmarking”. The Group has
comprehensively built an employee training system and
diversified employee career development channels, so as
to provide human capital assurance for promoting high-
quality development.

Training and Development

The Group organised a number of training activities in
2021. Starting from improving employees’ skills and the
overall work quality, the Group developed diversified
targeted training such as management, technology and
operation. At the same time, the Group took performance
appraisal, benchmarking, strengthened management and
other measures to reinforce the training outcome.

To-FFH BEHBLUEREEARLA 113
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7. CREATING HARMONIOUS WORLD (continued) 7. Fz£iLAlI(&)

7.2 Employee Training (continued) 7.2 B T3 (&)
Training and Development (continued) 1% 5 6 5% R (#E)
Case: The Group Carried Out Diversified Trainings =0 AEBEARZ TLRTIEI
> Management > EIBER

At the management level, the Group conducted activities
such as self-operated mechanism training, visual
management methods and skills training, risk prevention
training and intelligent construction visit to strengthen
operation management and job rotation, cultivate
talents with multi-skills and effectively improve employee
management ability. A total of 1,074 participants joined
in this kind of training.

HYBITERER AR TI8ET]
HHE - BREE FIAEFITE
A BBREIIEE - BRE LR IND
DEEIEES - MR s TR EE
ftwia  BEESAEEAT BN
RABTIERE N  ZBEIRFZR
B AE1,074A °

Picture: Management Training
F BRBEVIRS
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GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) ERmE@®

7. CREATING HARMONIOUS WORLD (continued) 7. Fz£iLAlI(&)

7.2 Employee Training (continued) 7.2 B T3 (&)
Training and Development (continued) 1% 5 6 5% R (#E)

Case: The Group Carried Out Diversified Trainings 2l : ZEERE Z T R 5IZ I (&)
(continued)

> Technology > Rfirfa

According to the specialties and skills of employees, HEBTIMIEEMTRE  ARTZE
the Group conducted technical exchange activities EEEEABZINGI - BREEEA
such as outsourcing training of safety production Bl - [RERABFINI - KBS
management personnel, training of special operation FIERMZREE - BERESKK
personnel, “quality improvement” training classes and HERIIREaE FEINERRESR
major rectification training, and actively cooperated with EREKERFINBERRA - ZEE
colleges and universities or social training institutions REF2BEAB1,263A ©

to effectively improve the overall professional quality of
employees. A total of 1,263 participants joined in this
kind of training.

Picture: Technology Training
i RRIE T3R5
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7. CREATING HARMONIOUS WORLD (continued) 7.

7.2 Employee Training (continued)

Training and Development (continued)

eE e )

8 2l (48)
7.2 ETEHI|(E)

25 3 58 3% /R (A&

Case: The Group Carried Out Diversified Trainings
(continued)

> Operation

The operation training is mainly aimed at enhancing the
practical operation ability of employees, such as work
resumption training after Spring Festival, mine auxiliary
rescue team training, pre-job training for newly recruited
workers and other training. These trainings focus on
improving the hands-on operation ability of employees,
which is not limited to basic knowledge, and also includes
skill competition and vocational skill appraisal to enhance
the sense of participation and experience of employees. A
total of 21,080 participants joined in this kind of training.

P - AEEFAR S LRI ()

> B

BRI EZ AR B TEIREE

BiF HEHEHETEESE  ELUH
B R B IE )| - ST T AR ATIEIIE
Z5ElR  EERFTEISHFIRE
MRES - TREBRNERMNZ - HERKX
EHE  BEREEETTIIF BRE
T2EBMERRE - ZEFIEF2

B A 821,080 A% ©

Picture: Operation Traini
CIRERIEVIER S
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7. CREATING HARMONIOUS WORLD (continued) 7. it Al (E)

7.2 Employee Training (continued) 7.2 B T3 (&)

Training and Development (continued) 1% 5 5 (4
AEBEZTEINER - RO
BEIAD - FIEREHREHERE
ZHIE - RN AR SE
ZEHEN\EAREREER - AEBIEIIK
REMSH - REZIANDERERET
T -

On the basis of diversified training, the Group, based on
training contents has formulated a strict performance
appraisal system, and set indicators in eight dimensions,
such as quality and efficiency, risk prevention, and
productivity, so as to assist the training results to be more
efficient and ensure the training contents will be used in
practical work.

Profit

Incorporate the profit indicator into the
assessment to effectively promote the
completion of the profit indicator.

A

RAEHREAAZE - BRRETEEERD

T ©

Improve quality and efficiency

Incorporate the quality and efficiency
improvement projects into the assessment,
to promote the use of new processes, new
equipment and materials and the launching
of intelligent and automation projects.
R0

& i

b HEHEEMAZZEE T T -
MRBHROERAME  BBLBREMN
£S5

Safety cost

Incorporate the withdrawal and use of safety
costs into the assessment to ensure the
withdrawal of workplace safety costs in
accordance with laws and regulations, so as
to provide a financial support for workplace
safety.

FEpN

Z2 8

BR2BNNRIEAFAMAE R - BRE
2EEBANKERANRR - AR2EE
REHE SRR -

65

Incorporate 6S visual management into the
assessment to effectively improve the on site
management level.

6S

156SH R ERMAZR - ARURARS
BIRKF o

Recovery rate

Incorporate the recovery rate into the
assessment to raise the awareness of
effective coal management and to increase
the recovery rate of raw coal and washing
recovery rate which resulted of efficiency
improvement.

g
BEREMAERIZE T AMREERNE
W RA T RRERE SR ERE (2 T
HasHIRF -

Risk prevention and control

Incorporate risk prevention and control into
the assessment to carry out risk identification
and process control, and to promote the
legal compliance of work safety production
and operation management.

R

HEBRITIEMAZR - IR F AR RS
BIEER  HEREAEE  KEEENKE
SRR

Figure: Key Performance Indicators

CREMERRIER

Productivity

Incorporate the productivity indicator into the
assessment to reduce jobs and to improve the
efficiency of all employees.

BEL ‘
B EXEEMAZR - HERBIRRT

fF - 2BBERBIRR -

Capital expenditure

Incorporate capital investment and benefits
post evaluation into the assessment to boost
the project progress and to improve the
management’s awareness of economic
benefits. For example, the blending system in
Zhaiyadi Coal Mine has achieved remarkable
results.

BARMERE
BRI E R BT EMAZR - B
TR  ReMICBENENERES -
MEEEIRK R RAREE -
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7.2 Employee Training (continued)
Training and Development (continued)

Table: the Group’s Employee Training

7.2 ETEY (&)
#2383 5 /% (45)

® I AKEEIZIER

Divided by 2021 2020
Pk kid] —EB-—F —E_TF
Attendance of employees by gender Male 22,748 24,920
RIERIE DR AIIAR B8T
Female 669 491
ZET
Hours of training by gender on average Male 79 75
R RIB D 80T AN B E
Female 40 32
BT
Attendance of employees by category Senior Management 5 5
REEBRLBDHNZIAR SEET
Middle Management 67 67
hEET
Employee 23,345 23,082
EBET
Hours of training by category Senior Management 26 26
1z BFAE D HTFHRX IR B =EET
Middle Management 36 36
hEET
Employee 80 80

EBET
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND I%{ﬁ HER
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7. CREATING HARMONIOUS WORLD (continued) 7. Fz£iLAlI(&)

7.3 Care for Employees 73 EIEE

The Group has established sound employee welfare and
care system. The Group carries out extensive employee
care activities, helps employees with difficulties, balance
employees’ work and life, and enhances employees’ sense
of belonging and happiness in the Group. The Company
is committed to creating a caring and warm working
environment.

Care for Employees

In 2021, the Group held a meeting on employee
satisfaction, listened to the voice of employees, and
collected and analysed employees’ opinions and
suggestions on the internal system. In this way, the Group
constantly learned and improved their own shortcomings,
and created a happy, safe and lawful working environment
for employees. A total of 80 people participated in
the meeting, which enabled the Group to understand
employees’ concerns about the internal system and welfare
benefits and improve their satisfaction.

While protecting the basic rights and interests of
employees, the Group offers insurance and housing fund.
Following the idea of “covering first, then standardising,
and gradually solving the problems left”, the Group has
achieved full coverage of work-related injury insurance
since 2008, medical or maternity insurance in 2016,
endowment and unemployment insurance in 2017. The
base number of 5 insurance programs is lawful, complied
in 2019, and the housing provident fund was available to
all employees in 2020. By 2021, the Group strived for job
stabilisation subsidies and other benefits to maximise the
interests of employees.

AEBERYRENE TEMEBERE
BX BHRARYEZVNETIHEER
g BEHKERSHEET I8 IE
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AEER L2 AN ITERE - It
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7. CREATING HARMONIOUS WORLD (continued) 7. Fz£iLAlI(&)

7.3 Care for Employees (continued) 73 ETEZE (&)
Care for Employees (continued) BTHEGE)
Case: Employee Assistance Activities Rl ETEHES

The Group actively carries out employee assistance activities AEBEEGHES TEKEE @ FERA
and continues to improve the employee care plan by visiting B TEE S EEEITRYF - UZEF
the employees’ homes, helping employees with difficulties in A3 B) - HEREE T - EHE Tiel
various forms of relief and greetings, and effectively providing EZEEWEE) - R -_T-—F - A&EEZ
substantive assistance to employees. In 2021, the Group  =HHBIR2EE T 2085 A ©

assisted more than 20 employees in difficulty.

Picture: Photo of Employees Assistance
BTEHKEY

Recreational Activities XEE

The Group carried out diversified employee activities, AEEEGARZIT(CEIES - £
including leisure activities and sports competitions, and BIBREBHMSHEELE  WINE
carried out a series of employee cultural activities with Bl EERRET R E I XA -
diversified themes to effectively arise employees’ vitality, BROREBIE N - BREIFEsE - 2
unleash their innovation potential, and promote the healthy HEPEREFEER -

and sustainable development of the enterprise.
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7. CREATING HARMONIOUS WORLD (continued) 7. it Al (E)

7.3 Care for Employees (continued) 73 ETEZE (&)
Recreational Activities (continued) XZE ()

Case: Diversified Recreational and Sports Activities for =l : ET K XEEH
Employees

In order to enrich employees’ lives and drive their healthy AZ2ZE8&T4E  FREIBREERE X
development, the Group organises diversified employee EILEZE%&"* LB IES - ERA
activities. The activities enhance their’ identity, build up their REARHFE - N8 THEBRE -

physical quality so that they can work with better endurance, LAE ﬁ@/ﬁ RS ERMMEIEET
and enhance the cohesion and unity of the enterprise. In 2021, ff ' R A GRE NERL S - ZF = —

the main employee activities were as follows: F FERERMEILEHET :
e International Women’s Day “Red-Flag Bearer Selection on o = /)\RZ &8 = )\AL i F 738 | & 4 B
March 8th” and leisure activities for female employees TBR)EE)

ﬁ!i‘ﬁﬂ'] QIE aﬁD!EIEE

e  Staff Basketball Games on May 1st and May 4th
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7. CREATING HARMONIOUS WORLD (continued) 7. it Al (E)

7.3 Care for Employees (continued) 73 ETIBEEE
Recreational Activities (continued) XZE ()

Case: Diversified Recreational and Sports Activities for 4] : & T S XEEE (&)
Employees (continued)

e Benefit distribution on Mid Autumn Festival and Spring o  Hf - HEEEF R
Festival
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7. CREATING HARMONIOUS WORLD (continued)

7.3 Care for Employees (continued)

Pandemic Prevention and Control

Since the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group united
together with best effort and caring attitude and was
engaged in pandemic prevention to prevent its spread,
helping to win the battle against the virus.

The Group combated the pandemic in accordance with
the Notice on Normalising Pandemic Prevention in 2021,
Guide on Distributing Protective Safety Materials of
the company, Notice On the Regulations on COVID-19
Prevention Program of Shanxi Fushan Resources Group Co.,
Ltd. and Notice On the Regulations on Employee’ Going
out During Pandemic Prevention Period of Shanxi Fushan
Resources Group Co., Ltd. In 2021. The Group required
daily reporting on anti-virus efforts. established a pandemic
prevention team, and strictly implemented the “five haves
and one grid” measures. The Group also checked the
employee’s travel QR code and health QR code on time and
handed out disposable masks and disinfectants. The Group
also held pandemic prevention publicity and encouraged
employees to receive vaccination and booster, in order to
effectively ensure the safety of the employees.

To-FFH BEHRBLEREEERLA 123

RIR
b

-

HER

EVRRE @

w8 2L 2 (8)

73 ETHEE(E)

RIGEG 1

SIS IR - AEEAE b
T BEFEE - BAEMRY - TR
B 2 HRAGRETIE - #A
AHRBRESOBIT - B0 T RENE
DI -

AEBKEEANME T - —FFE
LR BRI TEREA) - (RRRIGH
T2 EERRA) - (R T <
ARLERERFR AR EMARIE
PR TES R>mBA) - (R T #<
WERILEREEBRARBANR _-_F =
—FREHEEE TN ERIRE
SHBH)EAMHE - AERHENB R
SIBE - RIZRAE - BIREENR
B—@RIhxEk  BERERE T
RRSRARERE - EW—REOS - B
HER FRHRETE BB TERE
MERERENRHFELREE  E
REEIZZ -
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7.3 Care for Employees (continued) 73 ETEZE (&)
Pandemic Prevention and Control (continued) K15 (18)

Case: “Five Haves and One Grid” and Daily Pandemic %f#l : [EE—8#] - BEHRERE
Prevention Measures

In order to prevent the pandemic, the Group has formulated ~ANEE AMITFHEZIEIE - HIE T8 A
comprehensive “five haves and one grid” measures: TENIRE —EEIHPERE

“Five haves” means that have pandemic prevention guidelines, [T A 81 : BRISHIEIER  AHEERE
have prevention management policy and responsible party, HIEMEEA @ BHEHEDEREE - &
have an appropriate amount of protective materials backups, BibEHEEHENEREIR - BRESM
have guidance and support from local medical and health — fEEZHEE SIS -

forces, have places for isolation and transfer arrangements and

preparations.

“One Grid” means that information registration, investigation [ —#34& B0 : {f{tF B ER AR B T - M7k
and health monitoring for employees, outsiders, persons from A& * REF SEKHEAE « AEAE
medium and high-risk areas, inbound personnel returning ZEABNEESED  BHEMNAEEE
from holiday, supervise and urge the implementation of EBIT{E - BREETEABZEREE @ &
personal protection measures, and emphasise self-isolation and i i IR B 2 EIERE B B RPBBEM RS o
reporting when fever and other symptoms appears. Increasing ~ JIEKGEEE » BIBEEIF 0N L T -
patrol inspection and timely understanding, verifying and  #ZBHM3RE -

reporting of abnormal conditions.
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7.3 Care for Employees (continued)

Pandemic Prevention and Control (continued)

R HER

SRS @

8 2l (48)
73 ETHEE(E)

RIERG # ()

Case: “Five Haves and One Grid” and Daily Pandemic
Prevention Measures (continued)

In addition to the requirements of “five haves and one
grid”, the Group also formulated daily pandemic prevention
measures to fully respond to the pandemic normalisation:

> Reduce unnecessary large-scale gathering activities

> Ask employees to stay at Shanxi and not to visit medium
and high-risk areas unless necessary

> Wear masks throughout the trip

> Strengthen and improve hygienic standards and
conditions in the workplace

> Implement centralised isolation medical observation and
complete nucleic acid testing immediately for personnels
with a history of living in medium and high risk areas
within 14 days

> Implement the method of “see, test, check and ask” (see
whether they wear masks, test body temperature, check
health QR codes, and ask about epidemiological history)
and other prevention and control measures for personnels
coming from other regions

6 [ERE -84 - AEREE G

BRIAA—WRINERZI - AEBES
EARHREE UROEHRBERRE
1t :

> BAEBEUREBEEMNES

> FMETHE  TEh AR

> BIMHHE2EMEOS

> INSRMEE TSR AR MR

> HTHURABTEERBERRKE LD
RKRRABRTREESBRETE—
FR5 FR] SE AR A B AR B

> HMRAIRATABET —F A
—E-F/(EREMBOE BER
B BREER  ARRTREEL)E
By EtE it
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7.4 Community Building

The Group always keeps in mind its identity of a corporate
citizen and adheres to the original intention of practicing
public charity. The Group also keeps in mind the public
charity concept of “taking it from society and giving it back
to society”. So the Group pays long-term attention to and
supports community development, actively organises and
participates in public charity activities, and assumes social
responsibility in community service, public welfare charity,
poverty alleviation and student assistance to work with
different stakeholders to create a better life using their
own advantages.

The Group has formulated the Measures for the
Implementation of Decisions on “Three Important and One
Major” Matters to standardise the management of public
charity donations. In 2021, the Group donated 100,000
yuan.

SRS @

8 2l (48)
7.4 HtEHA

REBBRKECEEARNE D  RIF
BITAZOIIL  FRIBMZRHEEE
REATEINARES  REBEIL
XEFHEER  BRABT2EAEE
B EHERE - REEE KBS
FHEBEGAELERME TN EER
FVFaEs BFERARKRAERTE
i e

AREFBHE(ZE—KRIEERAKEE R
#E) BN S EA S IBRETRE /L
B o RZT——F  AEEZRFHI
BEE108 T °

Case: Preferential Compensation Price of Coal

In recent years, due to the recovery of the domestic economy
and manufacturing industry, coal demand has soared and coal
prices have been rising. To adapt to the market environment
and supply coal resources, and expand production and
operation, the Group has offered the villages and towns access
to coal consumption through preferential compensation price
of coal, so as to maintain a good relationship between villages
and enterprises.

=P BRRGEEER

s SERLERJEXEERNT
2 RRFRBH - RETEH LK &%
BRERTSRE  HERKER  TH
hRAEERE  BBREMNEMES BB
BENEMBRI AR MG N EERT
BT BRI o
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7. CREATING HARMONIOUS WORLD (continued) 7. it Al (E)

7.4 Community Building (continued) 7.4 HEHAI(E)

Case: Preferential Compensation Price of Coal (continued) Ef| : BRE W EEE (&)

The Group carried out the following four measures to provide A& B FEE A T W{EE i - A EREK
coal welfare for villages and towns and quickly determine the R EH @ PEEH L EERAHEMESE -
amount of preferential compensation price of coal.

1. Conduct market research on preferential coal prices; 1. HEERBAERETTHAM

2. Visit and align with preferential coal prices in the region 2. #¥AE@AEREE LR ESH

where the Group is located and peer enterprises; B8 R AR R (B A8 S 1T B R S
3. Organise a discussion for residents in villages and towns 3. #H&NBEREHEREFERZERE
who has opinions about preferential coal prices; RENERETEAIME

4. After investigation, benchmarking, visit and 4. ZEFfAH - HiZ - E£55 - BEERRIR

communication with residents which based on the data & » BKIR T AR BV RE IR AR N AR B B iR B
and materials on coal welfare, senior management hold BEHE  BAERIMBITALERLE
a general manager meeting to study and agree on the MEBERKBNHEES  RITHE
preferential compensation price of coal, so as to provide ERIFIR MR -

welfare coal for villages and towns and other areas.

Picture: Study Preferential Compensation Price of Coal With Village and Town Leaders
P ERHBASM R R BN HEEERRS




128 SHOUGANG FUSHAN RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2021

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND I%{ﬁ HER
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) ERmE@®

7. CREATING HARMONIOUS WORLD (continued) 7. it Al (E)

7.4 Community Building (continued) 7.4 #HEHA ()
Case: Protection of Villagers’ Rights And Interests =0 NREZRE

In 2021, the Group developed a set of operating procedures RZ-ZE=——F  AEBRRENRER A
for relocation from the perspective of protecting the rights 328 - S RBHIE T —ERENIRIE
and interests of villagers. First, the coal mine reports to the R12 - BANKEBEM LREERP L » #
management center in writing to discuss a feasible operation  EABAITTHMIRIES R » W& BN
plan. Then the Group forms a relocation proposal together A #&B#1E © &5 LR HEHEK AL ER
with the villages. The two sides negotiate and agree on a MEBEH K - AEBEHREHENBES -
specific relocation plan. During the implementation of the FHEZEENRAREBEMES @ M EEN
plan, the Group fully considered the feedback and voice of RS REREHE :

villagers and made specific measures to protect their rights and

interests:

> Negotiate the compensation of ancillary facilities within > & A AN B R E -
the occupied land.

> Calculate the compensation by population and assets > {KIBEARBEEINEAD BEZHE

according to the actual scheme, and make the budget B BEENBREESHE - RET
estimate of the resettlement funds of the whole village BEEEE  BHR-

to ensure that the compensation is fully covered without

omission.

> Negotiate compensation door-to-door, sign resettlement > ZFEHEMESEE  FIBEMER
compensation agreements, and protect farmers’ rights B - WERRRRENRER -
and interests with legal means.

Picture: Qianyuanzhuang Relocation New Village
C R THB RN
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7.4 Community Building (continued) 7.4 HEHAI(E)

Case: Protection of Villagers’ Rights And Interests XRf| : HEEZRE(E)
(continued)

When implementing the relocation plan, the Group maintained B 7 RE/THBIEF » AN E G B4
close contact with the villages. The villages supervised the HHERZFEZHE - HPHEE - TR
process and gave opinions and suggestions in real-time, while ~ HE R ME# - AEEIER -  AEER
the infrastructure department led the communication and FIE5 * HREATIKREBTHK @ SRAQ
supervision. The construction team implemented the plan. FREFER @ HETEZEEEBREM
Every part was open, fair and transparent, and since the {FE(EBREAFAE @ AR -
responsibilities were assigned to specific departments, the

whole process can be reviewed with evidence.

Picture: Negotiating with Villagers
AR EER %

In the future, the Group will continue to combine its own KR AEBBERELLFBEENESLER
advantageous resources, assume social responsibility, BRAERHEET  BEFZFMEERHE
work together with stakeholders and give back to society BF @BERENAAEELS -

through diversified ways.
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INDEX OF THE HKEX ESG REPORT GUIDELINE B X FTESGIE B &5l
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Location
RE - HERERGEE—RIKERBEREREREZRKP) FREES
Environment Aspect
%
A1: Emissions General Disclosure | Information on: P92-95,
Al HERD —MRHER P98
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste
BEERMBEERELN MR TS  ERESE
EEMNEEER
(@ H=E: M
(b) HTFHEITAEEATENMBMEERABINER «
Note: exhaust emissions include nitrogen oxides, sulfur oxides
and other pollutants regulated by national laws, regulations and
regulations.
7 BEREREERENY MY REAMZBEREEER LR
BDIRE T RY) o
Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide,
hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulfur hexafluoride.
AERBEE-SMLR Bk f@ER - a®mitbeyw - 281t
Bk R SRR o
Hazardous waste refers to those defined in national regulations.
BEEEEMEETAIAAES -
A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. P94-97
R iR A KRR B -
A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas | P100, P106

emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

B (EE)MEREZ (BEE)BEREBINE CANEE
BREREE(WASESEA - BIERETE) -
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(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

Location

RS HERELAERE -—REERBRERIERKP)

FRERR

A1.3

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
FEEBEEEYREE UEAE) LER) % E (WNEGE
B - BERKRETE) °

P100

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FEAREEEMESE UNGE) R(ER)ZE (NATE

BB - BERBIE) -

P100

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved.
PRI SLEVBE N E B 1R MR ERE L& B AR PTEREE P8R -

P92-99

A1.6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.

M EIE R ENBEREZEMN L - REMRFTRT LA RRE B
BRRAEDEL BRI -

P94-97

Aspect A2:
Use of Resources

A2 - BIR(ER

General Disclosure

—RE

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

BERERER(BIERIR - KREMEMED BB -

Note: resources can be used for production, storage, transportation,
buildings, electronic equipment, etc.

i BRAUBANAE  #F - Bh BT EFREF -

P100—101

A2.1

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

RENESWERE R SEEERINE - |3oh) BFEE (A
TRFEEFE) EREWNMAEES ST - BERBHE)

P105

A2.2

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
BEKEREEWMAGESEN - BIEREAH)

P107
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Bt X FTESGIE R R 5| (&)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Location
BiE R EREEE—RIKERBRERISEKP) FRERR
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps | P100-104
taken to achieve them.
R PR ET SZ B0 REIRGE AR A a8 B AR R R B G Lk B AR P ERERAY
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water | P107
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and results
achieved.
it SRERGE A KR ERI BRI RE - LA PrET L8 K e
BERAEDELE FAMEIME LR -
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) | N/A
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. e A
RDFTAEMEANEE(UEHE) R (MER) BEEEN
{58 -
A3 : The General Disclosure | Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the | P108-109
Environmental —RHEE environment and natural resources.
and Natural MIEFEITAHRBERRAERERENFZEBUE
Resouzfef A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the | P108-109
A3 : IRIE R . .
s environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
RAER
manage them.
M EBEBHHRERRRERNEATENERKNERSR
B BNITE -
A4 : Climate General Disclosure | Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate- | P82
Change —AR IR related issues which have impacted, and those which may
A4 FiREL impact, the issuer.
BRI REHEERAEHBEITAEETENEARIKIEH
EHMBGK -
A4 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have | P82-91

impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them.

HMB KRR EHBETAEATENEARGEBEE
NEHITE) ©
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INDEX OF THE HKEX ESG REPORT GUIDELINE Bt X FTESGIEE & 5| (&)

(continued)

Safety
B2 : BEEHLZ S

—RIE

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing
a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.

FERHZE2THERREIREEEHEBELEEN

(@ BE: Rk

(b) BTHETABEAZENHEBMEZRAMNES

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Location
BiE HEREREEE—RIKERBRERISEKP) FRERR
tE
Social
B1 : Employment General Disclosure | Information on: P110
B1: EfF —MRIKEE
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
TR RE BERET  THERE - RE - FEH
g Zub - RIER AR E M FFE KA
(@ BE: &
(b) BFHBEITABEATENHEERLADIHER
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and | P110-111
geographical region.
R EFEER (2RISR - FieER MR 58
EEER -
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical | P111-112
region.
RIER - FirARI MR EDHEBRKLLE o
B2 : Health and General Disclosure | Information on: P63-65
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(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Location
BiE HEREREEE—RIKERBRERISEKP) FRERR
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of | P66
the past three years including the reporting year.
BE=F(BRERFE)BFAITHNABRLLE -
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. P66
AIBEARIIERE -
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures | P63-81
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.
R PTER A B R R 25 - ARSI RERES
A o
B3 : Development | General Disclosure | Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for | P113-118
and Training —AR IR EE discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
B3 : & K BRERTE B BT LIERE & ME R AR BUR - Hl 53|
EED o
Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal and
external courses paid by the employer.
i EIEREE RERESINENNIMNIRIE -
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee | P118
category (e.g. senior management, middle management).
BUERIREERN(NERERE  PREEE) EDHXII
BEAD -
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender | P118

and employee category.

BRI REEEMNED BREETAIINNFIIEE -
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INDEX OF THE HKEX ESG REPORT GUIDELINE Bt X FTESGIEE & 5| (&)

(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Location
BB HEREREGEE—RINERBRERIERKP) FEED
B4 : Labour General Disclosure | Information on: P110
Standards —AR IR EE
B4 : & T 4R (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing
child and forced labour.
ERAMIEE T ko4 T -
(@ HBE: &
(b) BFHBITABEAZENHMEERRAOEER -
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to | P110
avoid child and forced labour.
g s MR ES O EEAR R E T REGHST -
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when | P110
discovered.
MAEEREZRBENRBHREBIERRR LR -
B5 : Supply Chain | General Disclosure | Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the | P61
Management —RH R supply chain.
BS : fEREIR EREEENIRE R GRRBUER
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. P61
mruwRE D HEREE -
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number | P61-62

of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how
they are implemented and monitored.
HREEERHERNEDN  MERTEEEMNNHERHE
B ARMBEBEMITRERGE -
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(continued)

and how they are dealt with.

BERANERLRBHIFEE LR EE A -

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Location
BiE HEREREEE—RIKERBRERISEKP) FRERR

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental | P61-62
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

Rt G BRI R R G ERE A IRE A SRERAED - A
KABRARIT RERTE

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally | P61-62
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and monitored.
MAEREHERRREZARRERMREOEN - LR
HEAMITRERT A -

B6 : Product General Disclosure | Information on: P52-60
Responsibility —RR R
B6: EmET (@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and methods of
redress.
FRMREERTIREHNRERELZ S B  BELLES
B A RERITED -
(@ BER: &
(b) BFHETABEATENHEERLRDINER -

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls | P54
for safety and health reasons.
EENCEXRERARPEAL 2 EBRFEEHMARKNA D
oG C

B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received | P60
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INDEX OF THE HKEX ESG REPORT GUIDELINE X FTESGIS & 5| (&)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Location
BiE HEREREEE—RIKERBRERISEKP) FRERR
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting | P56

intellectual property rights.
Fie st £ 4 S R AR PR AN ERE B 1B B -

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. | P53-54
HE SRTEREREREKERF
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, | P60

how they are implemented and monitored.

W HBEEBERRERLEBEEK  URBEBRTRERT

VA o
B7: Anti- General Disclosure | Information on: P49
corruption —ARIREE
B7: RE)3 (a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRI - R - HEFRIARERN ¢
@ BE: R

(o) BTHETABEARENRBEIRLRGINER -

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices | P49
brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
RERMAHBETAIEEERBI I EEENETHRRRMT
BB B MR ARR -

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing | P49-51
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
TRy R IE e R ERRIR P - LA RMEREI T REER 0% o

B7.3 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing | P50
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
HtmEERE TRENRESE
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EEIBRBEMBAER(WSEHER) -

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Location
BiE HEREREEE—RIKERBRERISEKP) FRERR
B8:Community General Disclosure | Policies on community engagement to understand the needs | P126
Investment —RH R of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
B8 : tt[@IRE activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.
FANHR2ERTHREEMELRFTEMBRERXEED
SERHERNEHBUR
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental | P126-129
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
EIERER(INHE BREFE HIFTK H#E X
-85 -
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. P126-129
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Mr. Ding Rucai, aged 57, had acted as a deputy general manager
of the Company since August 2014, then was appointed as the vice
chairman of the Board, an Executive Director and managing director
of the Company in September 2014 and was re-designated as the
Chairman from 29 January 2018. Mr. Ding is also the chairman of
each of the Executive Committee and the Nomination Committee, a
member of the Remuneration Committee, and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Ding is a senior engineer in professor grade. He graduated
from the School of Metallurgical and Ecological Engineering of the
University of Science and Technology Beijing with a doctoral degree
in ferrous metallurgy, he also studied senior business administration
in the University of Warwick, United Kingdom. Mr. Ding has extensive
experience in management of listed companies, mergers and
acquisitions, production management of steel and coal industries,
project construction management, trading of iron ore and coking
coal resources and shipping management.

Previously, Mr. Ding was an executive director and the deputy
managing director of Shougang Concord International Enterprises
Company Limited (now known as Shoucheng Holdings) (SEHK:697),
a listed company in Hong Kong.

Currently, Mr. Ding is a non-executive director of Mount Gibson Iron
Limited (ASX:MGX), a company listed on the Australian Securities
Exchange Limited. He also holds several senior positions in the group
companies of Shougang Group, including the positions as a director
and deputy managing director of Shougang Holding.

Mr. Fan Wenli, aged 42, was appointed Executive Director and
managing director of the Company in November 2019. He is also
a member of the Executive Committee and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Fan is a senior mining engineer and a certified safety engineer.
He graduated from Wuhan University of Technology with a bachelor’s
degree in mining resources engineering and then obtained a
master’s degree in mining engineering from University of Science and
Technology Beijing.
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Previously, Mr. Fan held various senior positions in Mining
Corporation of Shougang Group Co., Ltd. (“Shougang Mining”) and
had been responsible for mining production and operation safety for
a long time. Mr. Fan served as the deputy mine manager of the iron
ore production plants of Shougang Mining, namely Xingshan Iron
Mine (underground mine) and Shuichang Iron Mine (open-pit mine).
He also served as the deputy director and the director of production
division of Shougang Mining during which he facilitated the
commencement of production and the arrival at mine full production
capacity of Xingshan Iron Mine. Mr. Fan has extensive management
experience both in open-pit and underground mines.

Mr. Chen Zhaoqiang, aged 54, was appointed Executive Director
and deputy managing director of the Company in January 2010. He is
also a member of the Executive Committee and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Chen graduated from Jiaozuo Mining Institute with a bachelor
degree majoring in mining engineering and obtained a master degree
in management science from Huazhong University of Science &
Technology and a finance executive master of business administration
from Shanghai Advanced Institute of Finance of Shanghai Jiao Tong
University. He has extensive experience in coal mining industry
including in the areas of production safety management for coal
mining, purchase and logistics management, mineral resources
development and coal trading.

Previously, Mr. Chen had engaged in many important posts in coal
mining enterprises, including in Pingdingshan Coal Co. Ltd., Henan
Pingbao Coal Co. Ltd., and Henan Company for Coal Seam Gas
Development & Application.

Mr. Liu Qingshan, aged 62, was appointed Executive Director in
November 2008 and also acted as the deputy managing director of
the Company in January 2010. He is also a member of the Executive
Committee and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Liu graduated from Shanxi University of Finance and Economics
Department of Accounting and obtained a master of business
administration from Capital University of Economics and Business. He
has extensive experience in the fields of accounting and finance in
the mining industry in China.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu worked as chief financial officer in
Fortune Dragon Group Limited and in other sizable energy resources
companies in China.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

Mr. Wang Dongming, aged 47, was appointed Executive Director
in June 2020 and further appointed as a deputy managing director
of the Company in November 2021. He is also a member of the
Executive Committee and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Wang graduated from the University of Wales with a master
degree in business administration. He has extensive experience in
the fields of trading of mineral resources, investment and capital
operation, and has also been awarded the practicing certificates in
the asset management and securities categories by the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute respectively.

Mr. Wang had been working in Shougang Group for years, during
which he served as the assistant general manager of Shougang
International Mineral Resources Corporation to handle various
overseas acquisition projects in relation to mineral resources. He had
also acted as the assistant general manager of the Company. Mr.
Wang had been the general manager of the investment department
at Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited prior to his appointment
as a deputy managing director of the Company in 2021.

Ms. Chang Cun, aged 43, was appointed Non-executive Director of
the Company in July 2018.

Ms. Chang is a certified public accountant in China and a certified
internal auditor. She holds a bachelor degree in economics from
Beijing Institute of Business and a master degree in management
from Beijing Technology and Business University. Ms. Chang has
extensive experience in accounting, auditing, financial and insurance
businesses.

Previously, Ms. Chang held various positions in Funde Sino Life.

Currently, she is the director, deputy general manager and chief
auditor of Funde Insurance Holdings Co., Ltd, the director and chief
auditor of Funde Sino Life, the chief auditor of Sino Life AMC, and
also the chief supervisor of The National Trust Co., Ltd respectively.
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Mr. Shi Yubao, aged 68, was appointed Non-Executive Director and
member of the Remuneration Committee in September 2019.

Mr. Shi is a senior economist and a senior political affairs specialist.
He graduated from Chongging University with a master degree in
business administration. Mr. Shi has extensive experience in the fields
of corporate management, strategic planning and economic.

Previously, Mr. Shi held various senior positions in Chongging
Changan Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. including the chairman of its
board of directors, chairman of its labour union, general manager,
etc. In addition, he served as the factory director of the automobile
manufacturing plants of the Changan Automobile (Group) Company
Limited, the chairman of the board of directors of Chongging
Changan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. and Changan Minsheng
APLL Logistics Co., Ltd., a company listed in Hong Kong, respectively,
and the chairman of supervisory committee of Chongging Changan
Automobile Co., Ltd., a company listed in Shenzhen. Mr. Shi also
served as the external director of Shougang Group. Mr. Shi was a
member of the 14th and 15th executive committee of China National
General Labour Union, a member of the 2nd and 3rd labour union
committee of Chongging General Labour Union and a member of
the expert group jury panel of Chongqing Enterprise Management
Excellence Evaluation Committee.

Currently, he is the independent director of Chengdu Haoneng
Technology Co., Ltd. (SSE: 603809), a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mr. Choi Wai Yin, aged 63, was appointed Independent Non-
executive Director in July 2004 and is the chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of each of the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Choi holds a master degree of science in finance from the City
University of Hong Kong, a bachelor degree in business administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a bachelor degree in
law from the Peking University. He has extensive experience in the
fields of finance and fund management.

Currently, he is a director and a responsible officer of Tap Capital
Limited, a company carrying the asset management business. Mr.
Choi is also an investment adviser registered under the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

Mr. Japhet Sebastian Law, aged 70, was appointed Independent
Non-executive Director in September 2013 and is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Law graduated from the University of Texas at Austin with a
doctor of philosophy degree in mechanical/industrial engineering in
1976.

Previously, Mr. Law was an independent non-executive director of
Beijing Capital International Airport Company Limited (SEHK:694)
(from June 2008 to June 2020), a listed company in Hong Kong, and
was a professor of The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He joined
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1986 and retired in August
2012. Before retirement, Mr. Law was a professor in the Department
of Decision Sciences and Managerial Economics. He was the
associate dean and subsequently the dean of the Faculty of Business
Administration of The Chinese University of Hong Kong from 1993
to 2002. Prior to returning to Hong Kong, Mr. Law was the director
of Operations Research at the Cullen College of Engineering and the
director of Graduate Studies in Industrial Engineering at the University
of Houston and was also involved with the U.S. Space Program in his
career with McDonnell Douglas and Ford Aerospace in the United
States. He acted as a consultant for various corporations in Hong
Kong and overseas. He had also served on the boards of profit, non-
profit and charitable organisations in Hong Kong and overseas. In
addition, Mr. Law had once served as a member of the Provisional
Regional Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government and various other committees, he was active in public
services.

Currently, Mr. Law is an independent non-executive director of
each of Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited (SEHK:8271),
Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited (SEHK:3382), Binhai
Investment Company Limited (SEHK:2886), Regal Hotels International
Holdings Limited (SEHK:78) and Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group)
Corporation Limited (SEHK:8348) respectively, and an independent
supervisor of Beijing Capital International Airport Company Limited
(SEHK:694), all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Chen Jianxiong, aged 63, was appointed Independent Non-
executive Director in June 2020 and is a member of each of
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
respectively.

Mr. Chen is a senior economist and a senior human resources
management specialist. He graduated from Hong Kong Baptist
University with a master of science degree in applied accounting and
finance.

Previously, Mr. Chen was an executive director of China Orient Asset
Management Co., Ltd. and had held various senior positions there
including the vice president, the board secretary and the general
manager of human resources department. He also served sequentially
as the chairman of the board of directors of Bangxin Asset
Management Co., Ltd. and Orient Bangxin Finance Holding Co.,
Ltd. In addition, he had served as the head of deposits division and
head of personnel and education division of Bank of China Zhejiang
Branch. Mr. Chen has extensive experience in the fields of corporate
management, economic and finance, human resources and banking.

Mr. Shen Zongbin, aged 56, was appointed Independent Non-
executive Director in June 2021 and is a member of each of the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee.

Mr. Shen is a practicing lawyer in the PRC and holds the qualifications
of patent attorney and securities investment fund in the PRC. He
graduated from Kyushu University in Japan with a doctoral degree
in engineering, is a post-doctoral fellow and also a senior engineer.
Mr. Shen has extensive experience in law, specialised in corporate
business, investment, merger and acquisition, dispute resolution etc.,
and technology.

Previously, Mr. Shen was the deputy chief engineer of China
Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd. and the post-doctoral
fellow of the post-doctoral mobile station of China Iron & Steel
Research Institute Group Co., Ltd..

Currently, Mr. Shen is a full-time lawyer and a partner of Beijing
Zhongwen Law Firm, a member of All China Lawyers Association and
a member of All China Patent Agents Association. Mr. Shen has also
been appointed as a consultation expert and a duty counsel lawyer of
the Supreme People’s Procuratorate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standard and procedures to safeguard the interests of all
shareholders and to enhance accountability and transparency.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG Code
during the year under review, save for the deviations from code
provision A.4.1 as follows:

Under code provision A.4.1,non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.

None of the existing Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors is appointed for a specific term, but according to
the Articles, every Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every 3 years.

Since all Directors, including the Non-executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors, are also subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election by shareholders at annual general
meetings pursuant to the Articles, the Board therefore considers this
requirement is sufficient to meet the underlying objective of the said
code provision.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) of
the Listing Rules as a code of conduct of the Company for Directors’
securities transactions.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
and the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year under review.

Employees who are likely to possess inside information in relation to
the Company or its shares are required to prohibit from dealing in
Shares during the black-out period.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of 11 (10 male and 1 female)
Directors, being 5 Executive Directors, 2 Non-executive Directors and
4 Independent Non-executive Directors. The list of Directors is set out
in the section headed “Directors’ report” of this annual report. In
addition, an updated list of the Directors and their roles and functions
is published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively.

The Board is characterised by significant diversity with mixed-
gender and has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Company. The Directors’
biographical information is set out in the section headed “Directors’
Biographies” of this annual report.

The Directors give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Group. All Directors are required to disclose to the Company at
the time of their appointment and to provide the number and the
nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments with an indication of the time involved
annually.

Save for those as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’
Biographies” of this annual report, the Board members have no other
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships with
each other.

The Board includes a balanced composition of Executive and Non-
executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors)
so that there is a sufficient independent element on the Board, which
can effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) are of sufficient number and calibre for their views to carry
weight. The functions of Non-executive Directors include:

e  bringing an independent judgement at Board meetings;

e  taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

e serving on Board committees if invited; and

e scrutinising the Company’s performance and monitoring
performance reporting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Composition (continued)

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) have made a positive contribution to the development of
the Group strategy and policies through independent, constructive
and informed comments. They give the Board and the committees
on which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise, varied
backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and
active participation.

Composition of the Board is disclosed, and the Independent Non-
executive Directors are identified, in all corporate communications to
shareholders.

Board Diversity

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 28 August 2013 which sets out its approach to achieve
diversity on the Board with a view to achieving a sustainable and
balanced development of the Group.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The Company will also take into account factors based on its own
business model and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The board will review the implementation and effectiveness of its
board diversity policy annually.

Director Nomination Policy

The Company adopted a director nomination policy (the “Director
Nomination Policy”) on 12 December 2018 which sets out the criteria
and process in the nomination and appointment of directors of the
Company, in order to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company,
and ensure the Board continuity and appropriate leadership at Board
level.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Director Nomination Policy (continued)

According to the selection criteria of the Director Nomination
Policy, the Nomination Committee will carry out evaluation on
candidates by considering their character, professional qualifications,
skills, experience, independence (in case of Independent Non-
executive Directors), gender and time commitment and then make
recommendation to the Board based on the nomination procedure.
The Nomination Committee will also review the Director Nomination
Policy from time to time and recommend proposed amendments to
the Board when necessary to satisfy the business needs and to ensure
its compliance with the regulatory requirements and maintain good
corporate governance practices.

When an INED serving more than 9 years be considered for re-
election, the factors considered, the process and the Board or
Nomination Committee’s discussion in arriving at the determination
in the explanation on why such INED is still independent and should
be re-elected would be disclosed in the papers to shareholders
accompanying the relevant resolution.

Role and Function of the Board and the Management

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and
performance monitoring of the Group. It delegates day-to-day
operations of the Company to the Executive Committee and the
management within the control and authority framework set
by the Board. In addition, the Board has also delegated various
responsibilities to the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Further details of these committees
are set out in this report.

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly and holds at least 4 Board meetings a
year. Additional meetings will be arranged, if and when required. The
Directors can attend meetings in person or through electronic means
of communication in accordance with the Articles.
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(continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Meetings (continued)

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in drawing up the
agenda of each Board meeting. Draft agenda of each regular Board
meeting will be sent to all Directors for review before the agenda is
issued and all Directors may request for inclusion of other matters
in the agenda. The Chairman will take into account the matters
proposed by the Directors and where appropriate, approve the
inclusion of such matters in the agenda of the Board meeting.
Generally, at least 14-day notice of a regular Board meeting is given
and the Company aims at giving reasonable notice for all other
Board meetings. The Company also aims at sending the agenda and
the accompanying board papers, which are prepared in a form and
quality sufficient to enable the Board to make informed decisions
on matters placed before it, to all Directors at least 3 days before
the intended date of a Board meeting. Where queries are raised by
Directors, prompt and full responses will be given if possible.

There has been procedure in place to enable Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expenses. The Board shall resolve to, upon reasonable
request, provide separate independent professional advice to
Directors to assist them perform their duties to the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of Board
meetings and Board committee meetings, draft and final versions
of which would be sent to Directors for comments and records
respectively, within a reasonable time after each meeting. Minutes
are recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered and decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting
views (if any) expressed. Minutes of Board meetings and Board
committees meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are
open for inspection by any Director/committee member.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meetings (continued)

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest
in a matter (including material transaction with connected persons)
which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will
be dealt with by a physical Board meeting, rather than a written
resolution. Independent Non-executive Directors who, and whose
close associates, have no material interest in the transaction should
be present at that Board meeting.

Except for those circumstances permitted by the Articles and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations, a Director shall not vote on any
Board resolution approving any contract or arrangement or any other
proposal in which he or any of his close associates (or associates
where the transaction or arrangement is a connected transaction
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) has a material interest nor
shall he be counted in the quorum present at the meeting.

Attendance Records

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors
have made active contribution to the affairs of the Group. Subject to
the requirements under the Listing Rules, the Board considered and
approved, among other things, various projects contemplated by the
Group in the form of physical meetings and written resolutions, and
the review and approval of the interim results and annual results of
the Group must be done by way of physical meetings.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) EEg (@

Attendance Records (continued) o Re 8% (48)

Records of the Directors’ attendances at the Board meetings, %%)ﬁ”\:%:—iﬁ’]%$§§% BEZLESS
Audit Committee meetings, Nomination Committee meetings, and - RELZEegRkTNEZEEegR s L ERL
Remuneration Committee meetings in 2021 are as follows: ﬁzﬁlﬂ— :

Number of meeting(s) attended/eligible to attend
HESERY SEREESRRE

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Directors Board Committee Committee Committee
5= EEg EREES REEEE FMEES
Executive Directors
HITES
Ding Rucai (Chairman) 717 N/A 38 A 3/3 212
TRA(EE)
Fan Wenli 717 N/A 35 N/AZ3E N/A 35 A
PER &l
Chen Zhaogiang 7/7 N/A 3 N/A 35 A N/A 35 A
R JK 58
Liu Qingshan 7/7 N/A~3E N/A i3 A N/A 35
2F W
Wang Dongming 7/7 N/A 3 A N/A 35 A N/AT i AR
F A
Non-executive Directors
FHITES
Chang Cun 7/7 N/AT i A N/A 3 N/A 38
BF
Shi Yubao 717 N/AT i A N/A 3 3 2/2
KEE
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYEHITES
Choi Wai Yin 717 2/2 3/3 2/2
EREE
Japhet Sebastian Law 717 2/2 3/3 2/2
7B 4
Chen Jianxiong 717 N/AA3E A 3/3 2/2
PR 22 2
Shen Zongbin Mete! 2/2 11 11 0/0
el
Kee Wah Sze Nete ! 4/4 i7Al 11 171

g
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Attendance Records (continued)

Note I: The Board, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee

and the Remuneration Committee had convened 2 meetings,
1 meeting, 1 meeting and 0 meeting respectively during the
period after Mr. Shen Zongbin was appointed by the Board as
the Independent Non-executive Director and a member of each
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee after the conclusion of the AGM 2021
and the GM 2021.

Note II: The Board, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee

and the Remuneration Committee had convened 4 meetings, 1
meeting, 1 meeting and 1 meeting respectively during the period
before the retirement of Mr. Kee Wah Sze as the Independent
Non-executive Director, a member of each of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee
after the conclusion of AGM 2021.

Access to Information

The Board is supplied with sufficient explanation and information
by the management to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of financial and other information put before it for
approval. The management provides all Board members with monthly
updates which give a balanced and understandable assessment of
the Company’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient
details to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties. Where any Director requires more information than
is volunteered by the management, each Director has the right to
separately and independently access to the Company’s management
to make further enquiries if necessary.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by
the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will give
adequate consideration to the Director Nomination Policy and Board
Diversity Policy, will review the profiles of the candidates, and will
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and nomination of Directors.
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(continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors (continued)

According to the Articles, any Director so appointed by the Board
shall hold office, in the case of filling a casual vacancy, only until the
next following general meeting of the Company or, in the case of
an addition to their number, until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company, who shall then be eligible for re-election
at such general meeting. Every Director is subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every 3 years. At each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation.

None of the existing Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors is appointed for a specific term, but they are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders
at annual general meeting pursuant to the Articles. Accordingly,
though deviated from code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, the
Board considers that such requirements are sufficient to meet the
underlying objective of the said code provision.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has appointed 4 Independent Non-executive Directors
and at least one of them has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise, complied
with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The number of Independent Non-executive Directors represents more
than one-third of the Board, complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules.

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation regarding the
independence of himself and his immediate family members pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company considers that all of
the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Pursuant to code provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, if an independent
non-executive director has served more than nine years, such
director’s further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders. The papers to
shareholders accompanying that resolution should state why the
board (or the nomination committee) believes that the director is
still independent and should be re-elected, including the factors
considered, the process and the discussion of the board (or the
nomination committee) in arriving at such determination.

During the year under review, Mr. Choi Wai Yin, an Independent
Non-executive Director serving the board for more than 9 years, was
re-elected in accordance with the code provision. In the AGM 2022,
no Independent Executive Director serving the Board more than 9
years will be re-elected.

Currently, no Independent Non-executive Director held 7 (or more)
listed company directorships. Each Independent Non-executive
Director has indicated that he is able to devote sufficient time to the
Board's affairs to fulfil his responsibilities, and has confirmed that he
does not hold any cross directorship or other significant links with
other directors through involvement in other companies.

Insurance for Directors’ and Officers’ Liability

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities has
been in force to protect the Directors and officers from their risk
exposure arising from the businesses of the Group.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introduction of
regulatory requirements. Directors are continually updated on the
latest development of the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate
governance practice. Directors are also encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company Secretary facilitates induction
and professional development of Directors and the Company is
responsible for arranging and funding suitable training for the
Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

(continued)

All Directors have provided to the Company their records of training
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received during the year under review, a summary of which is as  EFIMEEE - 20T -

follows:

Continuous professional development

FMEEECAARRRERERDBEFERES

Directors Type (Note I) Subject (Note Il)
=3 BEGH) AR (GHI)
Ding Rucai A 3
T&A B 1,2,3,4
Fan Wenli A 3
SBCH B 1,2,3,4
Chen Zhaogiang A 3
BRIk B 1,2,3,4
Liu Qingshan A 3
21510 B 1,2,3,4
Wang Dongming A 3
F LB B 1,2,3,4
Chang Cun

e B 1,2, 4
Shi Yubao

BFEE B 1,2, 4
Choi Wai Yin

ZHREE B 1,2, 4
Japhet Sebastian Law A 1
7E X ik B 1,2, 4
Chen Jianxiong

g = B 1,2, 4
Shen Zongbin (be appointed on 30 June 2021)

EMRBR_E—FNA=+THEZE) B 1,2
Kee Wah Sze (retired on 30 June 2021)

WELT(MRZZEZ—FA=THED B 1,4
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Training and Professional Development
(continued)

Continuous professional development (continued)

Note I

A:  Attending seminars, conferences, forums, in-house briefings or in-house
training

B:  Reading newspapers, journals and updates
Note II:

1. Laws, rules and regulations

2:  Finance, accounting or taxation

3: Management

4:  Businesses relating to the Group

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The roles of chairman and managing director are separate and
exercised by different individuals to reinforce their independence and
accountability. Mr. Ding Rucai is the Chairman and Mr. Fan Wenli
is the managing director of the Company. The Chairman provides
leadership for the Board and ensures that the Board works effectively
and performs its responsibilities. The managing director of the
Company has overall chief executive responsibility for the Group’s
business development and day-to-day management generally. The
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the managing
director of the Company is clearly established and set out in writing.
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(continued)

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
(continued)

The responsibilities of the Chairman include, amongst other things:

e taking primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established;

e ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at Board meetings, and ensuring that Directors receive, in a
timely manner, adequate information which must be accurate,
clear, complete and reliable;

e encouraging all Directors to make a full and active contribution
to the Board's affairs and taking the lead to ensure that the
Board acts in the best interest of the Company;

e encouraging Directors with different views to voice their
concerns, allowing sufficient time for discussion of issues and
ensuring that Board decisions fairly reflect Board consensus;

e ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communications with shareholders and that their views are
communicated to the Board as a whole; and

e promoting a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the
effective contribution of Non-executive Directors in particular
and ensuring constructive relations between Executive and Non-
executive Directors.

During the year, the Chairman held meeting with the Independent
Non-executive Directors without the presence of other Directors.

“T- 44 ERBELEREEARAT 157

TRER
)

=|=
u::

/‘\

Il

ITERESHAEEE

ETFEOHBEHB)BE

s HEBRAAMERHNEEERAERNLERF
STHEXEEE:

s BREZSERLMBEFHEEND
MER UREREFERKIIZTD E’J’§
A MEBEMRINLAERESH RTHEA

g

s HZEMAESERNIBRAEZFESH  AUNUH
R BREFSITENEARARER

s HBABTREANEEREAFEINE
H HRTELEEREHETHR - ARER
EEgMATRAERRESSHHE

o MBREIEESBRITERRBUBE - N
LERERER B REESES &

o RIEAR  ERIRHOXE  REEEM
BIRIFRTER)HEFTSEFHARAR -
VHERATEFEFRNPTEF CHERER
TR -

FA - ETFEEBUIPTEERITTREAME
%Hjﬁmsuﬁo



158 SHOUGANG FUSHAN RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2021

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(continued)

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board’s responsibilities. All committees have their
own terms of reference. All resolutions passed by the committees will
be reported to the Board at the Board meeting where appropriate.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established in May 2009 with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authorities and
duties.

The Executive Committee has been conferred with the general
powers of the Board (except those matters specifically reserved for
the Board) to manage and oversee the operations of the Group and
has been assigned with the responsibilities to perform the corporate
governance duties as follows:

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

e to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

e to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Group’s employees
and Directors;

e  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

e to conform to any requirement, direction, regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in
the constitution of the Company or imposed by legislation.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued) EEgBETZEE (@)

Executive Committee (continued) HTZEEE(E)

As per the list below, the Executive Committee comprises all Executive  ZATNRFTY| » HITEESHEEWNITE BHMK -
Directors with the Chairman as the chairman of the committee. WAFFEABNTEEGERE -

Committee chairman Ding Rucai ZEEER TaF

Member Fan Wenli 4=l SEF

Member Chen Zhaogiang K& BRIkag

Member Liu Qingshan KB EI

Member Wang Dongming K& T4

During the year under review, 1 meeting for the purpose of REIBEFER  ITZEELRITTIXNABITD

performing the corporate governance duties was held by the EEARBEMAHAMNSE  FIEEREITHONTT
Executive Committee, all members at the time (namely Ding Rucai, ZE&KEEIT %A « BXH - BIksg - 25 1L
Fan Wenli, Chen Zhaogiang, Liu Qingshan and Wang Dongming) REXB)HEHEZEH - NITLZESRRIEF
attended that meeting. The major works performed by the Executive ERWETEIE(EPEIFWMT

Committee during the year under review included, amongst other

things, the following:

e reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG Code and o R ARABETOEEASTHINIBER K ER

A NT

disclosure in the corporate governance report of the Company; (BEERHRE) ARETE
e managed and overseeing the daily operation of the Group; and e TERERAEE7BTETERE

e performed corporate governance duties. o BITHREEREE -
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in October 1999 with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authorities and
duties. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are posted on
the website of the Company.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, amongst other
things:

e making recommendations to the board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and handling any questions of its resignation or
dismissal;

*  reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
in accordance with applicable standards, and discuss with
the auditor the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations before the audit commences;

e reviewing and monitoring integrity of the issuer’s financial
statements, annual report and accounts and interim report, and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgements contained
in them;

e reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems;

e ensuring the reporting principles of the ESG report complied
with the requirement of the Listing Rules, and reported the
finding to the Board; and

e  reviewing the arrangements that employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate any activity
within its terms of reference and the authority to obtain outside
legal or other independent professional advice, at the Company’s
expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers necessary. It is
given access to and assistance from the employees and reasonable
resources to perform its duties properly.

BEREEE

%?iéf\# ANNE+AKY ZEAE
EREEEE 220 /%%EHREHEH&TE&EE =
REZEEENBEEBEZTHN AR RMEE L -

i3

BERZBENIEREEP R -

o BMINERBEINEE ENERENEEZAE
EeRMHER - AN RBE N MK
FRIGR » e IR (E ] 5 B8 % AR SR B i B S B
RZZBENEEE

s RERNRERFTMEFIIEZBMIS
URBRZBEFELER IEAV%(IVE
B %A Al St LA BT A iR BUIE E R IS 0 B
PAERET

o EHMEFRBTANMBER FEHER
FREARPHHRENTEMY  XEFBRRN
BEMBEABVERROBERER

o BEARANMBEHFERF  REREELA
Gl e

o MRRER HERERABMENSLMHRAUE
KZBERRA - WRAEESER: K

o RHEARAREBRNAERTNERTRYBE
o ABERREMIEAEEENTEE
TRIRELBITIZEELZHE -

ERZESEANERN  IRERERERE
EREE  YTARERREREIIMNOUEERE
B EERR NETERE  ERALXLQT
Xt - BREEENARREEBRHERGE
MBEENERIAZZBITER -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(continued)

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

As per the list below, the chairman and all members of the Audit
Committee are Independent Non-executive Directors. None of the
members of the Audit Committee are former partners of the auditor
of the Company.

Committee chairman Choi Wai Yin
Member Japhet Sebastian Law
Member Shen Zongbin (be appointed on
30 June 2021)
Member Kee Wah Sze (retired on 30 June 2021)

The major works performed by the Audit Committee during the year
under review included, amongst other things, the following:

° reviewed the final results and annual financial statements of the
Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2020;

° reviewed the interim results and interim financial statements of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2021,

e reviewed the reports on the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group prepared by the internal audit
department;

e oversaw and reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management (including ESG risks) and internal control systems
(including financial, operational and compliance controls);

e met with the auditor of the Company in the absence of
management, to discuss matters relating to its audit fees, any
issues arising from the audit and any other matters the auditor
may wish to raise;

e made recommendation to the Board regarding the re-
appointment of Company’s auditor; and

e  reviewed the ESG report and to ensure the reporting principles
complied with the requirement of the Listing Rules, and reported
the finding to the Board.

During the year under review, the Board had no disagreement
with the Audit Committee’s view on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditor.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in May 2009 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are posted on the website of the Company.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

e reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

e identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board;

e assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors;

e making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors; and

e reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and
reviewing the measurable objectives that have been set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and reviewing the
progress on achieving the objectives.

Where vacancies exist at the Board, candidates are proposed and
put forward to the Nomination Committee for consideration. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee made in accordance
to the Director Nomination Policy will then be tendered to the Board
for approval. In considering the nomination of a new Director,
the Nomination Committee will give adequate consideration to
the Board Diversity Policy and take into account the qualification,
ability, working experience, leadership and professional ethics of the
candidates. In determining the independence of Directors, the Board
follows the requirements set out in the Listing Rules.
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(continued)

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee has explicit authority to seek any
necessary information from the employees within its scope of
duties and the authority to obtain outside independent professional
advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if it
considers necessary.

As per the list below, the chairman of the Nomination Committee
is the Chairman and the Independent Non-executive Directors
constitute the majority of the Nomination Committee.

Committee chairman Ding Rucai
Member Choi Wai Yin
Member Japhet Sebastian Law
Member Chen Jianxiong
Member Shen Zongbin (be appointed on
30 June 2021)
Member Kee Wah Sze (retired on 30 June 2021)

The major works performed by the Nomination Committee during
the year under review included, amongst other things, the following:

e assessed the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors;

e  considered and making recommendations to the Board on the
re-election of Directors at the annual general meeting;

e  reviewed the existing Board Diversity Policy; and
. made recommendation to the Board in accordance to the

Director Nomination Policy for the appointment of Mr. Shen
Zongbin as the Independent Non-executive Director.
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(continued)

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in September 2005
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are posted on the website of the Company.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

e making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Group;

e reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Company’s goals and objectives;

e  determining, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of Non-executive Directors;

e considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

e reviewing and approving compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management and compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct; and

e ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved
in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee may consult the Chairman and/or
the managing director of the Company about their remuneration
proposals for other Executive Directors. It has explicit authority to seek
any necessary information from the employees within its scope of
duties and the authority to obtain outside independent professional
advice, at the Company'’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if it
considers necessary.
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(continued)

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The remuneration policies for the Company as well as the Directors
are market alignment and reward for performance. The Company
reviews the remuneration package annually taking into consideration
of the market practice, competitive market position and individual
performance.

As per the list below, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
is an Independent Non-executive Director and the Independent Non-
executive Directors constitute the majority of the Remuneration
Committee.

Committee chairman Japhet Sebastian Law
Member Ding Rucai
Member Shi Yubao
Member Choi Wai Yin
Member Chen Jianxiong
Member Shen Zongbin (be appointed on
30 June 2021)
Member Kee Wah Sze (retired on 30 June 2021)

The major works performed by the Remuneration Committee during
the year under review included, amongst other things, the following:

e reviewed the performance and the remuneration packages of
the Directors; and

. made recommendations to the Board on the terms of the
engagement letter, and the remuneration of Mr. Shen Zongbin.

Details of remuneration paid to the Directors and senior management
for the year under review are set out in note 14 to the audited
consolidated financial statements.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and that board policy and
procedures are followed. The Company Secretary is also responsible
for advising the Board through the Chairman and/or the managing
director of the Company on corporate governance and the
implementation of the CG Code. The Company Secretary Ms. Kong
Ling Yan (“Ms. Kong”) was an employee of the Company before
9 November 2021, after which her appointment as the Company
Secretary was continued through an engagement between Anthony
Siu & Co., in which Ms. Kong has been an employee since 9
November 2021, and the Company. The chief financial officer of
the Company, Ms. Lam Lin Chu, is her contact person to update Ms.
Kong and Ms. Kong day-to-day knowledge of the Group's affairs.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the managing
director of the Company. All Directors also have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that board
procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations, are
followed. The selection, appointment and dismissal of the Company
Secretary are subject to the Board approval.

The Company Secretary has confirmed that she has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year under
review.

EREREE
(40

DNEMWE

RAWEXEREFS  BREFGKEZHEM
RRRE  AREZERRMEFSNERE -2
AWETARBEBIRNE S AARERBER
MEFERERERBAREEERTRIZHET
EERHER - ARWBIRB(IXLIRZ
Z_—F+—-ANBMAARRNEER K&
TEERB—ERMITZEER ARREBFT—
BEMTHBZEIZXEIRARNE  MARF]
MBREMERZL T /HIT R EHBARILLA
BAEENBEEER -

NEAMERNIFERARRERTRLEER - A
EZNARBARAMENER MR - UERE
ZeRFERMAERER  RAUNROGNE
o ARWEMREE  ZTEBMBALESSMH
JE °

NRAMERBERLABFARI TDORI5/NER
MR E R -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal Control

The Group adopted and implemented the Group's internal control
system that is appropriate to the Group by making reference to the
Committee of Sponsoring Organisation of the Treadway Commission
("COSO") Internal Control — Integrated Framework. The Group’s
internal control system is to achieve operations, reporting, and
compliance objectives, implemented within the Group's entities,
divisions, operating units and functions, through various internal
control components in the areas of control environment, risk
assessment, control activities, information and communication and
monitoring activities. The Group’s internal control system comprises
17 principles on effective internal controls as illustrated as follows:
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Internal Control Components — 17 Principles on Effective Internal Controls

AMEZRER - 17RERAREZRA

Control Environment

VR BEMEE

ZEEIRR

1. Demonstrates commitment to integrity and ethical values
RIRE HE B R E A A

2. Exercises oversight responsibility
BITEECEGE

3. Establishes structure, authority, and responsibility

PR R DOMEAKE

Operations, Reporting and 4. Demonstrates commitment to competence
Compliance Objectives BORBEERBERBEZAT
EREE EXRR 5. Enforces accountability
BRNERE AR BTS2 BEERER
Risk Assessment
[ B T
6. Specifies suitable objectives
REBBMBIZ
7. Identifies and analyses risk
WRER DR
8. Assesses fraud risk
B GEg2eaE
9. Identifies and analyses significant change
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(continued)

Internal Control (continued)

R RBEE 2 (4])

Operations, Reporting and
Compliance Objectives
(continued)

ENEE EHBK
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Internal Control Components — 17 Principles on Effective Internal Controls
(continued)
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Control Activities

ZEHIER
10.  Selects and develops control activities

11.

12.

BEREEHEE

Selects and develops general controls over technology

BERBRBE BN BT — RIEH

Deploys through policies and procedures

7 AR RE IR M A2 Fr

Information and Communication

EMEESE
13.  Uses relevant information
ERAERREM
14.  Communicates internally
WERE R
15.  Communicates externally
HNERE R
Monitoring Activities
EE
16.  Conducts ongoing and/or separate evaluations

17.

FHEE &S A B A
Evaluates and communicates deficiencies

BREISYES TS

The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control system
and for reviewing its appropriateness and effectiveness. The Audit
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Committee is authorised to assist the Board to conduct relevant ZEE@EEREBBEZSETHEBR - &
review. The Group's internal control system manages, but not BHAINEZERRE EEEMIEHR ARGEEZEKER
eliminates, risks against the achievement of the Group’s objectives, SEXBEFRNER - MARERTEHEAN
and provides a reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against KEFRMSIEL - (EH SR M IERE A IRE

material misstatement or loss.
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(continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Internal Control (continued)

Based on the defined objectives, the management of the Group
identifies and evaluates significant risks, and subsequently selects,
adopts and implements appropriate internal control procedures.
Through continuous monitoring, the management of the Group
maintains an effective internal control system. The internal audit
department of the Group conducts testing on the internal control
system, reports deficiencies, recommends remedy solutions to the
management and follows up implementation of recommendations.

The Audit Committee monitors, assesses and reviews the findings of
the internal control systems from the management and the internal
audit department of the Group on an ongoing basis, and regularly
report to the Board.

The Group sets up an internal audit department which directly reports
to the Audit Committee. The staffs of the internal audit department
comprised of qualified and experienced professionals. Based on
the risk-based internal audit plan, the internal audit department is
authorised unrestrictedly to conduct independent assessment on the
Group'’s business, risk management and internal control system.

This year, the management of the Group provided a confirmation
to the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the internal control
system, including the effectiveness of the issuer’s processes for
financial reporting and “Listing Rules” compliance, and considers the
system is effective and adequate. The Audit Committee reviewed and
reported the results to the Board.

This year, the Audit Committee reviewed the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions and satisfied the adequacy of the arrangement.

Risk Management

The structure of the Group’s risk management system based on:
1) Risk Governance Structure; and 2) Risk Management Procedures.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Risk Governance Structure

The Group's risk governance structure is based on a “Three Lines of
Defense” model, with oversight by the Board on an ongoing basis
and is reviewed by the Audit Committee and subsequently reported
to the Board on the effectiveness of the risk management system.

Under the “Three Lines of Defense” model, major risk management
functions and measures in each line are as follows:
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2nd Line of Defense:
Risk Monitoring Function

EERAR - BRI

1st Line of Defense:
Risk Management Function

EEMS - EREERE

3rd Line of Defense:
Independent Assurance Function

FoERR  BUREHE

1) Identify and evaluate risks, 1)
adopt measures to manage risks
BRI R ET G R - BREUE HELA
EIRE R

2) Self-assessment on the
effectiveness of the measures, 2)
adjust timely to mitigate risks
BERBEEROKI - EHRH
BEBEE

HEMETTE

Monitor design appropriateness | 1)
and implementation of risk
management procedures
EERRERIRTHNRAEE
Promote delivery of risk
management information
R R EIREMNEE

Independent assessment

on the appropriateness

and effectiveness of risk
management system
HEREBRGNSELNE
MM EITE LB

Risk Management Procedures

The Group adopted and implemented the Group’s risk management
policy and procedures that is appropriate to the Group by making
reference to the COSO Enterprise Risk Management Framework.

The Board is responsible for assessing and determining the Group's
risk appetite regarding the nature and magnitude and constructs a
risk management procedures allowing a tone at the top and bottom
up reporting.

Top-Down Approach

The Board, through the management of the Group, communicates to
entities, divisions, operating units and subsidiaries regarding potential
effects on inherent risks and emerging risks, and defines standards on
the Group's risk appetite and risk tolerance level.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Bottom Up Approach

Based on the guidance from the Board and incorporation of annual
operating plan, the Group's entities, divisions, operating units and
subsidiaries identify potential risks that affect the achievement of
objectives. Every potential risk is evaluated based on the impact and
likelihood. Appropriate risk responses, such as accepting, avoiding,
transferring and controlling, are used to manage the risks based on
the assessment results and the risk appetite and risk tolerance level
defined by the Board.

The Board is responsible for the Group’s risk management system
and for reviewing its appropriateness and effectiveness. The Audit
Committee is authorised to assist the Board to conduct relevant
review. The Group’s risk management system manages, but not
eliminates, risks against the achievement of the Group’s objectives,
and provides a reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The management monitors the design and implementation of the
risk management procedures on an ongoing basis. The internal audit
department assesses the effectiveness of the risk management system
independently. The Audit Committee monitors, assesses and reviews
the findings of risk management systems from the management and
the internal audit department of the Group on an ongoing basis, and
regularly report to the Board.

This year, the management of the Group provided a confirmation to
the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management
system, and considers the system is effective and adequate. The Audit
Committee reviewed and reported the review to the Board.

EREREE
(40

[ e B B % A B BE 4 (48)

mimLt

AEBENTEE D8 EBETIMBELRE
EEEEEEETENARRLT - AERREFEL
EREMBE  BRFEEXBENELERR
HBE—EHOER  RREFZEREMELR
BEIEETTRIE - RIBFIARHNAER Y 2RES
SRENRARRENARERE  BBEX - E
& BRI HIR A KRS ER -

EXRAUAREEREERGNRET XE
ATHRBREERGENAEEMBRIEETR
e BRZRESCERERDESTSETARR
A AEEMRERERRSE EERMIEERR
ERENAKEXFREMNRER MARERTE
BEAMRERMSIBRELAEMIEBH MK

2K oo
Rz

EEEHERERREFORMRITETHED
EE - ANETHRERRERRGETEILN
B -BRZESNERERARNENAYRARE
BERGNBASHERETHERE  FENES
VERNESTSEREZER °

AEE AEBERECERAEXZESRHAR
EERGELARNER > YARREZBGET
T URBZEREARNEN - BELEZE
SERNEFCERTZLER



172 SHOUGANG FUSHAN RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2021

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(continued)

INSIDE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY

The Company adopted an inside information disclosure policy (the
“Inside Information Disclosure Policy”) on 21 December 2015 which
sets out the procedures for the handling and dissemination of inside
information with a view to preventing uneven, inadvertent or selective
dissemination of inside information and ensuring shareholders and
the public are provided with full, accurate and timely information
about the activities and the financial condition of the Group. The
Inside Information Disclosure Policy covers the following:

e setting out the processes for identifying, assessing and escalating
potential inside information to the Board;

e setting out the responsibilities of officers in preserving the
confidentiality of inside information, escalating upwards any
such potential information and cascading down the message
and responsibilities to relevant staff; and

e identifying who are the Company’s authorised spokespersons
and their responsibilities for communications with stakeholders
of the Company.

In addition, the Company has communicated to all relevant staff
regarding the implementation of the Inside Information Disclosure
Policy.

The Board considers that the Company’s existing measures are
effective and appropriate compliance mechanisms to safeguard the
Company and its officers in discharging their disclosure obligations in
respect of inside information.

The Inside Information Disclosure Policy is posted on the website of
the Company.
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(continued)

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to the
auditor of the Company is set out as follows:
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EEFRE XN BN FARRAZEEMOHE
SR

HK$'000

Services rendered FriR AR 7% BT T

Statutory audit services for 2021 R —FEAEETRS 1,650
Non-statutory audit services: IEETEF IR -

Review on interim financial report EEP B RS 350

Other services HAn AR 50

2,050

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing financial
statements of the Group which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group on a going concern basis and in presenting the
annual and interim reports and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, the Directors aim to present a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of the Group’s position and
prospects.

The statement of the auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
about its reporting responsibilities on the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 196 to 205 of this annual report.
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(continued)

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board formalised and adopted a dividend policy for the Company
which took effect from 12 December 2018 and it aims to allow the
shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits whilst retaining
adequate reserves for the future growth of the Group.

The Company intends to distribute not less than 40% of its net profit
attributable to the shareholders (not less than dividend payout ratio
of 40%) in each financial year as dividends. However, the Board will
take into account certain factors of the Group when considering
the declaration or recommendation of dividends, which includes the
actual and expected financial performance, retained earnings and
distributable reserves, liquidity position, general economic conditions,
business cycle of the Group’s businesses and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the businesses or financial
performance and position of the Group, and other factors that the
Board may consider relevant.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

On 22 March 2012, the Board adopted a shareholders’
Communication Policy reflecting the current practices of the Company
for communication with its shareholders. Such policy aims at ensuring
the shareholders of the Company are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company, in order to enable shareholders to exercise their rights in
an informed manner, and to allow shareholders to engage actively
with the Company. The Board would review the policy regularly.

To foster effective communications with the shareholders,
the Company provides extensive information in its annual
and interim reports and announcements. All shareholders’
communications are also available on the Company’s website at
www.shougang-resources.com.hk.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman
of the board should attend the annual general meeting and invite
the chairman of other committees to attend. The annual general
meeting of the Company provides a useful forum for shareholders to
exchange views with the Board. All Directors will make an effort to
attend, external auditor will also be available at the annual general
meeting to address shareholders’ queries. In case of any general
meeting to approve a connected transaction or any other transaction
that is subject to independent shareholders’ approval, members of
the independent Board committee will also make an effort to attend
to address shareholders’ queries.
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(continued)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, attended the
AGM 2021, while the Directors’ attendances at the AGM and GM

2021 are provided as follows:
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TRER
()
S5 A5 3R B9 4 (A

RAGMZEENE ERK BRI EBIHET
“ECFREBFAE MEEN_ZT-_—F
BEREAFASM-_T-_—FREKRNG HFE L0
—|T :

AGM 2021 GM 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
Directors 2= BRBFERE BERAE
Ding Rucai (Chairman of the Board, the Executive TEZAESE  WTEES v v
Committee and the Nomination Committee) MIREEZEEXF)
Fan Wenli SBF v v
Chen Zhaogiang BRIk v v
Liu Qingshan 25 W v v
Wang Dongming F £BA v v
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Chang Cun BT X X
Shi Yubao BHEE v v
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHTES
Choi Wai Yin (Chairman of the Audit Committee)  ZEHEB(BHZEZEEIF) v v
Japhet Sebastian Law (Chairman of the BNHEFHEZESER) v v
Remuneration Committee)
Chen Jianxiong PeR 22 1 v v
Shen Zonghintete ! TR X N/AZ 3 F N/AZ 3 FB
Kee Wah Szetote! wELA X N/AZ i A

Note I:
2021.

Note II:
AGM 2021 and GM 2021 were held.

Kee Wah Sze retired as Director after the conclusion of the AGM

Shen Zongbin had not been appointed as the Director when the
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(continued)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(continued)

All notices of general meetings dispatched by the Company to
its shareholders for meetings held will be sent for annual general
meeting at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and at
least 10 clear business days for all other general meetings, if any.
Separate resolutions will be proposed at general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors, and all resolutions put to the vote of a general meeting
will be taken by way of a poll. At the general meetings, the chairman
of the meetings will explain the procedures for conducting a poll
and answer questions from shareholders on voting by poll, if any.
The results of the poll will be published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively. During the year, all general
meeting of the Company were held in accordance to the aforesaid
arrangement.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convene a General Meeting

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of
all shareholders of the Company having a right to vote at general
meetings can request the Directors to call a general meeting pursuant
to Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance. The request must state
the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting
and may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at the meeting. Such request must
be authenticated by the shareholder(s) making it and sent to the
Company in hard copy form or in electronic form for the attention of
the Company Secretary.
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(continued)

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Put Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all shareholders of the Company or at least 50 shareholders
who have a relevant right to vote at a general meeting can request
the Company to circulate to the shareholders of the Company a
statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to a matter
mentioned in a proposed resolution or other business to be dealt
with at that meeting pursuant to Section 580 of the Companies
Ordinance. The expenses shall be borne by the shareholder(s) making
the request unless the meeting concerned is an annual general
meeting and the statement is received by the Company in time for
sending with the notice of the meeting. The request must identify
the statement to be circulated, and must be authenticated by the
shareholder(s) making it and sent to the Company in hard copy form
or in electronic form for the attention of the Company Secretary at
least 7 days before the meeting to which it relates.

Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of
all shareholders of the Company or at least 50 shareholders who have
a right to vote on the resolution at an annual general meeting can
request the Company to give to the shareholders of the Company
notice of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at that meeting pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies
Ordinance. The request must identify the resolution of which notice is
to be given, and must be authenticated by the shareholder(s) making
it and sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form
for the attention of the Company Secretary no later than 6 weeks
before the annual general meeting to which the requests relate, or if
later, the time at which notice of the meeting is given.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Specific enquiries or suggestions by shareholders can be sent in
writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the registered
office of the Company or by email to the Company. In addition,
shareholders can contact Tricor Tengis Limited, the share registrar of
the Company, if they have any enquiries about their shareholdings
and entitlement to dividend. Relevant contact details are set out on
page 3 of this annual report.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Articles during the year under review.
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The Board have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year under
review.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries and associate are set out in
notes 37 and 20 to the audited consolidated financial statements
respectively.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year under review and the financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are set out in the
audited consolidated financial statements on pages 206 to 308 of
this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has a policy on the payment of dividends, which is set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

Subject to shareholders’ approval of the proposed final dividend at
the AGM 2022, the dividend payout out ratio for the year under
review is approximately 80%.
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DIVIDEND

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK32.0 cents per Share
for the year under review (2020 final dividend: HK9.0 cents per
Share), payable to shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company at the close of business on Monday,
11 July 2022. The proposed final dividend (HK32.0 cents per Share)
together with the interim dividend (HK8.0 cents per Share) paid in
2021 will make a total dividend of HK40.0 cents per Share for the
year under review (2020 total dividend: HK16.5 cents per Share).

Subject to shareholders’ approval of the proposed final dividend at
the AGM 2022, the final dividend is expected to be paid on Friday,
29 July 2022. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 11 July 2022 for registration.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 23 June 2022 to Tuesday, 28 June 2022 (both days
inclusive) to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM 2022. During such period, no transfer of Shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the entitlement to attend and vote
at the AGM 2022, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 22 June
2022 for registration.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year under review is
set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 12 to 14 and pages
15 to 33 of this annual report respectively.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of

the Group for the last 5 financial years is set out on page 309 of this
annual report.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no borrowings.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movement in the Company’s share capital during the year

under review are set out in note 33 to the audited consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year under
review amounted to approximately HK$120,000.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Ding Rucai

Fan Wenli

Chen Zhaogiang

Liu Qingshan

Wang Dongming

Non-Executive Directors
Chang Cun
Shi Yubao

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Choi Wai Yin

Japhet Sebastian Law

Chen Jianxiong

Shen Zongbin (be appointed on 30 June 2021)
Kee Wah Sze (retired on 30 June 2021)

In accordance with article 102(A) of the Articles, Mr. Fan Wenli, Mr.
Chen Zhaogiang, Ms. Chang Cun and Mr. Shi Yubao, will retire at
the AGM 2022 by rotation, whereas in accordance with article 93
of the Articles, and Mr. Shen Zongbin, whose appointment as the
Independent Non-executive Director took effect on 30 June 2021,
shall hold office until the AGM 2022.

All the retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM 2022. The re-election of these retiring Directors
will be individually voted on by shareholders.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year under review and up to the date of this report,
directors of the subsidiaries of the Company include Ding Rucai,
Fan Wenli, Chen Zhaogiang, Liu Qingshan, Wang Dongming,
Gao Xiangdong, Kang Jizhong, Song Kaiyong, Fu Jinghua, Chen
Hui, Wang Liping, Xue Kang, Zhang Yanjun, Wang Ruigang, Mu
Sannu, Tian Fengfa, Yang Jiyou, Kang Jianping, Song Yangping,
Huang Peng * Cheng Zhongjun * Du Xiufeng, Gao Xingang*, Liang
Weiming*, and Zhang Xiaojun*.

L As of the date of this report (24 March 2022), that person had ceased to
be the director of the subsidiary of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

As permitted by the Articles, every Director or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officer’s
liability coverage for the directors and officers of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within 1 year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year under review.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS

There has been no change to the information of the Directors as
at the date of this annual report that is required to be disclosed
pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The Directors who held office at 31 December 2021 had the
following interests in the Shares as at that day as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code of the Listing Rules:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Long Positions in the Shares (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Company’s Directors, chief executives or their respective associates
had any other personal, family, corporate and other interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year under review was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, its parent company or any subsidiary of its parent
company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts that is significant in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, its parent company or any subsidiary of its parent
company was a party and in which a Director or his/her connected
entities had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, at any
time during the year under review or subsisted at the end of the year
under review.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the year under review, none of the Directors had any interests
in a business which competes or may compete with the business of
the Group or has any other conflict of interest with the Group which
would be required to be disclosed under Rule 8.10 of the Listing
Rules.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2021, according to the register kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO, the following companies
and persons had interests of 5% or more in the Shares and/or
underlying Shares which fell to be disclosed to the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Long Positions in the Shares/Underlying Shares

Capacity in which

Number of Shares/

EEERE®@
EENBEEB AR

REBEFERN  BEEERN —HEAEEERKE
AR F KA BB F SR A TR K
HMALEFETCMNEMASERMERE LR
BIZE8. 10K EH 155 -

BREESZRPERGETHE KRR
BENKE

RIBZ—F+ZA=+—RH BERRFIKRZE
F R BB GHIFEI36HRFZELMAE - T
RARATRARERS &/ REBBRDFEE5%
A LR - MARER S M EMIEXVEEE
2R F3INBAANRBIWE -

RARKRE, HERDZHR

Interests as to

% of the total
number of Shares
in issue as at

Name of shareholder interests were held underlying Shares 31 December 2021 Note
L
R-B=-—F
+=—B=+—H
AFRG ERTARRG
BRRERB A BEEDZEHD HEARROEE BY2EDLE Hiat
Shougang Group Interests of controlled corporations 1,671,726,490 33.09% /
EEES:] RPEE 2w
Funde Sino Life Beneficial owner 1,590,100,000 31.47% Il

BEmEAA

BREBAS
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
(continued)

Long Positions in the Shares/Underlying Shares
(continued)

Notes:

Save

The data shown in the table is based on the disclosure form dated 18
February 2021 (being the latest disclosure form filed up to 31 December
2021). Shougang Group was interested in the Shares held by its
associated companies, namely; (i) Shougang Holding (a company wholly-
owned by Shougang Group, holding 15,492,000 Shares); (i) King Rich
Group Limited (a company wholly-owned by Shougang Holding, holding
171,862,000 Shares); (iii) Prime Success Investments Limited (a company
wholly owned by Shougang Holding, holding 20,410,000 Shares); (iv)
Fair Gain Investments Limited (a company wholly-owned by Shoucheng
Holdings which is a company held as to 34.91% interests by Shougang
Group indirectly per the latest disclosure form of Shoucheng Holdings
filed by Shougang Group, holding 200,043,993 Shares); (v) Fine Power
Group Limited (a company wholly-owned by Shoucheng Holdings,
holding 663,918,497 Shares); and (vi) Ultimate Capital Limited (a
company wholly-owned by Excel Bond Investments Limited, of which the
interest was deemed to be held by King Rich Group Limited, which had
conditionally agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital of Excel
Bond Investments Limited from a company wholly-owned by Shoucheng
Holdings pursuant to the supplementary information of the disclosure
form, holding 600,000,000 Shares).

The data shown in the table is based on the disclosure form dated
28 September 2020 (being the latest disclosure form filed up to 31
December 2021).

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company

has not been notified of any other person (other than the Directors
and chief executives of the Company) who had an interest or short
position in the Shares and/or underlying Shares which fell to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the

SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no contracts of
significance have been entered into between the Company (or any
of its subsidiaries) and the controlling shareholder (or any of its
subsidiaries) during the year under review.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, there is a sufficiency of
public float of the Company’s securities as required under the Listing
Rules as at the date of this annual report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 25 May 2012, the shareholders of the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant share options to selected participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or any entity in which
any member of the Group holds any equity interest (the “Invested
Entities”). The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective from
29 May 2012, being the date on which the Listing Committee of the
Stock Exchange granting its approval to the listing of, and permission
to deal in, the Shares which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme, and ending
on 25 May 2022, being the tenth anniversary of the date on which
the Share Option Scheme was adopted by the shareholders of the
Company (both dates inclusive).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion,
offer full-time or part-time employees, executives, officers or directors
(including executive and non-executive directors) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or any of the Invested Entities, and any advisors,
consultants, agents, suppliers, customers and distributors, who, in
the sole opinion of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to
the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or any of the Invested
Entities, share options to subscribe for Shares.

No share option has been granted under the Share Option Scheme
since its adoption. The maximum number of Shares available for issue
upon exercise of all share options which may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme is 530,183,784, representing 10.5% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report. The total number
of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon the exercise of
share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding share options) to each grantee in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
number of Shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the issue
of a circular by the Company and shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an Independent Non-executive Director, or to any of
their associates, which would result in the Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such
person in the 12-month period up to and including the date of the
offer of such grant (a) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
Shares in issue on the date of the grant; and (b) having an aggregate
value of in excess of HK$5,000,000 (based on the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the date of each grant), such further grant of options shall be
subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and shareholders’
approval in a general meeting on a poll at which the grantee, his/
her associates and all core connected persons of the Company shall
abstain from voting in favour of the resolution concerning the grant
of such options, and/or such other requirements prescribed under the
Listing Rules from time to time. A connected person of the Company
will be permitted to vote against the grant only if his intention to do
so has been stated in the circular. Any grant of share options to a
Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company,
or to any of their associates, is required to be approved by the
Independent Non-executive Directors (excluding the Independent
Non-executive Director who is the grantee of the options).

Annual Report 2021
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The period during which a share option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no share
option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted
under the Share Option Scheme. There is no requirement that a
share option must be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised but the Board is empowered to impose at its discretion any
such minimum period at the time of offer of any share options.

The exercise price in relation to each share option will be determined
by the Board at its absolute discretion and shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
guotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of share
options; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of share options; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share on the date of offer of share options. Each
of the grantees is required to pay HK$1.00 as a consideration for
his acceptance of the grant of share options in accordance with the
Share Option Scheme. The offer of share options must be accepted
within 30 days from the date of the offer.

Share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme do
not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at general
meetings.

No share option has been granted under the Share Option Scheme
since its adoption. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2021, there was
no share option outstanding under the Share Option Scheme.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
were entered into by the Company during the year under review or
subsisted at the end of the year under review.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
under review.

DISTRIBUTION RESERVES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had approximately
HK$1,678,846,000 reserves available for distribution as calculated in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Ordinance,
of which approximately HK$1,616,588,000 has been proposed as a
final dividend for the year under review.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, the percentage of revenue from sales of
goods of the Group attributable to the largest customer and the five
largest customers in aggregate are 40.2% and 77.7% respectively.

For the year under review, the percentage of purchases of the Group
attributable to the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers in
aggregate are 43.0% and 67.5% respectively.

Shougang Group, together with its subsidiaries, was the largest
customer of the Group. Save as disclosed above, none of the
Directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which, to the
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the number of
Company'’s issued shares) had an interest in the five major suppliers
or customers of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued) EEEHRE®

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND BRERERXINREERS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a) Continuing Connected Transactions (a) HERAERS
During the year under review, the continuing connected VAT Rt P [B] B 6 2 WP ac 8% 2 I B @ A2
transactions recorded are summarised as follows: 2

Date and Name of the agreement:
ISR IS EY

3 July 2019 Master Sale Agreement
ZE-NFLAZAHEERGE

Nature of the transaction:
RPME -

Supply coal products (including the coal by-product produced in the coking
coal washing process) to connected party

AR A TR R E M (BREARRERT ELEMNRREIER)

Parties of the transaction:

(@) The Company and/or its subsidiaries (the “Seller”)

RPETRETT ARRR/HEMBRAB(HER D)
(b) Shanxi International Energy Group Hongguang Power Generation
Co., Ltd. and/or its subsidiaries (the “Purchaser”)
IR R EB AR B BARARR SHEMBAR(EE ]
Relationship: When the agreement was entered into, the Purchaser was owned as to
BEIR - 49% by a substantial shareholder of the Company’s subsidiaries, being

a connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the Purchaser was an
associate of a connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.13(3) of
the Listing Rules and thus also a connected person of the Company. The
transactions entered into between the Seller and the Purchaser under the
Master Sale Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company under the Listing Rules.

BN - AARETHEBARNEZRR(AAFIMEAL)EAE
B 249%0%HE - Eit - BB ETRAIE14A130) K - BEF AR A
BEANLTZBMEA TR AARIBEAL - HEFTHEBEHIRHEE
BERWBZER TR SEBR ETHRAB T AR ANFERERS o
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND BRERERXZREERS (E)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Continuing Connected Transactions (continued) (a) HEBERS (&)

Description and purpose
of the transaction:

RSk & B #:

The Group had explored the Purchaser as a customer in the first quarter of
2019 and started supplying coal products to the Purchaser in its ordinary
and usual course of business. Both parties have been satisfied with all
completed orders including the prices, quality, delivery and payment
terms, and have intention to continue the sale transactions in the long
run. As the expected annual transaction amount would soon exceed 1%
threshold under Rule 14A.76(1)(b) of the Listing Rules, on 3 July 2019, the
Company and the Purchaser entered into the Master Sale Agreement to
set the annual caps and to regulate the continuing connected transactions
between the Seller and the Purchaser in compliance with the Listing Rules.
FEER_Z-NFE—FESKIBETRRETF TRENEBE
R—REBEBBRETRNBEAHEREKER - EHHREMBETK
BETE - BIEER - B2  [INFNRIER - REERABELETHE
X5 - ARTEFTFRERX SRS aeiBiE F AR A 14A.76(1)(b)§FIEA
RHN%RAR - RZT—NFLA=H AAFHESFER MR
ZRERIHERERBBEARTFE LR REEIHE 7 HEE &
ZIREEERS -

Details of the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the
Master Sale Agreement have been disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 3 July 2019.

HEERGEE T HEREXINFBERBHRA-E—NFLHA=H
WA RBAEAVERE -

Term:

HABR:

3 July 2019 to 31 December 2021 (both days inclusive)
TE-NFLtAZHEZEZ—F+-A=+—HEREEEMA)

Annual Cap:
FELR :

For the period from 3 July to 31 December 2019: RMB60,000,000
—E-NFLtA=ZAE+TZA=+—HBILHHE : AR¥60,000,0007T

For the year ended 31 December 2020: RMB100,000,000
BE_T_ZTHF+-_A=+—HIFE : AR¥100,000,0007T

For the year under review: RMB120,000,000
EIREFER : AR%120,000,0007T
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued) EEEHRE®

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND BRERERXZREERS (E)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Continuing Connected Transactions (continued) (a) HEBERS (&)
The amount of connected transactions for RMB73,173,000 (equivalent to HK$87,807,000)
the year under review under AER#¥73,173,0007T (18& 787,807,000/ 7T)
this agreement:
HHRETORFEANBEERSHZ
TR
Remark: Upon the expiration of this Master Sale Agreement, the Company and
EBx: Hongguang Power entered into the New Master Sale Agreement on 31
December 2021, which sets out the basis upon which the Seller would
carry out a continuing connected transaction with the Purchaser and
the annual caps for the financial years ending 31 December 2022, 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2024 respectively, details of which
could be referred to the announcement of the Company dated 31
December 2021.
RULHEERBRERE - ARREREEESN2021F12A3187]
UETHEERGE  APHIEE T EBE A RETIRERERFIN
HERDRBE_T-_—"F+_A=+—B "B =F+_"A=+—
BN-_Z-_NE+_A=+—BLEVRBRFENFE LR - FE2HA
BRAZBE-_—F+_A=+—BA0ERARE -
(b) Connected Transactions (b) BEXS
Saved as disclosed above, the Group has no connected BREMAERIN  AEBEREEFERNLRE
transaction that was subject to the disclosure requirements AR AR ESEEBERS -

under the Listing Rules during the year under review.
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ANNUAL REVIEW ON CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. PricewaterhouseCoopers has issued an unqualified
letter containing findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in the paragraph
above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent
Non-executive Directors reviewed the continuing connected
transactions conducted in the year under review and confirmed that
the transactions were entered into:

(i)  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Group as a whole.

The Company will continue to put in place appropriate internal
controls and mechanisms to monitor the continuing connected
transactions, and the management will review the adequacy of these
internal control procedures and report to the Independent Non-
executive Directors from time to time.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of other related party transactions, which were exempt from
any disclosure and shareholders’ approval requirements, or do not
constitute connected or continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, are set out in note 40 to the
audited consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 145 to 177 of this annual
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Company’s compliance with the relevant provisions set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix
27 of the Listing Rules for the year under review are set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 34 to 138
of this annual report.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. A resolution will be submitted to the AGM
2022 to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the
Company.

By Order of the Board
Ding Rucai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

i
pwec

To the Members of Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Shougang Fushan Resources
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group"”)
which are set out on pages 206 to 308, comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021;

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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' PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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(continued)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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(continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter identified in our audit is impairment assessments of

goodwill, mining rights and property, plant and equipment:

Key Audit Matter

RREEER

BB RE
(40

BRFTEEE

BPEFSATRBOERETETAL/AE
BUARIE - BFE &R EHRERFS

PRz

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB AR ERREETEE

Impairment assessments of goodwill, mining rights, and property, plant and equipment

BE - REEUARYE - BERRENRERNG

Refer to Notes 15, 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements

2R M SRAMIFE15 « 18%19

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has goodwill,
mining rights and property, plant and equipment of
HK$1,289 million, HK$7,402 million and HK$3,630 million
respectively, that were originated from the acquisitions of
Shanxi Liulin Xingwu Coal Co., Limited (“Xingwu"), Shanxi
Liulin Jinjiazhuang Coal Co., Limited (“Jinjiazhuang”)
and Shanxi Liulin Zhaiyadi Coal Co., Limited (“Zhaiyadi”)
in 2008. These companies are engaged in coking coal
mining, production and sales of coking coal products in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
RZTZ—F+=ZA=+—H ' EBfEFBAERENZ
SN \FRBLENIHEERBEERETAR(EHE]) -
AN REREERAR(ERED RILAYIMKEE
ERZERAR(RERDNEE  RBEEARYE - B
FERJEBI R A12.898B T - 74.0288 T X%36.3018
BT e ZERRINPEARLME ([HEDEEEEKF
R EREREEREE -

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessments of goodwill, mining rights and property, plant
and equipment included:
B EREHEE  KBEEARYE  BERREN
BERH AT 7 815

—  We obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of recoverable
amount of each of the CGU and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity
changes and susceptibility to management bias.

- HKAMTHTEERERYSEReELASUNTRLOE
BME)VANEEERI M A BRE - WBBERMFTTHEE
HHRREMEBESRERREEPImEMEE - T8
BN ERRRNTE -

—  We evaluated the composition of management’s
future cash flow forecasts used in their value-in-use
calculations, and the process by which they were
prepared. We found that the cash flow forecasts
prepared by management were subject to review by
the directors of the Company and were consistent
with the budgets approved by the Company’s board
of directors.

- KM TEERBREECEREESEREANRK
REMETDRER - U REFEELTFAABIE
BMEREEERENBeREEANH BERAE
ERHE - WHE BRAREESHENTEE -

—  We involved our internal valuation experts in
assessing the appropriateness and consistency of
the methodologies used, and key assumptions and
estimates applied.

- BMERMASEEZERFTEABAENEES LM
—HM - ARFTEAN AR MRR KT o
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(continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

BEETER

— =

T 5 HEABLBERKEARQF 199

BB RE
(40

EREFTEEGE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNENAEEEARETSE

Impairment assessments of goodwill, mining rights, and property, plant and equipment (continued)

AR - R - BE KRR E R (5D

For the purpose of impairment assessments, management
grouped the relevant assets of Xingwu, Jinjiazhuang
and Zhaiyadi at the lowest levels for which there are
three separately identifiable cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group
of assets (cash-generating-unit (“CGU")). Management
determined the recoverable amounts of each CGU using
the value-in-use method, which involved significant
judgement in determining the assumptions used in the
calculations. The key assumptions include long-term coal
prices and discount rates.

SRENENES  BEREREE REREERNH
BB EY R&EKF EEPE:IE—JEﬁE%%UE’ﬁEﬁm
A MELEESRKBHOBIRNEMEEREEARNRE
EXEM(REELEMD)NRERA - BEERERER
BELZETEERSELASUNAIKNDERE 275K
ETEMARREELERALE  BARBEREERS
BIRER RBRIRE o

Based on the results of the impairment assessments, no

impairment on goodwill, mining rights and property,

plant and equipment was considered necessary as at 31

December 2021.

BREREFENER  BFR_E_—F+-A=+—
ARtEE  RERARYE - BE RREBHERE -

We evaluated the reasonableness of management’s
key assumptions made in the forecasts. For revenue
growth rate which determined by coal price, we
compared the long-term coal prices used in the
forecasts against the market prices, and assessed the
rate of annual increment by reference to industry
forecasts and market trends. For the discount rate,
we benchmarked the rate used in the forecast against
our research of the discount rates used by comparable
companies in the industry.
ﬁfﬁuﬁﬁ”‘ﬂ%r‘ﬁ’\i‘ﬁi BAAMMELEEEBREES S
cPARRERETHWRSEEREME - HFH
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

BEETER

BB RE
(40

BRFTEEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNENAEEEARETSE

Impairment assessments of goodwill, mining rights, and property, plant and equipment (continued)

AR - R - BE KRR E R (5D

We focused on this area due to the significance of the
balances and the estimation of recoverable amount is
subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty. Thus,
inherent risk in relation to the impairment assessments is
considered significant due to the subjectivity of significant
assumptions.

BAAIZBERAREHRNEZN - AT RIS EN
HARISERFTIREENTE - At - AREAR
RO EFHE  ERENEAANEARRERR/EEAXN
o

We compared the current year actual results with the
amounts included in the prior year cash flow forecast
to consider the quality of management’s forecasting,
and we checked that management had considered
the current year actual results in the preparation of
this year's forecasts. We questioned of management
to understand the reasons for the deviation of the
actual results for the current year from the prior year’s
forecast, corroborating management’s explanations
to our knowledge on the market and the Group’s
performance in the current year. We also checked that
these relevant factors had been taken into account
in this year’s forecasts. We also considered whether
the judgements made in selecting the assumptions
and data would give rise to indicators of possible
management bias.
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(continued) (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) ERETTEE(E)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BEREEE BMNENAEEEARETSE
Impairment assessments of goodwill, mining rights, and property, plant and equipment (continued)

AR - R - BE KRR E R (5D

= We performed testing on the mathematical accuracy
of the discounted cash flow model.
- EMHAUBRRBEREERNEMERLET T A

=  We analysed management’s sensitivities in the models,
and assessed the potential impact of reasonably
possible downside changed in key assumptions.

- KMo WMTERBHRANGRE - WA E TR
BRESEBEATHAIETTESNEETE -

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that
the risk assessment of the impairment assessments of
goodwill, mining rights and property, plant and equipment
remained appropriate and the methodology of significant
assumptions used by management in the impairment
assessments were supportable by the available evidence.
BREBEFAMTHREF  BRPARAEE KBEEALRDE -
BB LR B RENENRRTEDAEE - YEER
BERETEPEANEZRRNTEABIRBER
B STHF
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(continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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(continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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(continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Ka Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME GmeBRaRkRHEMEERKER
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
Hat FET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers KEZEF &AW 5 7,075,818 3,996,951
Cost of sales SHE A (2,681,244) (2,127,744)
Gross profit EF 4,394,574 1,869,207
Interest income B A 69,578 96,294
Other income and gains, net EmA R E - JF5E 6 244,169 219,229
Selling and distribution expenses HE MR (269,741) (316,586)
General and administrative expenses —mRMITHRER (207,903) (181,914)
Other operating expenses H @ 7 (96,260) (64,495)
Finance costs B TSR AR 8 (1,275) (1,250)
Change in fair value of derivative PTHEMBIAZATE
financial instruments b= - (7,676)
Share of loss of an associate FE(G — BB E A R EE (983) (195)
Profit before income tax R AT 1S B A F 9 4,132,159 1,612,614
Income tax expense Fristi & R 10 (1,071,328) (425,331)
Profit for the year FERR 3,060,831 1,187,283
Other comprehensive income FEHMZEmNKE
for the year
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently ~H & AJgLEF H A E B
to profit or loss: HH :
Exchange differences on translation of BMEBINEBIBRKRESE
financial statements of foreign ZHERER
operations 258,759 484,198
ltem that will not be reclassified to B TFEFHDEEEEN
profit or loss: HA
Net fair value loss on financial assets I EERAFEFTAREA
measured at fair value through other ZHEWEZ A FE
comprehensive income B 18558 (443,970) (1,439)
Total comprehensive income for FEXHWREHE
the year 2,875,620 1,670,042
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER L 9
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued) S aBmRkHEMZEIKER @

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—F T
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Hat FET FET
Profit for the year attributable to: AT ATEEFERR :
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIETZEDN 2,538,495 1,080,041
Non-controlling interests IEPERR = 522,336 107,242
Profit for the year FERR 3,060,831 1,187,283
Total comprehensive income for UTATEEFEZERSE
the year attributable to: FEEC
Owners of the Company RARHEBA 2,321,729 1,500,734
Non-controlling interests FEIE R 553,891 169,308
Total comprehensive income FEXHRGEHAEHE
for the year 2,875,620 1,670,042
Earnings per share SRER
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) - BEARREECENM) 12 50.25 20.62
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2021

Annual Report 2021

SEMBRRR

RZFZ—F+=A=1+—H

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt FET FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB KRB 15 4,014,398 3,863,758
Land use rights T R 16 63,094 63,365
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 20,869 21,915
Mining rights RiEE 18 7,402,242 7,458,999
Goodwill BES 19 1,310,198 1,277,415
Interest in an associate 1) NG P 20 11,262 11,918
Financial assets measured at fair value BRAFEFAHMEEmRE
through other comprehensive income ZHBEE 21 638,494 1,082,464
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables & & - T8 518 K H Ath fE Uk
RIE 22 672,551 710,182
Deferred income tax assets EEMSREE 32 73,135 42,131
Total non-current assets IREBEELE 14,206,243 14,532,147
Current assets REEE
Inventories 78 23 142,658 131,170
Trade receivables FEWE 5 8R1E 24 883,949 666,382
Bills receivables FEW IR 24 2,260,302 1,382,762
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables #&& - TE1T5RIE K H A
WK IE 22 386,982 368,772
Other financial assets Hih s ERE 25 116,250 =
Pledged bank deposits EHEPRITIFR 26 357,707 290,298
Time deposits with original maturity over  [RIFFHAIEB=1EH 2
three months EHFER 27 2,015,677 656,500
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEFEY 27 4,410,209 3,405,615
Total current assets REBEELE 10,573,734 6,901,499
Total assets EERE 24,779,977 21,433,646
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables BB ZERERENRER 28 607,247 592,618
Lease liabilities HEBE 17 7,957 5,721
Other financial liability HEmisasE 29 180,817 186,300
Other payables and accruals HEMEMRIERETEA 30 1,954,492 1,375,271
Amounts due to non-controlling interests of JETHIE A A IFIZEi ez
subsidiaries HIA 31 156,999 52,778
Tax payables JERTFRIE 1,018,809 275,507
Total current liabilities REBEEEE 3,926,321 2,488,195
Net current assets REBEEFE 6,647,413 4,413,304
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

mEMBMRR R @

RZFZ—F+=A=1+—H

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
W FET FET
Total assets less total current liabilities ZEEZAERARBEEHEE 20,853,656 18,945,451
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEAFMGBHAR 32 1,687,365 1,635,064
Lease liabilities HERE 17 18,073 19,317
Total non-current liabilities ERBEBLEE 1,705,438 1,654,381
Net assets EEFE 19,148,218 17,291,070
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of BRATEE AELER
the Company
Share capital N 33 15,156,959 15,156,959
Reserves e 34 2,143,124 680,207
Total equity attributable to owners of AT HEE AELER
the Company #iE 17,300,083 15,837,166
Non-controlling interests EI g 1,848,135 1,453,904
Total equity EREE 19,148,218 17,291,070

The consolidated financial statements on pages 206 to 308 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2022 and were
signed on its behalf:

Ding Rucai
T
Director

EF

F206B 2 F308F A MKHEREN T ==
FZA-TINHEESSSHETRREE

Wang Dongming
I£H
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2021

GERZEER

BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE

Non-
controlling Total
Equity attributable to owners of the Company interests equity
ARREEARGRER FERER  ERAE
Security
Share  Statutory Other ~ Retained investment Translation
capital  reserve  reserves  profits  reserve  reserve Total
RERE
k& iERE  BHRE  REER e BERE ag
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tz FEr TEr  TEn Tér  TEx FiEn FiEr T
At 1 January 2021 R=B=-%-F-8 15156950 448439 491,196 897429 (1,371,244) 214387 15,837,166 1,453,904 17,291,070
Profitfor the year ER&T = = - 2538495 = - 2538495 52233 3,060,831
Other comprehensive income FEAMZENE
for the year:
~ Exchange differences on -RERNEBEE
translation of financial HrELL
Statements of foreign operations ~ EA R - - - - - W08 27204 31555 258759
= Net fair value loss on financial -BHAERLTE
assets measured at fair value TARHEE
through other comprehensive Wﬁ;%ﬁ;ﬁ
income FREE - - - - o) - o) - o)
Total comprehensive income FERENRES
for the year - - - 2538495  (443970) 227,204 2321729 553891 2,875,620
Transactions with owners intheir -~ AEAAFHEREA
capacity as owners: ER5:
2020 final dividend approved Bk -T-BE
(note 11) RARE W) = = - (A54,665) - - (454,665) - (454,665)
2021 interim dividend declared BER2-5-F
(note 11) PHRS W 11) = = - (404,147) - - (404,147) - (404147)
Dividend paid to non-controlling ERFHERE
interests of subsidiaries s Re - - - - - - - (159.660)  (159,660)
Appropriations to statutory reserve. B EEEREME344)
(note 34(3)) - 133 - (133) - - - - -
Utiisation of other reserves HRAMEEWM)
(note 34(b)) - - (37351) 3734 - - - - -
At 31 December 2021 R-R=-F
tZB=1+-A 15156,959 448572 453845 2614330 (1815214) 441591 17,300,083 1,848,135 19,148,218
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HEREREEHR®@®

BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE

Non-
controling Total
Equity attributable to owners of the Company interests  equity
KARRANERER FERER  EREE
Security
Share  Statutory Other  Retained investment  Translation
Capital reserve  TeServes profits reserve reserve Total
EAkE
BE ETRE  EpEE  RREA il HERE e
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKST000  HKS000  HKS000 HKS000  HKS'000
T FEr  TEr  TEr TEr TEr  TEn AT TEr
At 1 January 2020 R-B-%%-f-H 15156959 448068 452,060 1,202,043 (1,369,805  (207,745) 15,681,580 1,364,732 17,046,312
Profit for the year R = = - 1,080,041 = - 1080041 107,42 1,187,083
Other comprehensive income EEEMRENE
for the year:
- Exchange diferences on translation - &SN ERETH
of financial statements of foreign BREEL
operations EREE - - - - - A3 422,132 62,066 434,198
- Net fair value loss on financial assets - BT EERAFE
measured at fair value through AALMRE
other comprehensive income AN
BEE - - - - (1,439) - (1,439) - (1439
Total comprehensive income ER2ENREE
for the year - - = 1,080,041 (1439 42132 1,500,734 169,308 1,670,042
Transactions with owners in their HWEBAFRERAA
capacity as owners. EIR5:
Buy-back of shares (note 34(c) RS (Wit34c) - - = (505,000) - = (505,000 - (505,000
2019 final dividend approved EfEZZT-NE
(note 11) REREWL11) - - - (41260 - - (461,260) - (461,260)
2020 interim dividend declared BERZ-EC%E
(note 11) hEREWL11) - - - (378889) - - (378889 - (378,889)
Dividend paid to non-controlling KA FHBAT
interests of subsidiaries FERES RS - - - - - - - (80.136)  (80.136)
Aopropriations to statutory reserve  BHEAT Rl (1 46)
(note 34(3)) - n - (371) - - - - -
Appropriations to other reserves BREENERI)
(note 34(b)) - - 39,136 (39,136) - - - i -
At 31 December 2020 RZE-%F
T-A=+-H 15,156,959 448439 491196 897429  (1371244) 214387 15837166 1,453,904 17,291,070
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS GmERERE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL
Cash flows from operating activities REEBCRERE
Profit before income tax B PT1S T AT 4 A 4,132,159 1,612,614
Adjustments for: EETIIFAE :
Depreciation of property, plant and YE - REREBITE
equipment 342,010 330,494
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 1,644 5,148
Amortisation of land use rights T f5F PR AR 8K 1,956 1,958
Amortisation of mining rights PRUE R 6R 255,600 227,013
Interest income FBUA (69,578) (96,294)
Dividend income A B M A (61,603) (48,377)
Finance costs B 75 A AR 1,275 1,250
Share of loss of an associate FE(h— B & A R E R 983 195
Loss on disposals of property, plant and HEME - BEREHEZ
equipment &5 3,933 1,671
Reversal of impairment loss of B O %EEREREE
financial assets - (22,500)
Change in fair value of derivative TTHEMBIAZ A TFEES
financial instruments - 7,676
Net foreign exchange gain NS N S F R (87,955) (131,178)
Operating profit before working capital LEESEER 2K EET
changes 4,520,424 1,889,670
Changes in working capital: LEESEE
Increase in inventories FEEM (8,066) (2,025)
Increase in trade and bills receivables FEWE 5 BRIE K BN E IR
2 (1,041,651) (147,628)
Decrease/(Increase) in deposits, e FENFIE R EA
prepayments and other receivables JE U SR TE R ) (B ) 30,813 (57,029)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and B E S ERIE M ENEE
bills payables #hn,/ (i) 5,926 (108,581)
Increase/(Decrease) in other payables and ~ HAbfENFHIBREFER
accruals 0, CRlA) 688,370 (167,428)
Decrease in amounts due to AN EPNGIE 2 3
non-controlling interests of subsidiaries FIER - (9,199)
Cash generated from operations EEELA RS 4,195,816 1,397,780
Income tax paid EfTEREH (337,727) (560,962)
Net cash inflow from operating activities ~— A& X T &R A FE 3,858,089 836,818
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (continued)

GeHE

horli—1 -
RERE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE
2021 2020
=B —F —E-TF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Hat FET FET
Cash flows from investing activities REXBZRERE
Payments to acquire property, plant and BEWE BERRHEZ
equipment I (495,363) (467,282)
Proceeds from disposals of property, LEWE - BEREHZ
plant and equipment PTG RIE 345 432
Payment to acquire land use rights S T A 2 R = (1,792)
Payments to acquire other financial assets ¥ 8 Bt i i & & 2 518 (116,250) =
Receipt from redemption of other fE R B fth B 7% 8 B 2 RIB
financial asset = 232,500
Increase in pledged bank deposits B IRERI T/ 58 00 (59,836) (91,029)
(Increase)/Decrease in time deposits with REZBEBE=[AZ
original maturity over three months FHAERGE M), R (1,359,177) 393,001
Interest received EWAE 62,612 112,125
Dividend received B U B 18,583 48,377
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from KEXEBZES (i),
investing activities TEAFEE (1,949,086) 226,332
Cash flows from financing activities RMEXECRERE
Principal elements of lease payments YNHEEaELRS (823) (4,121)
Interest paid BEATFE (106) (1,250)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company BEfARTHEE AZRE (858,745) (860,572)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BATHE A R FEERR
interests of subsidiaries w2 IR B (54,155) (119,700)
Payment on buy-back of shares BTGP AREN - (505,000)
Net cash outflow from financing activities & %75 < B2t F5E (913,829) (1,490,643)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBLSSEYWEM
cash equivalents (BA)E5 995,174 (427,493)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BZREREREE
ZEY 3,405,615 3,712,383
Effect of foreign exchange rates HMEEZFFHHEER
changes on cash and cash equivalents REZENZEE 9,420 120,725
Cash and cash equivalents at Rt+t-—A=+t—-HzZzHER
31 December RESEY 27 4,410,209 3,405,615
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is 6th Floor, Bank
of East Asia Harbour View Centre, No. 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The principal places of business of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC").

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Group’s subsidiaries comprise coking
coal mining, production and sales of coking coal products. There
were no significant changes in the Group’s operations during
the year. Details of the activities of the principal subsidiaries of
the Group are set out in note 37.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently applied
to all the years presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption
of new or revised standards and interpretations and the impacts
on the Group’s financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note
2.1.1.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622 (the "Companies Ordinance”). In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

mE MR

BE—F-——F+-_A=1—HIFE

1.

—REH

BEMEUEREEERAR(AREDAE
BEEMRL2BRAR - R SRt
U R BB S LT 856 R IRTTEE
FL6E - RRBZBRMRNEBB AR S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments classified as financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (note 21)

“E- %% BERSLEREEERALT 215

FEMBRRM T @®

BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE

2. FESFEE 2L

2.1 MBEE(H)

BRETOBRABEATEARMLZEK
B MBEEME2)2HBEITAEZER
FEEEIN  RAEMBHRROREESL
RAELRE - AR EEEFART

which are measured at fair values. The measurement bases XZEHGR -

are fully described in the accounting policies below.

2.1.1 Adoption of new or amended standards and

211 BRR —E-—F—HF—HEHZ
EHET S CHE T

interpretations that are effective on 1 January
2021

The following new and amended standards and
interpretations apply for the first time to the Group's
financial reporting period commencing on 1 January
2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Reform — Phase 2

The above standards did not have any impact on the
Group's accounting policies and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

TORR] RARIERT R R BT AR
SER-_FT_—F—F—HRAKZ
B RERERER

BREMBREER F_RERAEEE
FIH - BRMB  HE
REREAFLH R

BRMBREE

RIS163R 2 7]

bt S RS AR [ R BOR A RAT
(BFZ BWISEEIRN-Fah- R iR
HEELEATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FEMBRRM T @®

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T —FEf-_A=+—HIFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FTESFTBER 2B (&)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REEE(E)

2.1.2 New and amended standards and interpretations
that have been issued but are not yet effective

The following new and amended standards and
interpretations, which are potentially relevant to the
Group's financial statements have been issued, but are o -
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply

BRAR o

these changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 16

ERMBREERNE 165255
Amendments to HKFRS 3

BB RERREIN 2B
Amendments to HKAS 16

BB ERZE165.21535]
Amendment to HKAS 37
ARG EREITR 2B
Amendments to Accounting
Guideline 5
SEHESIESH 2 1BF]
Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020 cycle
BERUBREEN-_T—\§2=F
:%iﬁ%ZiF&L
Amendment to HKAS 1
ARG ERNE IR 2B
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
ARG ENE 1R RABYBRE
BRI EHEHELR 2]
Amendments to HKAS 8
ARG ERESH 2 EF]
Amendments to HKAS 12

BB G REAE 1258 287]
Revised Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

RETBRRBESR(CT_ZF)

HKFRS 17
ARG RERAETH
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
AN BREEF 10K REES
HRE28% 2 157]

COVID-19 Related Rent Concession Beyond 30 June 2021
“RC-FRASTREZHERARERHECES
Reference to the Conceptual Framework

BERHER 2 iRt

Property, Plant and Equipment = Proceeds before

Intended Use
MmE - BEREE - ERERBIMMERE

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
BEAL -BIIEHNKA

Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations

HREHEHOEHEHA
Amendment to HKERS 1, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16 and HKAS 41

BRUBREERE ST  AEMBREENEN,
I EmERR 165 RABSHEUNENT 2B
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
AEARBIIERBAE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies
SHBRLBE

Definition of Accounting Estimate
LR A E
Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from
Single Transaction
HE-RHELCBERABABIELHE
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause
1?@%%%—%mAﬁ“§} ERERESCEHER
Insurance Contracts
1 AA (=) i\’]
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

REEREBENARRENRZEELEIIE

2.1.2 B AR 8 o K £ 24 2 # 7T R AZMEET
EAR2E

AT A RE A EEM B RRER 2
Al kg
B R B A BT IR S

AEBERBERZEED
ER 2 BERBERM -

R EAI N REBELR

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RT5 BNz &Rk
S EEEN

1 April 2021

:2: FMA—H
1 January 2022

igiiifﬂfa
1 January 2022

—EB__%-F—H
1 January 2022
“E--"%—-H—H
1 January 2022

—T--#—-8-H
1 January 2022

—E--#%#—-8-H

1 January 2023
“E-=%-A-H

1 January 2023
£—A—H
1 January 2023
—E-=F-A—-H

1 January 2023
e

—E_=%-A—-H
1 January 2023

—m—=

—=——

—=%—A—H
1 January 2023
“B-=%—Hf—H

To be determined

/==

N
FiE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2 New and amended standards and interpretations

that have been issued but are not yet effective
(continued)

The Group has commenced, but not yet completed,
an assessment of the impact of the new standards
and amendments to standards on its results of
operations and financial position. The Group is not yet
in a position to state whether these new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations would
have any significant impact on its results of operations
and financial positions.

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer
to note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of financial position
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

(ii) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being
recognised at cost.

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group's share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Associates (continued)

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in note 2.9.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity

accounting (continued)
(iii) Changes in ownership interests (continued)

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

2.3 Business combination

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the:

e fair values of the assets transferred;

. l[iabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business;

e equity interests issued by the Group;

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’'s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combination (continued)
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Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
e consideration transferred,;

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity; and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than
the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

2.5

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has
assigned executive directors which assesses the financial
performance and position of the Group, and makes
strategic decisions. The executive directors have been
identified as the chief operating decision maker.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented
in HKS$, which is the functional and presentation
currency of the Company.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in
profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate
to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges or are attributable to part of the
net investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the statement of profit or
loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on a net basis within other
income and gains/(losses), net.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets such as equities classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iiij) Group companies
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(i) EEL 7

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

e income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowings and other financial
instruments designated as hedges of such investments,
are recognised in other comprehensive income. When
a foreign operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss,
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iv) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associates that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence), the proportionate share
of the accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to profit or loss.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress (“CIP"), are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost
of an asset includes its purchase price and the costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is de-recognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Other than mining structures, depreciation is provided to
write off the cost net of their estimated residual values over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, at the
following rates per annum:

Buildings and plants The shorter of the lease
terms or 5%
Mining machinery and 10%
equipment
Leasehold improvements The shorter of the lease

terms or 33'/3%

Office equipment, furniture 20% to 33'3%
and fixtures

Motor vehicles and 10% to 25%
transportation equipment

Depreciation on mining structures is provided to write
off the cost of the mining structures using the units of
production method based on the total proved and probable
reserves of the coal mine as the depletion base.

The assets’ estimated residual values, depreciation methods
and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

CIP is stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost comprises
direct costs of construction as well as borrowing costs
capitalised during the periods of construction and
installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the CIP
is transferred to the appropriate class of property, plant and
equipment when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the assets for their intended use are completed.
No depreciation is provided for in respect of CIP until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

FEMBRRM T @®

—— A=+ —AILFE

EERT R 2 Bt ()

BRIESZEMIN - FTETIR NI F G
RS - NIREMAR A ERFHNER
AR E AR RSB E A EME

EFREE HEFHHS% -
MEZREE

FAERIE 23 Ko 316 10%

HEMERE A& FHK
335% * W&
a5k

PN/ - 20%%335%

RERMREE
AENER 10%E25%

TS 28 2 I E BB IR A AR i r]
REZRRFERRBEEZAESM
% SRS A o

BEMFFSREE - WEIDERMEA
ERFHARSRERRE TR - A
REERBR TMELFE -

R TR AR EEERSE - KA
BREEEZEERANARNEERZE
HIF AN ZEERA - E%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
PERAERERZ B EEFEB T
RE - ZERABELERE - ERT
EW%A%% 5 K&t 2 i E 2R R

EERTRETALAIHETERSZ
Etm B ERERTIRITE 28
o

WEEZREEGREMGFTTKE S
B RBEENRHREE KOS -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the sale proceeds and
its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

2.8 Intangible assets

()

(ii)

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note 2.3.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at
the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes, being the operating
segments (note 5).

Mining rights

Mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses and
are amortised on the units of production method
based on the total proven and probable reserves of
the coal mine.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e  those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income or
through profit or loss); and

e  those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s business

model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

()

(ii)

Classification (continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

(iiij) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets measured at fair value through profit
or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(iii) Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. The Group classifies all of its debt instruments
at amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in “other income and gains/(losses),
net” together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)
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FEMBRRM T @®

BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE

2. FESFEE 2L

210 RER HH B EE (&)

(iv) Impairment (iv) tE

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis REBHBEALIRBHAATEZ
the expected credit losses associated with its debt BERTAZBHEEBEEITANE
instruments measured at amortised cost. The MRS o FTIER 2 RE T EBURR
impairment methodology applied depends on whether EERBEE KEIEHM

there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade and bills receivables, the Group applies the MEKZEZRBEREREEMNE -
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which REBEAEBMHEREERNEI
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised AR ZBERE - HRERKE
from initial recognition of the receivables, see note TE BT 1878 B ) 45 e SR e WU IE s

3.1(b) for further details.

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

TLARER - FERMIEE3.1(b)

211 EKEMBE TR

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount EAREER B AT A 8 S NITE DR E
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position EHREE  BEERRFHELELFE N
where the Group currently has a legally enforceable FANEREENGHEAER  BEVH
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an BERBEMEHEE  WELRESMB
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and TR R RE HFE - REB IR H N
settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has also S EERE R L F R T K548
entered into arrangements that do not meet the criteria e T (M ERKIEER) -

for offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be
set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the

termination of a contract.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
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2. FESFEE 2L

212 BEREN

2.12 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability
is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the
higher of:

e the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9; and

e the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of HKFRS
15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required under
the debt instrument and the payments that would be
required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.

2.13 Derivatives financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting
period.

The Group’s derivative financial instruments do not qualify
for hedge accounting and are accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments are
recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) e E T E L IERAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESETHBE 2B (E)

POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Inventories 214 &

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
calculated using weighted average method, and in the
case of finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value represented the estimated net selling prices
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

2.15 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. They are generally due for settlement within 60
to 90 days and therefore are all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
See note 24 for further information about the Group's
accounting for trade receivables and note 3.1(b) for a
description of the Group'’s impairment policies.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.18 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are
usually paid within 30 to 180 days of recognition. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) e E T E L IERAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESETHBE 2B (E)

POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax 2.20 BNHEAREIEFR 1S

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the company
and its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and considers whether it is probable that a taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The
Group measures its tax balances either based on the most
likely amount or the expected value, depending on which
method provides a better prediction of the resolution of
the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
income tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is
also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or a liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESETHBE 2B (E)
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 2.20 BNHA KR FE AT 15 84 (48)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to
utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of investments in foreign operations where
the company is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred income tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
income tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled within twelve months after the end of
the annual reporting period in which the employees
render the related service. Short-term employee
benefits are recognised in the year when the
employees render the related service.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF") Schemes Ordinance, for all of its Hong Kong
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the PRC are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs
to the central pension scheme.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Retirement benefits (continued)

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as employees render services during the year.
The Group’s obligations under these plans are limited
to the fixed percentage contributions payable.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are expected
to be settled within twelve months and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when they are
settled.

2.22 Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to
employees via the “2012 Scheme” and an employee share
scheme, the executive short-term incentive scheme and
share appreciation. Information relating to these schemes
is set out in note 35.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) e E T E L IERAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESETHBE 2B (E)

POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Share-based payments (continued) 2.22 U A E#E 2 IR (E)

The fair value of options granted under the 2012 Scheme
is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a
corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of
the options granted:

e including any market performance conditions (e.g. the
entity’s share price);

e excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and

e including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(e.g. the requirement for employees to save or hold
shares for a specific period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period,
the entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting
and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.24 Revenue recognition

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the good
or service is transferred to the customer. Depending on
the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the
contract, control of the good or service may be transferred
over time or at a point in time.

Control of the good or service is transferred over time if
the Group’s performance:

e provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

e does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) e E T E L IERAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESETHBE 2B (E)

POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued) 2.24 W TR ()
Sales of goods (continued) HEE (B

The Group is engaged in coking coal mining, production
and sales of coking coal products. Revenue is recognised
when the control of the products are transferred to the
customers at a point in time, when products are delivered
to the customers, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the customers’ acceptance of the products.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to
the specified location, the risks of obsolescence and loss
have been transferred to the customers, and either the
customers have accepted the products in accordance with
the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed,
or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

A contract liability is recognised when the consideration is
received from customers before the goods are delivered. A
receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered and
accepted as this is the point in time that the consideration
is unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.

2.25 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised
cost and financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESETHBE 2B (E)

POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Dividends income 2.26 IR 2 WA

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at RE BE A EF AEMEEI 2 M
fair value through other comprehensive income. Dividends BB EWER o IR B TIRUER Z #EF L
are recognised as other income in profit or loss when the FRREZERSEMEA - BIEREB
right to receive payment is established. This applies even W B MBS T E a2 - BRIEIREBR
if they are paid out of pre-acquisition profits, unless the T FE N B —IRIR B BB DA o RIS
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of T HERA T ERARMEE K
an investment. In this case, the dividend is recognised in ZIRERR  RIREREMEEKEA
other comprehensive income if it relates to an investment MR o AT - ZIRENIETEESTM
measured at fair value through other comprehensive BRI -

income. However, the investment may need to be tested
for impairment as a consequence.

2.27 Earnings per share 2271 BREF
(i) Basic earnings per share (i) SREAXZF

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: BREXRBNZFERER

e the profit attributable to owners of the company, e BEBEBRARAEBAZR
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than M ABRETBERAINZE
ordinary shares. Al SZ AT RERR PR o

e by the weighted average number of ordinary e BRURAKAMEEEANDET
shares outstanding during the financial year, L@k mETEE - Wit
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares FARABETZEBRZALNT
issued during the year and excluding treasury ZEEFAE  BERITE

shares. FEEFRD -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) e E T E L IERAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESETHBE 2B (E)

POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Earnings per share (continued) 227 SREFI (&)

(i) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

e the after income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares; and

e the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.28 Leases

Prepaid lease payments are classified as land use rights,
other leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants other than the security interests
in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms and conditions.

(i) GREERF

BRBERNRAEETERELR
MEFPTER 28T - ART &

e HEEBBELBKRAMZIAM
BREMBEKRARZIRE
METE  ®

s REMEBEEHITLARE
wik o KRB BT ZEIN
BB E

228 HE

BNEERELBESLHERE - i
HEARAKREATAZEEEEES B
RRERREERBERAE - HEKRRK
RERIELEER - B S RETRERK
Kigf -l THEAMBEEEREZ
HIFERSN - HE BRI AR
w o HEEETSREEZER -

—HMEELZEERABVIZRRE
HEGE - HERGE REERAZR
B35 (B B & B 508 B A FE I
HEES-

MEFREFERBERS ZMERER - i
BAESBEZNER(REENEE—
REBUEBER AIERABRAZEE
AR - BIME Bl A AR LA IR
BB RGIHE AR EER
REEBERUNEEMTERMEAX
BLEEUESE
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (continued)
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since the third party financing was received;

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing; and

. makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which
are not included in the lease liability until they take effect.
When adjustments to lease payments based on an index
or rate took effect, the lease liability is reassessed and
adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.

FEMBRRM T @®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) e E T E L IERAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T —FEf-_A=+—HIFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESETHBE 2B (E)

POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (continued) 2.28 HHE (&)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the FREEEERRAE  RABEUT

following: &IA :

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease s HEBEVIFIELEH:
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the o RFEMBBHKZAMEZEMEE
commencement date less any lease incentives RORFTW 2 EREEEE
received;

e any initial direct costs; and o [EMVMIFEERAE : K

e restoration costs. o (BIERA o

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the FRAREERRERESFTEENAE

shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on AERNBESHMRPIREENE - 1R

a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain REBEEMETETEEEHE - A

to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is FRAEEETHBEENAFERAFHR

depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. E -

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of G HEE RMEEEEEHR SRR

low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as RIEEHRERERBRAMX - KHME

an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases ERHEEMNEASUT2HE -

with a lease term of 12 months or less.

2.29 Dividend distribution 2.29 I E 75K
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, AREMRBERARKZAETIR 2K
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the EELEGHEREETHRERDE
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the TRTE ZFEHE o

reporting period.

2.30 Government grants 230 BUF B
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair ERESERBRBUIBSHEEZEE
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant W ST PR A5 (R (R - BUR Al Bh G 4R
will be received and the group will comply with all attached HER T ERR -

conditions.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks such
as market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk,
which result from both its operating and investing activities.
The Group does not have written risk management policies
and guidelines. However, the directors meet periodically to
analyse and formulate measures to manage the Group’s
exposure to market risk, including changes in interest rates
and currency exchange rates. Generally, the Group employs
a conservative strategy regarding its risk management. As
the directors consider that the Group’s exposure to market
risk is kept at a minimum level, the Group has not used
any derivatives or other instruments for hedging purposes.
The most significant financial risks to which the Group is
exposed are described below.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk refers to the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Group mainly
operates and invests in Hong Kong and the
PRC with most of the transactions denominated
and settled in HK$ and Renminbi (“RMB")
respectively. No foreign exchange risk has been
identified for the financial assets and liabilities
in the PRC operations as the transactions were
denominated in RMB, which is the same as
the functional currencies of the group entities
with PRC operation. The Group's exposure to
foreign currency risk primarily arises from certain
financial assets which are denominated in RMB,
United States Dollars (“US$"”) and Australian
Dollars ("AUD").
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
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3. MBEREEGE

3.1 % EEREEGE

(a) Market risk (continued) (a) HiEER(HE)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued) () SMNERR(E
To mitigate the Group’s other exposure to ROE R E B M HNE R
foreign exchange risk, cash flows in foreign b2 - INBIREeREBRBELRE
currencies are monitored in accordance with the ZEBEREBRKETE
Group'’s risk management policies. The financial Ro NZEUREEER 2D
assets that are not denominated in the functional BRI R A E (R
currency of the Group's entity, translated into MERBESEIT)OT
HK$ at closing rates, are as follows:
2021 2020
—E--& i 2
Expressed in HK$'000 Expressed in HK$'000
WUFBTLIR WFETIT
AUD Uss RMB AUD Uss$ RMB
A7 ET AR¥ AT ET AR

Financial assets measured BATEF AL

atfairvalue through other 2 E I 2 815

comprehensive income BE 393,280 = - 899,629 S S
Deposits, prepaymentsand &%~ BRFER

other receivables Hih I8

- Consideration receivables -~ U B = - 180,817 = - 186,300

= Interest receivables - MR8 = 5,106 9,376 = 1,496 5,809
Time deposit with original ~~ RFHHRBE=(E

maturity over three months A 2 E S5 5 - 795847 926,830 - 310000 274,990
Cash and bank balances RBeRFIEH 18,643 822,768 553,281 5487 1,414,148 1,002,235
Overall net exposure BERRFE 411,923 1,623,721 1,670,304 905,116 1,725,644 1,469,334
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(1)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As HK$ is pegged to US$, the Group does not
expect any significant movements in the US$/
HK$ exchange rates. No sensitivity analysis
in respect of the Group’s financial assets
denominated in US$ is disclosed as in the
opinion of directors, such sensitivity analysis does
not give additional value in view of insignificant
movement in the US$/HK$ exchange rates as at
the reporting date. The following table indicates
the approximate change in the Group’s profit
for the year and equity in response to reasonably
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates
to which the Group has significant exposure at
the reporting date.

Increase/
(Decrease)
in foreign
exchange
rates
Extf/
(FE8)

AUD BT
AUD BT
RMVB ARE
RMB AR

+5%
-5%
+5%
-5%

FEMBRRM T @®

BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE

3. MEREE(E)

3.1 % EEREEGE

2021
—B--F

Effect on
profit for
the year
HERE
pYilled 7
HKS'000
FAT

932
(932)
84,032
(84,032)

(a)

(1)

Effect on
equity
s
&8

HK$000
FET

20,116
(20,116)

45 13 % ()

SME [l B (AE)

MmN BTTEETHE - N
BEMET BLEXTE
BEMERES - BREASK
BUAXTIRZMBEEZ
FREDOTLET ARKE -
REAREERRERAHRE
DT BB HEIINEE - B
mEXEL/ BTEERRE
Az Y ITEKR - TX
BRARER (G - AKHE
RBEARBEERRR) &
EAREES  AREFER
MR 2 B E -

2020
s
Increase/
(Decrease)
in foreign
exchange
rates
B b7/
(TB8)

Effect on
profit for
the year
HEE
g7
HK$'000
TET

Effect on
equity
iR
LEE
HK$'000
FET

+5% 273 44,324
-5% (273) (44,324)
+5% 73,467 -
-5% (73,467) -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BIEKRERE(E)

3.1 % EEREEGE

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued) (a) HiEER(HE)
(i) Cash flow interest rate risk () Bz rmEFEREE

Cash flow interest rate risk relates to the risk
that the cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in the market
interest rates. The Group’s major exposure
to interest rate risk relates primarily to other
financial assets, pledged bank deposits, cash and
cash equivalents and time deposits at banks, the
terms and interest rates are disclosed in notes
25, 26 and 27 respectively.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of
profit/loss after income tax for the year to a
change in interest rates of +25 basis points and
-25 basis points (2020: +25 basis points and -25
basis points). The calculations are based on the
cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December
2021 and 2020. All other variables are held
constant.

ReEREMNERREHH T
BrHEeRELHRTEF
EEHMEBZRAKREREE -
AEEFZEHZHEERR
FTEHREMBHBEE B
HRTER RekBeE
EMURETEHERE
B MAREIEREFES
BRI EE25 « 26 R 274 EE -

TERBEBTIFEBRMEBHE
wm AR K+ 258 F
N-258F(ZZFZFF : 425
BF R-258F) 2 BURE - )
AR —FR=ZZT=F
F+-—A=+—RAZR&e XK
ReFSEWTE - FIBEM

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
If interest rates were 25 basis point  fifiFl| = £ F2524F
(2020: 25 basis point) higher T T4 )58 T)
Profit for the year increased by 125 Mg AN 13,057 5,848
If interest rates were 25 basis point i | T £ 2525 F
(2020: 25 basis point) lower —T-FF 2580 F)
Profit for the year decreased by FEREFBD 13,057 5,848
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MKEREREE)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 B EkREZE(E)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) HiEER(HE)
(i) 1EFEE R

(iii) ~ Price risk

This relates to the risk that the fair values or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices
(other than changes in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates). The Group is exposed to other
price risk arising from its listed equity investments
classified as financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income
(note 21). Management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk and return profiles and consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

For listed equity securities, an average volatility
of 20.26% and 11.59% (2020: 23.49% and
30.16%) was observed in Hang Seng Index in
Hong Kong and All Ordinary Index in Australia
in 2021 respectively. Had the quoted stock price
for these securities increased or decreased by
that amount, the Group’s security investment
reserve within equity would have been increased
or decreased by approximately HK$95,262,000
(2020: HK$299,924,000) keeping other factors
constant such as the appreciation of currency.

EBfEREMHETAEZAF
BEXARBESRESHRT
LERES (R XKEXEH
BRINTMKE < RBRERE - &
SEZHEMEBRRRITED
BREAFEFARMGEZE
W MBEEEZ EMBRA
BREMB(MEE21) - EHRE
BT EATRER LD
HBzREMESEEUER -
VT ERNFEREEEEH IR

G o
N

HREMZBAES &
BAEEEIRMNAA EBR
FEZ(All Ordinary Index)iA =
T —F2FHEEBD B A
2026%E11.59% (T ==&
F :23.49%%30.16%) ° fid
ZEBFTRBREZRZBE
EFS TR A E =
TEEBAE)  BIAER
HEANZEBHFRE BRI
hnsk e 4 #995,262,0008 7T
—E-FF 299,924,000
BT °

(b) Credit risk (b)) =EEE

EERRK S EKE ZREAKER
RE - EHE - BMRIGUR - Hi
MBEE  CHEMRTER - BFE
FEEE =@ A ZERFHIAKLR
ELBEEEEYD -

Credit risk arises from trade and bills receivables,
deposits, other receivables, other financial assets,
pledged bank deposits, time deposits with original
maturity over three months and cash and cash
equivalents.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Risk management

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any
new customer, the Group uses an internal credit
system to assess the potential customer’s credit
quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
once a year. Other monitoring procedures are in
place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.

The credit risk on all pledged bank deposits,
time deposits with original maturity over three
months and cash and cash equivalents of the
Group is minimised as the funds are placed with
major banks located in Hong Kong and the PRC
respectively.

Impairment of financial assets

Trade and bills receivables for sales of goods of
the Group subject to the expected credit loss
model.

Trade and bills receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade and bills receivables.

T 5% BHBLEREEARLT 251
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3.1 MBEREE (&)

(b) FEmpEE)

(1)

(ii)
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade and bills receivables (continued)

For bills receivables, bills are issued by
counterparties at reputable banks and finance
institution and the credit risk is considered to be
low. Those counterparties do not have defaults
in the past. Therefore, expected credit loss rate
is assessed to be minimal and no provision was
made as at each of the end of reporting period.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and ageing profile.

Management considers that full provision would
be made for balances with known financial
difficulties or those not responding to collection
activities, while the expected credit loss rates of
the remaining balances are determined based
on historical credit losses experienced over the
past 3 years and adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information including
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.

Impairment losses on receivables are presented
as “net impairment losses on financial assets”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the same line
item.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BIEKRERE(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BIERREZE(E

(b) Credit risk (continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade and bills receivables (continued)

The following table presents the gross carrying

(b) FEmpEE)

(i) EEEEREE)

FEE 2R N BRE R ()

TREJEKWEZREANE

amount and the provision for impairment losses BREE LB EEERE
in respect of trade receivables:
Lifetime
expected Gross Lifetime Net
credit carrying expected carrying
loss rate amount credit loss amount
REFRH ARETEH
BRRER BAREE BRRE AREHE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
As at 31 December 2021 RZZE=-—F
+t=A=+-H
Ageing category RED B
Within 1 year —FR 4.1% 921,501 (37,552) 883,949
Over 1 year HBA—F 100% 165,924 (165,924) =
1,087,425 (203,476) 883,949
As at 31 December 2020 i e 23
+=ZR=+—H
Ageing category RN E
Within 1 year —FR 53% 703,393 (37,011) 666,382
Over 1 year BB —F 100% 161,292 (161,292) =
864,685 (198,303) 666,382
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade and bills receivables (continued)

Deposits and other receivables, other financial
assets, pledged bank deposits and bank balances

For deposits and other receivables and other
financial assets, management makes periodic
individual assessments on the recoverability
of deposits and other receivables based on
historical settlement records, past experience
as well as forward looking factors. There has
no recent history of default in relation to these
counterparties. The expected credit loss is
immaterial.

For pledged bank deposits and bank balances,
there has no recent history of default in relation
to those financial institutions and reputable
banks. The expected credit loss is immaterial.

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables and
its financing obligations, and also in respect of its
cash flow management. The Group’s objective is
to maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets
and committed lines of funding to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully
monitoring expected payments for potential
investments as well as cash-outflows due in day-to-
day business. Liquidity needs are monitored on a day-
to-day basis. Long-term liquidity needs for a 360-day
lookout periods are identified on a monthly basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group maintains mainly cash to meet its liquidity
requirements for up to 30-day periods, funding for
long-term liquidity needs will be considered when
there is any potential investment identified.

The following tables details the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting dates of non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payment
computed using contractual rate or, if floating, based
on current rates at the reporting date) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay:

T —FFR
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FEMBRRM T @®

BE—F-——F+-_A=1—HIFE

3. BMKEBRE

I (48)

M EREEE

(9]

MEBE 2/ (E)

AEEBFEHRBESUBM KK
30EHIAZRBESHE - LK
RBRHEBEEREREESRARE

BEeHBERRE -

TREFBOTEMBRENHRSE A
HiZ RIEREHHR - HIRBEKR
MBERERE (BREREHN X
R (W AF )RR E B HRTH
REFE 2 F BT ARAREE A
WERNKZZFAHHE

Total
Within Between Between contractual
one year or one and two and Over undiscounted Carrying
ondemand  two years five years five years cash flow amount
—£h -3 Gk ARRER
FREX [EFd RECH BENL RenESE BEE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FEn FEr Fir Fér FEr FEr
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ-£+ZR
=t-A
Non-derivative financial FITEHBAE:
liabilities:
Trade and bills payables EREABERENSE 607,247 = = = 607,247 607,247
Leased liabiliies HERE 6,159 2,366 7,052 18,134 EEWAT 26,030
Other financial liability HtHBAE 180,817 = = = 180,817 180,817
Other payables and accruals b ETARESBE 865,032 = = 200151 1,067,183 996,519
Amounts due tonon-controlling BB R T3
interests of subsidiaries BB 156,999 - - - 156,999 156,999
1,816,254 2,366 7,052 220,285 2,045,957 1,967,612
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

FEMBRRM T @®

HE T —F{-A=+—HIIFZF
3. B EEER &)
3.1 RARERE)

(0 nEEzZEEE)

Total
Within Between Between contractual
oneyearor  oneandtwo  two and five Overfive  undiscounted Carying
on demand years years years cash flow amount
R =5 k| ANRER
JEEL M 2B ik ) RENE RENE4E BEE
HKS$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
&L &L TEL TEL TEL AL
As at 31 Decerber 2020 RZEZFEFZA=1-A
Non-derivative financiallabilites: ~ FEATEBTEAE -
Trade and bills payables EREAEERERER 592,618 e S S 592,618 592,618
Leased liabilties HERE 4,487 2,306 6,890 20,698 34,381 25,038
Other financial liabilty HithkaRE 186,300 - - - 186,300 186,300
Other payables and accruals A ENTERETER 876,508 - - 197012 1,03520 993,023
Amounts duetonon-controlling—— [ERMBA T3 AR
interests of subsidiaies & 52,778 - - - 52,778 52,778
1,712,691 2,306 6,890 27,110 1,939,597 1,849,757
3.2 Capital management 3.2 EXEE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are: AEBCZERERENRG

(@) To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it continues to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

(b) To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(c) To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening
the Group’s risk management capability.

(a) MRAEEBREHENAFEREE
g AEERBRR IR R S
HoAth 3540 & 75 R &R

) XFHAKEZBREMER: K

(0 REBSNIEAEE R ER

b
Be ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital management (continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
equity holder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows, projected capital expenditures and projected
strategic investment opportunities. Details of the Group’s
dividend policy is disclosed under the heading “Dividend
Policy” in the Corporate Governance Report. Management
regards total equity, including its reserves, as capital
which was amounted to HK$19,148,218,000 (2020:
HK$17,291,070,000) as at 31 December 2021, for capital
management purpose.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
a net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose, the
Group defines net debts as total debt plus unaccrued
proposed dividends, less time deposits with original
maturity over three months and cash and cash equivalents.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity and
less unaccrued proposed dividends.

During the year, the Group's strategy was to maintain
the net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at the minimal level.
In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt. As at 31 December
2021, the Group does not have any debt (2020: nil) and
the Group's adjusted cash position (which include cash
and cash equivalents and time deposits with original
maturity over three months less proposed final dividend) is
HK$4,809,298,000 (2020: HK$3,607,450,000).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

To—4EH HEBLEREEERAT 257

FEMBRRM T @®

BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE
3. BMRAKREEE)
3.2 EXEE (&)

AEBREG N TR MERELE AR
B UBRESREEARE R EREE
EAZER - EENEAERALEERR
ZESFERAEAY S  ERNRIEAA
Flgeh - BRAKERERE  BAHER
A RIBRRBERERS - EAEE
BREBMKZHBREEERBREIRE
BE]—ERHEE - REAEREMS
RZE-_—F+-_A=+—8" &
BHEZzREBEERBIRAER
$£19,148,218,0008 L (ZE —Z4F
17,291,070,000/ 7T) °

REBREBHFRHLEHBER LXK
ERHBEARARE - BmE  AREZ
BT F B IE BB AR IMNIEE FR
BB BRERHEB=MEATHF
FARBRE KRS EEY - KREBER
BIEES BRI - AR EIFE
AHEERRE. -

RER - ANEBZ KBS ESFHEY
AR ER 2 RERFTEREAKTE -
ETHBRABRZLLE  AEBEA S
ABRINFREZBESHE - BITHR
mAREREEN  EEHEBKRE
FHEEEURDER -HRZT=_—F
+ZA=+—8  AEETETFNES
(ZZ2-ZF B)RAEEZEAER
SRR EFEEReEREEEEY R
RERPEA=EAZERERRER
KHIRR B) &4,809,298,0008 T (= F
—F 4 1 3,607,450,000/87T) °

AR B EAEAHE R BTEIRZRRSIN
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BIEKRERE(E)

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 A¥EME

The following table provides an analysis of financial TREMBRATEIIRMBIARER

instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value FEER 2T

hierarchy:

— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets - FB1E: MHRAEERBEREED
for identical assets and liabilities; %52 WECRIERE) ;

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included - F2E: MEELAGEMEEH
within Level 1 that are observable for the B8) S (AN ER
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) HEOT) ATERR 2 B R A
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and (TREFI1BFEEZH

B &

— Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are - B3E: WIHRBUBRIMHH
not based on observable market data BMEREENEBBEZE
(unobservable inputs). A (EEEBR 2 E R

BA) o

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the BIEVKEEXEBMBAZLATERE

financial asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is B DEREATFTHEFAEEABERER

based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the 2R REREA -

fair value measurement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) e E T E L IERAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T —FEf-_A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MKEREREE)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AV EMEH(E
The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value REETBRARNIZAFEFECH
in the consolidated statement of financial position are BEERBEDEDBUATZATERE
grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows: 3
2021
—E-—F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£1E F2E $3E wmEE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
HtaF FHET FET FET FET
Financial assets measured &2 F{ET A
at fair value through Hith 2 mE s
other comprehensive A E
income
— Listed equity securities  — ETIAEZAR
BH 3.3(a) 638,494 = = 638,494
~ Unlisted equity - FELEMRAR
securities 3 3.3(b) = = = =

638,494 - - 638,494
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

FEMBRRM T @®

Bzr—F

S AS+—AULFE

3. MBEREE(E
3.3 AV EMF(E)

2020
—E_TF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E E2E E3E wmE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BtaE FHEITL FHEITL FA&T FHET
Financial assets measured & A F(ET A
at fair value through Hith 2w
other comprehensive 2B EE
income
- Listed equity securities ~ — A%
B 5 3.3(a) 1,082,464 = - 1,082,464
~ Unlisted equity - JE LT
securities FH 3.3(b) = - - -
1,082,464 - - 1,082,464

There were no transfers between levels during both years.

The methods and valuation techniques used for the
purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged compared

to previous reporting periods.

(a) Listed equity securities

The listed equity securities are denominated in
AUD and HK$. Fair values have been determined
by reference to their quoted prices at the reporting
date and have been translated using the spot foreign
currency rates at the end of the reporting period

where appropriate.

(b) Unlisted equity securities

The fair value of unlisted equity securities included in

level 3 is minimal.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value include
trade and bills receivables, other receivables, other financial
assets, bank balances and cash, amounts due to non-
controlling interests of subsidiaries, trade and bills payables,
other payables and accruals and other financial liability.

The fair values of these financial instruments measured at

amortised cost approximate their carrying amounts.

AR ERHEZ IAREERMTEIA
RS MEAL L B2 -

(a) LHRAFEH

T RARRE 77 J0 DOR T K T AT
B AFHEDZ2EZRENHEBH
ZHmEMET - WAREHARZR
BEXBEGER) -

(b) ¥ LEHRAEEF

BEEFRIBZIFLTBRARRZ
DHERRE

TERAFEHEZMHTABRERKE
ZEAREWEE - BRI RIE - &
WM BEE - RITEHRIRE - BAH
B ABIHERERIA - BB SKRA
REMNZEE - BRI FRAREER
AR EMEAFEALE -

AERBHEAAFTEZH B TR ZRAF
BEROEMRKREE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experiences and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal to the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

4.1 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses impairment on property, plant and
equipment and mining rights at each reporting date by
evaluating conditions specific to the Group that may lead to
impairment of assets. Where an impairment trigger exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. Value-
in-use calculations performed in assessing recoverable
amounts incorporate a number of key estimates and
assumptions about future events, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially, differ from the actual
results. In making these key estimates and judgements,
the directors take into consideration assumptions that are
mainly based on market condition existing at the reporting
dates and appropriate market and discount rates. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market data
and actual transactions entered into by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.2 Impairment of goodwiill

4.3

The Group tests on an annual basis whether goodwill
has suffered any impairment in accordance with the
accounting policy as stated in note 2.9. The recoverable
amounts of CGUs have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
judgement and estimates about future cash flow expected
to arise from the CGUs, the timeframe for the cash flows
forecast and the suitable discount rates in order to calculate
the present value. In the process of estimating expected
future cash flows, management makes assumptions about
future revenues and profits. These assumptions relate
to future events and circumstances. The actual results
may vary and may cause a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of goodwill within the next financial
year. Determining the appropriate discount rate involves
estimating the appropriate adjustment for market risk
and asset specific risk factors. In addition, since the cash
flow projections are extrapolated beyond 5 years and the
remaining license period of the mining rights held by the
Group ranges from 11 to 21 years, management is of the
opinion that the Group is able to renew the license of the
mining rights from the relevant authority continuously and
at minimal charges. Details of impairment assessment are
set out in note 19.

Amortisation of mining rights and
depreciation of mining structures

Mining rights and mining structures are amortised
and depreciated over the estimated total proven and
probable reserves of the coal mines using units of
production method. The Group assesses on an annual
basis the estimated reserve of the coal mine. However, the
remaining license period of the mining rights held by the
Group range from 11 to 21 years which are shorter than
the estimated useful lives of the coal mine estimated by
the Group. Management is of the opinion that the Group
is able to renew the license of the mining rights from the
relevant authority continuously and at minimal charges.
If the expectation differs from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the amortisation and depreciation
charged in the period in which such estimate is changed.

FEMBRRM T @®

BE_FT-——F+_A=+—HIFEZ
4. EEFFEFTRAE (@&

4.2 HERE

4.3

ANEEBFEMF2.9FT 2 €5 BUR
BFAFREERSBEARE - REeE
Az A RE S IRFEREETE
FEEE - WETEFERBHREELSR
ReELBAUZARESRE BEaR
EEAZERSE RS EMREEDL A
BT R bR AR EIRME - REETTERIAR R
ReERER  BEEESYHRRKERE
FIELBRR - ZEBRERKEH IR
MNER MEEARKETE - WA 4
BYRT—AVBRFEEEZRAEZAE
HAEAE  -ETABEZHRERSRG
ATERBREERTRBREEZZAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.3 Amortisation of mining rights and depreciation

4.4

of mining structures (continued)

Engineering estimates of the Group’s coal reserves involved
subjective judgements by engineers in developing such
information and reserves are estimated in accordance with
national standards set by relevant authorities in the PRC.
Estimates of proven and probable coal reserves involved
subjective judgements and assumption are required for a
range of geological, technical and economic factors, so the
proven and probable coal reserves are only approximate
values. The recent production and technology documents
shall be considered for the estimates of proven and
probable coal reserves which will be updated regularly, the
inherent inaccuracy of technical estimating exists. If the
past estimates change significantly, the amortisation and
depreciation shall be adjusted during future periods.

Obligations for land reclamation

The estimation of the liabilities for final reclamation and
mine closure involves the estimates of the amount and
timing for the future cash spending as well as the discount
rate used for reflecting current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The Group considers the factors including development
plan of the mines, the geological structure of the mining
regions and reserve volume to determine the scope,
amount and timing of reclamation and mine closure
works to be performed. Determination of the effect of
these factors involves judgements from the Group and the
estimated liabilities may turn out to be different from the
actual expenditure to be incurred. The discount rate used
by the Group may also be altered to reflect the changes
in the market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability, such as change of the
borrowing rate and inflation rate in the market. As changes
in estimates occur (such as mine plan revisions, changes in
estimated costs, or changes in timing of the performance
of reclamation activities), the revisions to the obligation will
be recognised at the appropriate discount rate.
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5.

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's principal activities are disclosed in note 1. Revenue
from contracts with customers, which is also the Group’s
turnover, represents the sales value of coking coal products in
the ordinary course of businesses which are recognised at a
point in time. Revenue recognised is as follows:

FEMBRRM T @®

BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE

5.

REEFEHAWRER D HER

AEBEZTEXBRHEIRE - RETP
BRWESTAIAREZ 28X - BERER
HEARAERERSEAETHEERERZH
EEE - WaEHEROT

2021 2020

—EB-—F —E-TEF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Sales of clean coking coal BEREE 7,075,818 3,948,288
Sales of raw coking coal REEEE = 48,663
7,075,818 3,996,951

The executive directors have been identified as the chief
operating decision-maker of the Company. The Group identifies
operating segments and prepares segment information based
on the regular internal financial information reported to the
executive directors for their decisions about resources allocation
to the Group’s business components and their review of the
performance of those components. The business components
in the internal financial information reported to the executive
directors are determined following the Group’s major product
lines. The Group has identified one reportable segment as
coking coal mining, which represents mining and exploration of
coal resources and production of raw and clean coking coal in
the PRC.

The executive directors regard the Group’s business as a single
operating segment and review financial information accordingly.
Therefore, no segment information is presented. The executive
directors primarily use a measure of profit before income tax to
assess the performance of the operating segment.

HITEFRARAEIELERRE - ~EEH
REEHARTEFTREARBEFIRER
SEXBHMERS EMEMZFHMEX
BZABHEEHE DKL DR R RE DB
BR e MATESHREZATMBEHNAZ
RBEFT > DRAKEIEEME D - A&
BB D —E2FNHFRERFAR - HERPH
PR R B IR IR B TRIA S A EE R R B
B o

WTEEHRAKEEGRE—KENH X
RILEBBM B ER - Bt - WEENDHE
Bt e MITE R T BEMRATEHADEH KT
EREEDBIRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T —FEf-_A=+—HIFE
5. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 5. REEFEHAKWERDIER(E)

CUSTOMERS AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

The Group’s revenue from external customers and its non-
current assets (other than financial instruments and deferred
income tax assets) are divided into the following geographical
areas:

REBIRMEE 5 2 BINE P U REIER
PEEGBTARELEFREHREERIN W
N

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
HRF S FREBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
=B-—F _"_T_THF ZB--—F _T_THF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FAET
Principal markets FEmH
PRC A 7,075,818 3,996,951 13,494,405 13,407,293
Hong Kong B = - 209 259
7,075,818 3,996,951 13,494,614 13,407,552

Geographical location of customers is based on the location at
which the goods were delivered whilst geographical location
of non-current assets is based on the physical location of the
assets.

During the year, revenue from two (2020: two) customers over
10% of the Group’s coking coal mining segment amounted
to HK$2,845,122,000 (2020: HK$1,453,909,000) and
HK$1,296,416,000 (2020: HK$1,013,808,000) respectively,
which represented 40% (2020: 36%) and 18% (2020: 25%) of
the Group’s revenue respectively.

BEPHEIRINERZMIEETE - MIER
BEEMRDIZREECERAEER -

RERN REAEBRERER>BZR
10%Llﬁz SZMB(ZEZEF - MAB)RP
S RA52,845,122,0008 T (ZE 8 4F ¢
1,453,909,000/7T) &21,296,416,000/8 T
—ZE_F4% :1,013,808,000/87T) * D5l
EAREBKZELI0% (ZE_TF 1 36%) K%

18% (ZZF=F4F : 25%) °
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6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6. Ht AR Wz - B
2021 2020
—E-— BT
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Dividend income g 2 U A 61,603 48,377
Income from sales of by-products HERIERZWA 93,107 36,291
Net foreign exchange gain SNESTE W e TR 87,955 131,178
Others HAitb 1,504 3,383
244,169 219,229
7. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 7. Hth&ERX
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Additional depreciation on property, plant and FBINIZE - BE KR EITE
equipment (Note) (Hiat) 73,199 76,414
Reversal of impairment loss on financial assets [ 81 #% & & R E 18
(note 24) (Hat24) = (22,500)
Loss on disposals of property, plant and HEWE - BER&E 2 EE
equipment 3,933 1,671
Geology investigation fee HWEMES = 2,821
Others HAitb 19,128 6,089
96,260 64,495

Note: According to the plan of transferring the production from upper
coal seam to lower coal seam of Xingwu Coal Mine in 2023,
the additional part arising from accelerated depreciation on the
related underground mining structures of the upper coal seam was
charged in the other operating expenses during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.

Hiat

REEREEN_T_=FKEERL

MREBRETHEHRNE  EEEKZ
R BT T RIS R R Y R R B B T ERAS
EINBOFABRE T —FR=_ZT=
ZE+ A=+ -BULFENEMEE

X -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

8.

BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE

FINANCE COSTS 8. MBAA
2021 2020
—E-—F —EZFTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F#ET

Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 17(ii)) HMEBEZFEHX

(B 17i) 1,169 1,250
Interest charged on discounted bills receivables Bfi 3R f& s Z 5 2 7 8. & F 106 =
1,275 1,250
No borrowing costs were capitalised for the years ended 31 HE_Z-—FR_F_ZF+_A=1—

December 2021 and 2020.

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is arrived at
after charging:
Auditor’s remuneration
— audit services
— other services
Cost of inventories sold
Amortisation of:
= land use rights (note 16)
= mining rights (note 18)
Depreciation of:
— property, plant and equipment (note 15)
— right-of-use assets (note 17(ii))
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
(note 13)

HIEFE  ITEREERADHETEARN -

9. BRATGHBLATEF

2021 2020
g% —EFHF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FE&T
BrETE R ADE A B kK
ZEAT &
- ZEPRTS 1,650 1,600
- E AR 400 470
HEFEKA 2,681,244 2,127,744
B
- TFE AR 16) 1,956 1,958
— IRuERE (AL 18) 255,600 227,013
e -
- - BB REEHF15) 342,010 330,494
- FRAEEERIFE170) 1,644 5,148
BINA(BIEESHE)
(Htat13) 818,256 652,903
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FEMBRRM T @®

BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FiISHE A

2021 2020
—E-— BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Current tax — PRC income tax BUERFRIE — P RIFTIS R
— Current year -REE 1,090,604 393,108
= Under provision in respect of prior years -BEFERETR 1,322 12,285

Deferred tax (note 32) EERIA (K 7E32)

— Current year - REE (20,598) 19,938
1,071,328 425,331
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in HR-ZZ_—FR_ZT_ZFAEEEES

WEELERTGEN - HRBREGEE MR
RUBABFETIELBE -

the consolidated financial statements as the Group had no
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for 2021 and 2020.

In accordance with the Income Tax Law of the PRC for

REBAINELEZHBMBHEL - AKH

Enterprises with Foreign Investment, the Group’s major
operating subsidiaries, namely Shanxi Liulin Xingwu Coal Co.,
Limited ("Xingwu"), Shanxi Liulin Jinjiazhuang Coal Co., Limited
("Jinjiazhuang”) and Shanxi Liulin Zhaiyadi Coal Co., Limited
("Zhaiyadi”), all established in the PRC, are subject to 25%
enterprise income tax in the PRC.

The Group is also subject to withholding tax at the rate of 5%
(2020: 5%) on the distributions of profits generated from the
Group’s major PRC subsidiaries which are directly owned by the
Group's subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong.

RABKZz ER2LENERR BN
MEEREEREERR(TEE]) - LY
MEFERFERQB (S KA RILTEY
MEEEREERAR(RER]D) 2HBEE
EFEHERGR25% °

AREETAT B ANKBAEETEEMAL 2
BRAEERBRAZASEEZF BEHEART]
FEL AP KEMNBEN%(—TE_FF
5%) Z ML ©
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FEMBRRM T @®

BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FiISHEB A (E)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting S ERERBEARETE 2505 #

profit at applicable tax rates is as follows: BT
2021 2020
—E-—F T
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Profit before income tax B BT 1525 B ) 4,132,159 1,612,614
Tax calculated at the rates applicable to BT DA RER 2
the tax jurisdiction concerned MERFTE 2 HIE 1,003,313 368,459
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR S 2 BT s & 18,813 6,172
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBMA BB E (12,233) (17,795)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBRBEEB 2R BTE 239 4,631
Utilisation of tax loss not recognised BRARERTEER (27,597) (15,298)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on AEBFZEFEMBARZ
distributable profits of the Group’s major A 3R M AN S % TR 2
PRC subsidiaries TE 87,471 66,877
Under provision in respect of prior years BEFERETR 1,322 12,285
Income tax expense Fristi & A 1,071,328 425,331
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11. DIVIDENDS

FEMBRRM T @®

BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE

1. RE

2021 2020
—B-—fF —E_TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET F#ET
Dividends recognised as distributions REANERD IS
during the year:
2020 final dividend of HK9 cents :;?:;?¢XHH% g Hﬁ
(2020: 2019 final dividend of HK8.7 cents) Hﬁ%ﬂb (ZB_FF:
per ordinary share —NEREIRE8.7810) 454,665
2021 interim dividend of HK8 cents :;?:—EEF‘ HARR S Hﬁ
(2020: 2020 interim dividend of ERRSEIN(CT_ZF :
HK7.5 cents) per ordinary share ZEZTFEHERET.5B) 404,147 378,888
858,812 840,148

(a)

On 26 March 2020, the Board proposed a 2019 final
dividend of HK8.7 cents per ordinary share, totalling
HK$461,260,000 to the owners of the Company in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2019. The final dividend
was approved by shareholders at the annual general
meeting held on 21 May 2020 and was paid on 23 July
2020. The 2019 final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2019 has been reflected as an appropriation of
retained earnings for the year ended 31 December 2020.

On 28 August 2020, the Board declared an 2020 interim
dividend of HK7.5 cent per ordinary share, totalling
HK$378,888,000 for the six months ended 30 June 2020,
which was paid on 22 October 2020.

On 25 March 2021, the Board proposed a 2020 final
dividend of HK9 cents per ordinary share totalling
HK$454,665,000 to the owners of the Company in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2020. The final dividend
was approved by shareholders at the annual general
meeting held on 30 June 2021 and was paid on 29 July
2021. The 2020 final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2020 has been reflected as an appropriation of
retained earnings for the year ended 31 December 2021.

A—E_EF=ZA-+B - EETQEE
FAARRFEAEARBEE-_Z— N1
F+-_A=+—BHLEFEZ=ZZE—N
FREARSSRE MRS 7HW - &1
461,260,000 70 - ZARHAKEE R =
E_EFFA-T—HBTZBRRAEF
A FEREIE  IR-_ZE-_TF+
A-+=A%f - BEZZT—NF+=
A=+—BLH&Ez_ZT—NFREK
BEONMEHEE-_T-_EFE+_-_A=+
—HIEFEZRBRFDIK -

R-E-_ZEFNA-_+NB EF=
KBE_ZT-TF A= +E¢AME
ZIEEFHRHREERLMART.S
Bl - A 4£378,888,0008 T 0 WH
EoRFFA+ AL -

RZE-_—F=ZA=-+HH EEEg
BEAAQRAHEBAREHE_S =
TE+-A=+— E¢$F2_7_
TFERBRBEBRELBIRIBI - &K
454,665,000/ 70 - ZARAKEE R =
T —FRNAZTHBITZERRBAFX
TLERR#E YR -_—FtA
ZThABEEN - BEZZTZTF+=A
—t—BEEFEZZETFRRE
ERMEEE T -_—F+_-_A=+—
HEFEZREBRAMDIK
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE
11. DIVIDENDS (continued) 1. RE (&)

(d) On 26 August 2021, the Board declared an 2021 interim (d RZE-_—FNA-+H BE=EE
dividend of HK8 cent per ordinary share, totalling KBE_Z-_—FA=1THIXHEA
HK$404,147,000 for the six months ended 30 June 2021, B —FHEHREBEEREBEKRSE
which was paid on 28 October 2021. il - & #£404,147,000 0 » TR -F

——FtAZ-t+NBXfe

(e) On 24 March 2022, the Board proposed a 2021 final (&) RZEZZF=RF=+W1A - %%ﬁ@
dividend of HK32 cents per ordinary share totalling FAARARBEAEARBEE-_ZS =
HK$1,616,588,000 to the owners of the Company in FH+_A=+—RUEFEZ=_ZT=—
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021. The final FREREERE®R3I2BI - &4
dividend is subject to the shareholder’s approval at the 1,616,588,0008 7T ° s AR AR B 787
forthcoming annual general meeting. The final dividend RENERIT 2 RRBERE LI Hﬁ
proposed after 31 December 2021 has not been recognised HEEFIEE RZBE=-Z—F+=A
as a liability as at 31 December 2021. = +—BEEIKRZ KA b"\fgi

F+-A=t—BYARBERRAE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BREF

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share to ARNBHEEANEBRERERREER N %

owners of the Company are based on the following data: TOEEEE
2021 2020
—B-—fF —TTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Profit used to determine basic and diluted REE T BRER RS

earnings per share B Z 5 A 2,538,495 1,080,041
‘000 shares ‘000 shares
FBR FAR

Number of shares RBER
Weighted average number of ordinary shares st EEREARMEEEF
for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings & &% hn#E 7 15 81
per share 5,051,837 5,237,630
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12.

13.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Basic earnings per share is HK50.25 cents (2020: HK20.62
cents), based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$2,538,495,000 (2020: HK$1,080,041,000)
and weighted average number of ordinary shares as set out
above for basic earnings per share.

No share options had been granted under the 2012 share option
scheme since its adoption. Accordingly, as at 31 December
2021 and 2020, there was no share option outstanding and the
Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares
during years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

STAFFS COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)

HE—F—

FEMBRRM T @®

—FF= A=+ —AULFE

AR A AELFERET2,538,495,000
BIL(ZZEZFF : 1,080,041 ooo;‘%ﬁ)&t
METE SREAREF TR 2 ST
HEtE - FREAREFA50.258(I(ZE =%
£ 1 20.6278(L) °

BT —FBRE B ERAARBER
SR EEMBRE - Bt R-F-—FR
“ECTHFE+TA=1T—B  EEEAER
TEZBEE MARARBEE-_T——
R—B-FHF+_RA=1+— Eiifﬁlﬁ
EAEEHETE N 2 EBR

B.EIRF(BREESEHE)

2021 2020

—E-— T

HK$'000 HK$’000

FET FET

Salaries, wages, allowances and other benefits e ITE - R REMET 752,511 622,207
Provision for unused annual leaves FHEARSATR 56 32
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BRI FIFT B 91,469 50,686
844,036 672,925

Less: capitalised in CIP B RERIRABTER (25,780) (20,022)
Total staff costs charged in profit or loss REZAR 2 BB THAR 818,256 652,903

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no forfeited
contribution (2020: nil) under the defined contribution plans is
used to reduce the existing and future levels of contribution. As
at 31 December 2021, forfeited contribution of approximately
HK$71,300 (2020: nil) under the defined contribution plans is
available to offset the future contributions.

BE-_Z-_—F+-A=1T—RHLFE"
RERTERERAGE T RBHER(ZEE
F &) ARRR DR B AR E HF0K
FoeRZIZBI-—F+TZA=T—H REHE
HEETE N ER KM A 71,3008 (=
ToTF )R AREEARRER



For the year ended 31 December 2021

EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S

— &
=
—=

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

——F5YH HHABLERESEEARRQT 273

FEMBRRM T @®

BE—F-——F+-_A=1—HIFE

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors were

14. EERaREEAEMS

EEME

ENRENSEEZMEWT ¢

as follows:
2021 2020
IRz ZR0%E
Retirement Retirement
Salaries, benefits Salaries, benefits
allowances  Discretionary scheme allowances  Discretionary scheme
Fees  and benefits bonuses  contributions Total Fees  and benefits bonuses  contributions Total
i 2ER BREA S 2R RIRER
ik BURN  BERL HiE s a5 e RN miERM BES #%
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
FEi FEn FEr FEi FEr FiEr T FET Tin T
Executive directors #hEs
Mr. Ding Rucai ThA %% - 3,120 = 18 3,138 = 3120 = 18 3138
. Fan Wenli BXHEE - 2,760 = = 2,760 = 2,760 = = 2760
Mr. Chen Zhaogiang RkEE - 2,640 660 248 3,548 = 2,640 440 231 3311
Mr. Liu Qingshan AEN%E - 2,400 600 25 3205 = 2400 400 210 3010
Mr. Wang Dongming! IRREE = 400 = 3 403 = = - - -
Mr. So Kwok Hoo? HEREH - = = = = = 1175 = 8 1,263
Non-executive directors FuTES
Ms Chang Cun BRIt 00 = = = 40 40 = = S 40
. Shi Yubao BEEk4 40 = S = 0 40 = = = 40
Independent BUFuTES
non-executive directors
Mr. Choi Wai Yin Biegss 00 = S = 40 40 = = = 40
Mr. Japhet Sebastian Law EERE 420 = = = 420 40 = = S 40
Mr. Chen Jianxiong? R - - - - - - - - - -
ir. Shen Zongbin R 210 = = = 210 = = = = =
. Kee Wah Sz¢? RETEE 210 - - - 210 420 - - - 40
Mr. Chan Pat Lam? BRtmisE = = = = = 164 = = = 164
2,100 11320 1,260 494 15174 2,264 12,095 840 547 15,746
L appointed with effect from 30 June 2020, commenced to receive ! BEZZE_TFERA=THREZE  R=F

remuneration from November 2021

2 retired with effect from 21 May 2020

e appointed with effect from 30 June 2020, during the year ended
31 December 2020, the Company paid Mr. Chen Jianxiong
HK$211,000 as directors’ fee. During the year ended 31 December
2021, Mr. Chen lJianxiong returned all the directors’ fee received
to the Company and voluntarily waived his directors’ fee from the
date of his appointment.

& appointed with effect from 30 June 2021

E retired with effect from 30 June 2021

Z—F+— AABKIEE
RZZE-ZFRA-+—HRME
E_Z_ZF A=ZTHREZT HE=
TTF+-A=+—HILFE ' XARIMA
FREMESE AT M211,0008 THESHESE -
HE_ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HL&FE MK
BEAERNARABEMRIEETEE R
BREMESZTHRRF Z2EEEE -
BE_E-_—FX XA=Z+tHREZT
RZE-—FXA=+HEME
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Directors’ emoluments (continued)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office (2020: nil).

During the year, no share options were granted to the directors
in respect of their services to the Group (2020: nil). Details of
these benefits in kind including the principal terms and number
of options granted are disclosed under the heading “Share
Option Scheme” in the Directors’ report.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 included
four (2020: four) directors whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to
the remaining one (2020: one) employee during the year is as
follows:

FEMBRRM T @®

HE—F—

pay

— A=+ —AUFE

14. EERSREBAEME (E)

EExM=@

RER  AEEBRERNEENHE  (FR
RSN Sk hn B AR R By 2 825 Sk /E R B
MECE_ZTF 8-

REP - LM B EAAEERE
ﬁv#ﬁ%hﬁff T ) -
WARF 2 BN
BB R T R AL B
R -

p=lllg
N

TEBEMEAR

@i_’—;:—ﬁJr:ﬂEJr—EIJJ:EFE N
FHsesnA2BARREE (T
;ﬁi TMR)EE A ERRR EXH
I FRBNBT —R(ZF_FF
—R)RENHFHAT :

2021 2020
—E- —E-THF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET

Salaries, wages and allowances and e I8 FMEEMER
other benefits 1,682,200 1,682,200
Discretionary bonuses BETEAL 388,200 258,800
Retirement benefits scheme contribution RIRFEFFT B R 155,280 145,575
2,225,680 2,086,575




— = —

=

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

—FFH ERABLEREEERA[ 275

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) e E T E L IERAC )
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 1. EERESREEAEME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Five highest paid individuals (continued) EEEEMEAS )
The emoluments of the above employee fell within the following NEFEEMESEENT

band:

Emolument band B < & &
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 B #52 000,001 TR
7B #2,500,0007T

Number of individuals

EEAR
2021 2020
—E- T
1 1

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior
management are include in the analysis presented above.

ENfSEMNEREEEREZMECERN L
M2 DHA -
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FEMBRRM T @®

EE =+ —HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ BWERRE

Mining Office Motor
machinery equipment,  vehicles and
Buildings Mining and Leasehold  furnitureand transportation
and plants QP structures equipment  improvements fixtures equipment Total
HRERE
BTREE AEIR BREEY BREERERE  RENEEE BRREE REREERE b
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
A A AT AT TAT A A AT
At 1 January 2020 RZ2-25-A-R
Cost HAfE 1,681,480 709,308 1,547,278 1,670,651 2,965 120,132 58,941 5,790,755
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE (662,870) - (197,408) (925,573) (2,965) (104,526) (51,895 (1,945,237)
Accumulated impairment losses ZitHEER (106,991) = (7,320) (39,772) = = = (154,083)
Net carrying amount BHFE 911,619 709,308 1,342,550 705,306 = 15,606 7046 3691435
For the year ended 31 December 2020 EE-T-%%
TZR=t-BLER
Opening net carrying amount ENEERE 911,619 709,308 1,342,550 705,306 - 15,606 7,046 3,691,435
Exchange differences EiER 41,103 34972 58,845 31,669 - 763 321 167,673
Additions AE 89 228,995 - 99,108 - 7,059 1,9% 337,41
Transfers a5 79,288 (106,098) 21,673 4190 - 947 - -
Disposals & (85 - - (2,018 - - - (2,103
Depreciation (note 9) et (84,845) - (119793 (118,845) e (5,106) (1945 (330,494
Closing net carrying amount FRERTE 97,169 867177 1303315 719,410 - 19,269 748 3863758
At31 December 2020 R-Z2-2E+-RA=1-A
Cost RAfE 1,837,108 867,177 1,639,763 1,839,212 2,965 133,743 63,557 6,383,525
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (778,085) - (3287%) (1,078222) (2,965) (114,474) (56,139 (2,358,681)
Accumulated impairment losses 2iREER (111,854) = (7,652) (41,580) = = = (161,086)
Net carrying amount BHEE %7169 867177 1303315 719410 - 19,269 7418 3863758
For the year ended H2-3--%
31 December 2021 TZR=t-BLEE
Opening net carrying amount ENEERE 947,169 867,177 1,303,315 719,410 - 19,269 7418 3,863,758
Exchange differences EXZR 24,92 20,011 36,076 18,130 - 54 1H 99,806
Additions AE - 221,151 - 158,629 - 5241 5,489 397122
Transfers LF 64,014 (71,124) - 7,09 = 14 = =
Disposals & (813) - - (3,308) - (116) @) (4,278)
Depreciation (noie 9) FEMHY (84,037) - (1) (124192) - (6,906) @209 (302010
Closing net carrying amount FRERTE 951,257 1,043,821 1,214,810 775,765 - 18,032 10,713 4,014,398
At 31 December 2021 RZF=-F+ZA=1-A
Cost A 194505 1043821 1,682,539 2,032,003 2,965 140,094 69741 6916215
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (879,023) = (459,877) (1,213573) (2,965) (122,062) (59,028)  (2,736,528)
Accumulated impairment losses 23 REEE (114,112 = (1.852) (42,665) = - - (165,289)
Net carrying amount BHFE 951,257 1,043,821 1,214,810 775,765 - 18,032 10,713 4,014,398
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group is still in the process
of obtaining the building ownership certificates for certain

“E- %% BEHSLEREERRAR 277

FEMBRRM T @®

BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE

15. 5% - BER®EGE

R-ZE-_—F+_A=+—8  "&E@ENE
AETEEFEEN127,811,0008 T (2=

buildings with net carrying amount of approximately T 1 116,582,000/ T) 2 EFHBEEM

HK$127,811,000 (2020: HK$116,582,000). In the opinion of
directors of the Company, the Group has obtained the rights to

use the buildings.

16. LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights
represent the prepaid lease payments under operating leases.

BHEE - AATESERA  AEECBEE
BRIET 2 (5 R
16. T ib{F FAfE

AEENHEE TN L FERE 2 SRR
REHEXN 2 BNBEEFRE -

HK$’000

FET

At 1 January 2020 N_ZE_ZTF—H—H 60,772

Addition =T 1,792

Amortisation (note 9) B (M) (1,958)

Exchange differences ERER 2,759
At 31 December 2020 and at 1 January 2021 RZZEZZEF+ZA=F+—HK

R-E-_—F—H—H 63,365

Amortisation (note 9) B (MiE9) (1,956)

Exchange differences EHER 1,685

At 31 December 2021 RZT=——F+=A=+—H 63,094

During the year, amortisation expense of HK$1,956,000 (2020:

RER - #i5521,956,0008 L (—E-F

HK$1,958,000) has been included in general and administrative % 1,958,000 L) Bt A — M RITHE

expenses.

)EH o
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17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(i)

(ii)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position shows the
following amounts relating to the leases in respect of lands
and office premises:

FEMBRRM T @®

B2 -——F+_A=1+—HIFE
17. FRREERTEEAE

pay

() RESHBURRARBIZEH

e VBN RN AT AR R
RNIGHWHEZ S

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET

Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
Land and office premises b )VE N i) 20,869 21,915

Lease liabilities HEASE

Non-current FEMEN 18,073 19,317
Current mE 7,957 5,721
26,030 25,038

No additions to the right-of-use assets during the year
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income shows the following amounts
relating to the leases in respect of land and office premises:

T—HIFE - *%ﬁxﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%"

(i) RGEEEERAtEEKERE
BT

GeEBahkEMEEAKERBERIATE
At M IS HEE 2 &5

2021 2020

—B-—F —EFTF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 9) £ F#EE EIT & (A1:£9) 1,644 5,148
Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 8)  MEAE 2 FI B FAX (H1:£8) 1,169 1,250

The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31
December 2021 is HK$823,000 (2020: HK$5,371,000).

HE-_T-_—F+-_A=+—8L*F
- pmlEEZReRE 4% A823,000
BIT(ZZE-Z4 : 5,371,000/ 7T) °
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17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES
(continued)

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these
are accounted for

The Group leases various lands and offices premises. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 34
years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are held

— = —
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FEMBRRM T @®

BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE

17. ERREEREERE(E)

(i) AEE 2 HEFTHROMAKEHE

N

AREEHRAZE T R ANGH - A
BHBENETEHRIEIMFEIAE -

HEFRRENELEER  YEERE
TRER G - REBARTAEA

BEEE CEMERI

HEBZHTIE

IEMRGE - HEEETSRAEETE

by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for o
borrowing purposes.

18. MINING RIGHTS 18. HiERE
2021 2020
—E-—— —E-THF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Opening net carrying amount FYREFE 7,458,999 7,356,663
Amortisation (note 9) B (29) (255,600) (227,013)
Exchange differences EH=E=R 198,843 329,349
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 7,402,242 7,458,999
Gross carrying amount REAE 11,109,544 10,844,212
Accumulated amortisation RETE (3,034,096) (2,712,007)
Accumulated impairment losses E2PREEE (673,206) (673,206)
Net carrying amount REFE 7,402,242 7,458,999

The estimated remaining useful lives of the mining rights range
between 30 years and 39 years based on exploration reports
prepared in accordance with the relevant PRC standards.

During the year, amortisation expense of HK$255,600,000
(2020: HK$227,013,000) has been included in cost of sales.

RRBREPEAREARE BHERES - K
Ttz At RER A £ A F BN F30FE39

E'Eo

MRER - #5572 255,600,0008 (==
T4 1 227,013,000/870) BET ASHER A o
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19. GOODWILL 19. BE
2021 2020
—E-— BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Opening net carrying amount FYREEFE 1,277,415 1,222,775
Exchange differences EHER 32,783 54,640
Closing net carrying amount FREMFE 1,310,198 1,277,415
Gross carrying amount IRm4BE 2,156,319 2,169,564
Accumulated impairment losses ZEREFBE (846,121) (892,149)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,310,198 1,277,415
Impairment tests for goodwill EERENR
A summary of the goodwill allocation is presented below. HESEZMENT
2021 2020
—E-—& 2T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FEIT
Xingwu £ 42 747,685 728,676
Jinjiazhuang BEAE = =
Zhaiyadi EEK 541,802 528,028
Jinshan Energy Group Limited (“Jinshan”) WmelgeRER AT (2L 20,711 20,711
Net carrying amount at 31 December Rt A=+—HZEEFE 1,310,198 1,277,415

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no impairment loss
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income (2020: nil).

As described in note 4.2, the recoverable amounts of CGUs
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations, which
are based on certain key assumptions including growth rates
of coal price and discount rate. The recoverable amounts as at
31 December 2021 were measured by an independent valuer,
Asset Appraisal Limited, a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors.

BE - —F+_A=+—BHLFE ¥
ERGABEEREMEE RS RNERRE
EBR(CZE_ZTF &) -

SANMI T4 2FTR - MEEE BN Z AT
CENRERBENENAETE  MERE
ENREETEIERIABEEARERIERR
KR E RZTZ—F+_H=+—HZ
Al el &R RE N HEM TR EE ETE
FERERARE  BABEIEMEY

&8 .

=B =



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

19. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill (continued)

To determine the recoverable amounts based on value-in-use
calculations, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessment of time value of money and the risk
specific to the CGUs.

Cash flows were projected based on the financial budgets
prepared by management covering a 5-year period, the cash
flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady
percentage growth rate below.

The remaining license period of the mining rights held by the
Group range from 11 to 21 years which are shorter than the
estimated useful lives of the coal mines estimated by the Group,
management is of the opinion that the Group is able to renew
the license of the mining rights from the relevant authority
continuously and at minimal charges.

The key assumptions of discounted cash flow models were as
follows:

Growth rates 1 £ 2
Discount rate BhIR &

T -FFH BHBLEREEARLT 281

FEMBRRM T @®

HE T —F{-A=+—HIIFZF
19. & (&)
EmEREAR (&

RIFEABEFEREIRE@EE - HEtAR
ﬂiﬂ%jiumééﬁxﬂ@_TEiEEﬂiﬁ ﬁﬁg%gﬁéigﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BERMRSELBEMTERR G2 BAR
MR EHIRE o

ReEMENRBEREURR CSFUBRE
EmER SFHENBZREREFERT
BT EDLLIEREEE o

AEBEFE 2 REEFT A E R KR F 1
ENF BAKEGEZRBEE A ERF
HRE BEEERS  ARBEREENRE
ERNEBME REBRBERTAIE -

MBERERERB Z TRERAOT ¢

2021 2020
—E-——F —E-EF

-22.28% t§° +2% +2% © 1441 %

:I:

13.70% 12.15%

The annual growth rates applied by management are consistent
with those estimated in the industry reports and do not exceed
the growth rates of long-term coal prices. The discount rates
used by management are the pre-tax interests rates that are
able to reflect the risks specific to the related asset groups and
consolidation of asset groups.

As at 31 December 2021, management believed that any
reasonably foreseeable change in any of above key assumptions
would not cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed the
recoverable amount.

BEEEBRAZFRERETETEREPMHZ
BEX-H - I THEERAKRERZER
R EEEFERIMREZEARREBEER
EARFTERRREERE G ZHATHE -

W_B-—F+=A=+—0  ERER:
T ERMRER FAABRTRERSDY
TREBHE FEEBATHESE -
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20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

FEMBRRM T @®

EE =+ —HIFE
20 R—EHE QAR Z R

2021 2020

—E-— BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

As at 1 January w—H—H 11,918 11,590
Share of loss FE{L &R (983) (195)
Exchange differences EHZR 327 523
As at 31 December R+—A=+—H 11,262 11,918

Particulars of the associate at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

Name

a8

Luliang Jin Yu Cangchu
Company Limited*

BREERRBERLA

incorporation and
kind of legal entity
AL B R

PRC, limited liability

T BRAAN

Principal

activities and

place of operations
FTEEBR
B

Provision of coal
storage services in
the PRC

R B R A K
RERE

SMERATN_E-_—F+-_A=+—A02

BT

Particulars of

Effective interest held

registered capital by the Group
AMERFE rEBEGERER
2021 2020
B —T-TH
RMB42,000,000
35% 35%
AR #42,000,0007C

* The English translation is unofficial and for identification purpose

only.

i Registered as state-owned enterprise under the PRC law.

* ENGERYIERTT - EHER -

o REFEAREMABRAEARDZE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

21.

Summary of financial information of the Group’s associate
as extracted from its unaudited management accounts is as

FEMBRRM T @®

BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE
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20. A—EBE QT 2B ()

AEBEBERRZHBEERBARILT - B
B a EREEXEERE ¢

follows:
2021 2020
—E-— —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
As at 31 December R+=—B=+—8H
Non-current assets EMBIEE 27,797 26,759
Current assets mBEE 3,059 3,852
Non-current liabilities EmBIEE - -
Current liabilities mEaE (5,869) (3,575)
Net assets BEFE 24,987 27,036
For the year ended 31 December BE+-A=+—HLFE
Revenue Wz = 1,341
Loss for the year FEEE (2,801) (556)
Other comprehensive income Etmamlas 752 1,188
Total comprehensive income FHEWEETE 2,049 632
Dividends received from associate BB RN A 2 IRE = =

FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR

21. BAVEFARMEZERE 2B

VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EE
INCOME
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET F&r
Equity securities, at fair value RAEZES - AT E
— listed in Australia (note (a)) - BRI LT (72 (a) 393,280 899,629
~ listed in Hong Kong (note (b)) - REB LW (B D) 245,214 182,835
638,494 1,082,464
Unlisted equity interest (note (c)) FE L IR AR = (a7 () - -
638,494 1,082,464




284 SHOUGANG FUSHAN RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2021

NOTE

S TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

Notes:

(a)

This represents an investment in a company listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange Limited (the “Australian Securities Exchange”),
Mount Gibson Iron Limited (“Mount Gibson”).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group directly held 13.54%
(2020: 13.82%) interest in Mount Gibson and the fair value of
the investment in Mount Gibson was HK$393,280,000 (2020:
HK$899,629,000) which represented the market value with
reference to its closing price denominated in AUD as at that
day on the Australian Securities Exchange. A fair value loss of
HK$506,349,000 (2020: fair value gain of HK$45,883,000) was
recognised in the security investment reserve during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

This represents an investment in a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, APAC Resources Limited (“APAC").

As at 31 December 2021, the Group directly held 16.52% (2020:
17.65%) interest in APAC and the fair value of the investment
in APAC was HK$245,214,000 (2020: HK$182,835,000) which
represented the market value with reference to its closing price
denominated in HK$ as at that day on the Stock Exchange.
A fair value gain of HK$62,379,000 (2020: fair value loss of
HK$47,322,000) was recognised in the security investment reserve
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

This represents the cost of 7% (2020: 7%) equity investment in
an unlisted company incorporated in the PRC. As the entity ceased
operation during the year ended 31 December 2013, a fair value
loss of approximately HK$8,890,000 was recorded against the full
investment cost in 2013.

The fair value of the Group’s investments in listed and unlisted

equit

y securities has been measured as described in note 3.3.

FEMBRRM T @®

HE—F—

1. BAFEFAEMEZE WS 2 M
EEE)

—F+HA=F—HIFE

Hrat

NE

I ARBRNEERSHTAERA R (DRMNE
ZArl) EWA A Mount Gibson Iron Limited
(TMount Gibson]) Z#&%& -

RZE-_—F+=-_A=+—1H ~xE£EEEE
A Mount Gibson 13.54% (=T =4 :
13.82%) 125 © MM Mount Gibson& & ~
NF1{EA393,280,0008 T (- -FF :
899,629,000/ 7T) » BN MR E B RN E A
FILAVRITAEZRMEETZTE -ER
BHE-_ZT-_-—F+_A=Z+—BHLFELES
HFIE uﬁﬁﬁﬁu/@@?@gﬂé 506,349,000%
T(ZEZTF : AFEUKEZ45,883,000%
JL) °

WARBZM ET AR EAERAR QA
(EAREBER)2IKE -

RZZTE=Z—F+=ZA=+—8H K~&H
HEEBEDAERI6.52% (T -FTF :
17.65% )z MR B RKERKREZA
F{EBE245,214,0008 T (Z T -FT4F :
182,835,0005 7T) Eﬂ%,ﬂﬁ%‘aﬁf\ﬂéﬁ“ﬁﬁu
BIFHEZWMEEEZTE - EREE

T F+- A=+ HLEFEESE a%%xﬁ
Eﬁf%ﬁ@?i’&%ﬁuﬁz $62,379,0008 (=&

—ZF - RNF{EEIE47,322,000/7T) ©
A —HRPEFMKAIZEETRTZ
7% (ZZE=TF : 7%)RAETE ZRA - /@

REEEBRBEE-_T—=F+=-A=+—H
HEEFLEEL MR- ——FEBREA
XA $%15 A F{EE5 18 478,890,000 7T °

BN EM R ETRAEBESFREZAF

BTV EFTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

22. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 22. &2

23.

RECEIVABLES

FEMBRRM T @®

BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE

» FEA ORI E At B WU TR

2021 2020
—E- T
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Non-current ERE
Deposits for a potential mining project AJREEIT 2 FRIRIE B iRe 166,238 162,011
Prepayments for CIP and property, plant and fEEZIRUALDE  BENM
equipment BB RIE 461,772 504,762
Prepayments for land-use rights T AR 2 TER IR 44,541 43,409
672,551 710,182
Current B
Consideration receivable for the transfer of B 127 %R AN
27% equity interest of Jinshan (note 29) FEMAR B (H17729) 180,817 186,300
Prepayments TET IR 136,064 158,837
Interest receivables FEULFI B 14,644 7,680
Deposits and other receivables B& R E A EWGRIA 12,437 15,955
Dividend receivables FEUAR B 43,020 =
386,982 368,772
INVENTORIES 23. 78
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFTHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Spare parts and consumables B4 B E 51,055 47,734
Coking coal =8 91,603 83,436
142,658 131,170
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, no inventories were stated R —FR_F-_ZEF+_A=+—

at net realisable value.

B BMEFERATERFEETIE -
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
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24. BB ZREREWRE

2021 2020

—E-— BT

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

Trade receivables FEWE 5 8R1E 1,087,425 864,685
Less: Provision for impairment loss S ORIEE B (203,476) (198,303)
883,949 666,382

Bills receivables W EE 2,260,302 1,382,762
3,144,251 2,049,144

Trade receivables generally have credit terms ranging from 30
to 90 days (2020: 30 to 90 days) and no interest is charged.
Bills receivables are expiring within one year. As at 31 December
2021 and 2020, all of the trade and bills receivables are
denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2021, ageing analysis of net trade
receivables, based on the invoice dates, is as follows:

Up to 90 days 90H AT

EWE ZEREEEH M N F30=908 (=
TFTF 1 302908) BENEFIE - ElRE
BR—FAIESH RZTZ—FR=_F=F
F+-A=1+—RH " FTARKESRBERE
WEEHIAAREE -

RIE-_—F+-_A=+—H BEBREH
HRAEZERESEEFEZRRTN
T

2021 2020
—B-—F —ECFTF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FHET
883,949 666,382




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, ageing analysis of bills receivables,

FEMBRRM T @®

BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE

24. B E 5 RRIE R B

To-FFH BHBLEREEERALA 287

=5 ()

R-TB-—FE+-A=+—8  BEZEK

based on the bills receiving dates, is as follows: FEMGRE ERERZRERSTINT
2021 2020
—E-—F T
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Up to 90 days 90H AT 1,306,452 803,790
91 to 180 days 91£180H 950,567 569,772
181 to 365 days 1812 365H 3,283 9,200
2,260,302 1,382,762

Details of pledged bills receivables are as follows: EEFERKEEFBOT

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Pledged bills receivables BERFEKEE 182,655 218,458
Associated bills payables (note 28) TR P 2= AR (I 7228) (157,002) (200,339)

The carrying amounts of the bills receivables include receivables
which are transferred to financial institutions or creditors by
discounting or endorsing these receivables on a full recourse
basis. Under these arrangements, the Group has not transferred
the significant risks and rewards relating to these receivables.
The Group therefore continues to recognise the transferred bills
receivables in its consolidated statement of financial position
and measure at amortised cost.

FUERENREAERRREMERELRB
MEAXEBEESFHARNEBEEERAESS
SERBH - ERFRHT - AEEL K
B % 5 R WK TR AR B RO B KR R M
B o Fit - AEBEBETEEES M BRRER
EREERNEKWER - WIRBHKATE
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

FEMBRRM T @®
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24. R E 5 IRE R B RE (8)

The relevant carrying amounts are as follows: BRAREENT :
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Bills receivables endorsed to creditors with EEHEBREECDEET
full recourse: BREAZEREE
Transferred bills receivables i pE G R 93,909 115,575
Associated trade payables (note 28) TRRAFE T & 5 RRIE (f7128) (10,021) (2,185)
Associated other payables (note 30) A8 L Ath P < SR IE (FY 2230) (83,888) (95,335)
Associated amounts due to non-controlling FE B8 FE ST B J8 2 R IR R i 2
interests of subsidiaries (note 31) KIE (M aE31) - (18,055)

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade and bills receivables. Note 3.1(b) provides
for details about the calculation of the allowance.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills receivables
are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case
impairment loss is written off against trade and bills receivables
directly.

Movement in the loss allowance of trade receivables is as
follows:

AREBERAEEYHREERFIRAIX
ARERHEERE  USMERKE SR
BN EREEERKEEREBRRE - MiE
3R T BRI E BB 2 -

AREBI RAZFEHTATAERR -
RN E ZRERBKER ZBERETER
BERLE  RIFAKEEMZEE KR

KEE - EUIERAT  BEBEEERER
B RAN R RT M o

W E ZIREEIRBEEINT

2021 2020

—B-—fF —T_THF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHETT FAET

At 1 January Rn—HA—H 198,303 211,680
Exchange differences fEHER 5,173 9,123
Reversal of impairment loss (note 7) BB EEE (FTZE7) - (22,500)
At 31 December Wt-—A=+—H 203,476 198,303




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

25.

26.

27.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, other financial assets represented
investment funds issued by financial institution with target
return rate of 3.10% per annum and matured on August and
September 2022 respectively. The fair values of the funds are
not significantly different from their carrying amounts There was
no exposure to price risk as the investments would be held to
maturity.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2021, deposits of HK$357,707,000
(2020: HK$290,298,000) was pledged for bills payables
of HK$180,228,000 (2020: HK$148,476,000) (note 28).
The pledged bank deposits were denominated in RMB and
approximate their fair value due to short maturity.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair value of
the pledged bank deposits is not materially different from their
carrying amount because of the short maturity period.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME
DEPOSITS AT BANKS

T -FFH BHBLEREEARLE 289

FEMBRRM T @®

B=E

25.

26.

27.

—E - —Ff A=+ —HIFFE

HteMBEE

R-EBE-_—FE+-_fA=+—0H HEMHKE
EERSRBERITHRERLS  BIEORK
REBEF310% DR FNAK
NAFE - BN A FEEEABETESA
EZR -HREBERESFEERIE - At
mERER -

CSRFRTER

NR—ZZEZ—-—F+=F=+—8H
357,707,000/ 7t (Z & =& 4 : 290,298,000
BIT)EREA180,228,0008 L (ZE-F
F : 148,476,000/ 7T) 2 FEH E 45 (M 5E28)
2R BEBBITHEFTEIUAARETER
AREZISARE  BUEAEATE -

ARBEFRE  ARBEFRITEFERRE
MR REAVEERAELEENE
o

RERBEEEMURRBITES
2

2021 2020

—E-—F —ET-EF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Cash at banks and on hand RITRFERS 2,998,090 630,752

Time deposits at banks HRITE HATF K 3,427,796 3,431,363

Bank balances and cash RITEH MRS 6,425,886 4,062,115
Less: Time deposits with original maturity B REFFEER =R

over three months EHER (2,015,677) (656,500)

Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 4,410,209 3,405,615

Cash at banks generates interest at the floating rates based on
the daily bank deposit rates.

As at 31 December 2021, funds of the Group amounting to
HK$2,923,053,000 (2020: HK$593,085,000) were deposited
in bank accounts opened with banks in the PRC where the
remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control.

RITRESBEFARITERMEFE 2T B
HUFIE. -

R-ZB-—FE+-A=+—0 K&EFZ &
©4%/52,923,053,0008 T (Z T =T ¢
593,085,000/ 7T) 17 B AL i R Bl 2 3R1T P
S ZRITERE  MEBSERASINEEH o
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28. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

FEMBRRM T @®

—— A=+ —AILFE

28. EHESRERESEE

2021 2020
:g: - ﬂi — 7 — $

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET F#ET

Trade payables FERTE ZBR1E 270,017 243,803
Bills payables ENES 337,230 348,815
607,247 592,618

The Group was granted by its suppliers credit period ranging
between 30 to 180 days (2020: 30 to 180 days). As at 31
December 2021 and 2020, all of the trade and bills payables
are denominated in RMB. All bills payables are within 6 months
(2020: 6 months).

Based on the invoice dates, ageing analysis of trade payables as
at 31 December 2021 is as follows:

AEBEEEERR TN T30E21808(ZF
ZEF 3081802 EEH - N =
—FEN_TE_EF+_A=+—H  FTEE
NESEBERENZEGAAREEE - FT
BRENZENRESAEAANARN(CE-Z
F6fEA) -

REZREY  BNESREAR_T_—F
TZAZ+—BZERESTT

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF

HK$000 HK$°000

FET FET

Up to 90 days 90H AR 202,226 152,054
91 to 180 days 91Z180H 39,856 53,784
181 to 365 days 181%365H 6,526 14,769
Over 365 days 3653 LA E 21,409 23,196
270,017 243,803

As at 31 December 2021, bills payables amounted
to HK$180,228,000 (2020: HK$148,476,000) out of
HK$337,230,000 (2020: HK$348,815,000) were secured by
the pledged bank deposit (note 26). Remaining bills payables
amounted to HK$157,002,000 (2020: HK$200,339,000) were
secured by bills receivables (note 24).

As at 31 December 2021, trade payables of HK$10,021,000
(2020: HK$2,185,000) were settled by bills receivables
endorsed to corresponding creditors which do not meet the de-
recognition requirements (note 24).

RZEZ—F+=-—A=+—RH  EHEE
337,230,000 7T(Z T =F 4 : 348,815,000
#IT) I HI180,228,0008 L (ZE B4 -
148,476,000/8 70) AE MR T (MR
26)1EHAR - SR T FE(T S 5157,002,000/ 7T
(ZZ=F4F : 200,339,000/ 70) A e U Z=
5 (P sE24) {EHEH o

R-FB-_—F+-A=1+—8 ENESK
710,021,000/ 7L (ZF = F 4 : 2,185,000
ATL)EHEE THEEREAZBKRERES
B RERREBRY TN A BRBUSER
M (Hf5E24) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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29. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITY

On 30 December 2016, Shougang Resources (Hong Kong)
Limited (the “Transferor”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
a wholly owned subsidiary of Shougang Group Co., Ltd. (the
“Transferee”) for the transfer of 27% equity interests of
Jinshan at RMB162,000,000 (equivalent to HK$186,138,000).
In addition, the Transferor irrevocably undertakes to repurchase
the 27% equity interests of Jinshan from the Transferee (”Put
Option”) at the same consideration of RMB162,000,000
plus interest of not more than RMB20,000,000 under certain
conditions.

The transfer of 27% equity interests of Jinshan to the Transferee
was completed during the year ended 31 December 2017. This
change in the Group's interests in Jinshan does not result in a
loss of control and Jinshan remains a subsidiary of the Company.

As at 31 December 2021, the financial liability arising from
the Put Option for the repurchase as disclosed above to the
Transferee represented the present value of the repurchase
obligation on or before 31 December 2023 (2020: on or before
31 December 2021) amounting to RMB162,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$180,817,000) (2020: RMB162,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$186,300,000)). As at 17 May 2021, the expiry date of the
Put Option was extend to 31 December 2023 and such option
was classified as current liability since there was an option
agreed between the Group and the Transferee to initiate the
repurchase procedures under certain conditions.
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9. HttM B A&

RZZE—RFE+-A=Z+H AR a&¥&
MBAREMEREBS) BRAR([HEE
AEEHERERARZ — B2 ENB
NAI([SBEADIEEWZE  UARK
162,000,0007T (FHE 7 186,138,000/ T) &

BEIL27 %A o I BREARZE
AER AR AR LS TR T ABERR

BARE162,000,0007TH0 F FIRFEAR
#20,000,0007T B B % 11127 % A% 24 %5 ([ 3R
JHEARE]) o

ﬁx.ﬁ/\ﬁj%iMU%HﬂK% EEAESZi
ZIK%IEA/EHJ$7¥EZ%§JJTA§§K$$%§
KelzEsEASILNARARZHBA
ﬂo

RZTBE-—F+-AF=+—H WMEXHAK
BAXEARBROCHAREESE CWFEAEE
R-EBE-_=F+-_A=+—Hzxzm(=Z
—EF R ZE—FF+_A=+—HK
ZH)ZEEETEREAR AR 162,000,000
E@Wﬁ“%8ﬁ0%%mﬂ_7_z¢
AR#162,000,0007T (45 & 72 186,300,000
BL)) MRZE-_—FHA++HH - ZhHE
EZHBAERE_E_=F+-_A=+—
H ARAEEEIBACZEENT —BEE
FEEHTRBREREFIEE  ZR0H
EEHERRBAR -
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30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
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30. HttENFIE R ESTE A

2021 2020

—E-—F —EZFTF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHETT FET

Contract liabilities AHAaE 309,801 19,955
Accrued wages, salaries, bonus and BErTE  FHe - Ak

staff welfare BTIEF 166,710 134,704

Accrued reclamation obligations TEIR1EZRE A 131,487 116,515
Payables for property, plant and equipment  FEfT¥IE - = KR EH M

and construction TEKIE 284,356 340,556

Payables on endorsed bills receivables ENEERKERE 83,888 95,335

Other accruals HMESEA 276,790 240,003

Other levy payables H At FET RS 481,462 227,589

Other payables E b T FRIE 214,992 194,282

Amounts due to other parties JET EAth A ZFRIE 5,006 6,332

1,954,492 1,375,271

As at 31 December 2021, other payables of HK$83,888,000
(2020: HK$95,335,000) were settled by bills receivables
endorsed to corresponding creditors which do not meet the de-
recognition requirements (note 24).

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December
2021 that was included in the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the year amounted to HK$19,955,000 (2020:
HK$113,294,000). The Group expects to deliver the goods to
satisfy the remaining performance obligations of these contract
liabilities within one year or less. The Group applied the practical
expedient and does not disclose the information relating to the
remaining performance obligations that have original durations
of one year or less.

As at 31 December 2021, define contribution plan payables
amounted to HK$283,000 (2020: HK$225,000).

R-ZEBEZ—F+-A=+—8  HtENEE
1883,888,000/ 7L (ZZ =~ Z 4 : 95,335,000
BTERABSETHEGEAZERERL
B RERKEBELTTEBEIUEER
#E (FtsE24) -

BHE-_ZEZ-_—4+-_A=+—RHIL=FE
WABERBRERFVNFAGNEESRSE
19,955,000/ L (ZZ =ZFF : 113,294,000
B c REBEHR —FR—FURRIN
ERUBTRSEANABZRMBHNET -
AEERBEAZFE T AGHEESERY
RE—F—FLURAZHBRELNSEMEBEZ

.
1: °
SR

BE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE &
EBHRZETESE A283,0008 T (Z 2=
T 1 225,00087T) °
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31

32.

. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The balance as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 is denominated
in RMB and is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. As at 31 December 2020, amounts due to non-
controlling interests of subsidiaries of HK$18,055,000 were
settled by bills receivables endorsed to non-controlling interests
which do not meet the de-recognition requirements (note 24).

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

Deferred income tax assets recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position and their movements during the
year are as follows:

—FFH ERBLEREEBRAF 293

FEMBRRM T @®

HE-—F-—F-A=+—ALFE
31. B 2 RS RS KR

32.

R_E——FR-_ZF-ZTF+=-_A=+—8
ZEBTIUAREE  BERKR - - &8
MBRERERE NI TE_THF+_A=
+ B EEANBARFEZERER KA
18,055,000/ 8 L2 AL A A E F IR E
HAZEBRERES  ZEEREBTTH
ABEBBUETER Z AT (FisE24) -

ELESHEERER

FANGREMBRRKRER ZELERERE
ENRAEZEHIT

Provision
B

2021 2020

:%: - ﬂi — i — ¢

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

At 1 January Rn—A—H 42,131 55,322
Exchange differences EHER 594 2,173
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss (note 10) &+ A/ (&) B2 (HfaE10) 30,410 (15,364)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 73,135 42,131
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ELESHEERERGE

32. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND 32.
LIABILITIES (continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated

—— A=+ —AILFE

FARGEUBRNRERZELHERE

statement of financial position and their movements during the BERESEHOT :
year are as follows:
Property,
plant and
equipment
Withholding and mining Mining
tax rights funds Total
nE BER
BEUR
B g REES BE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
F#ET T T T
(Note)
(H1:t)
At 1 January 2020 N ZTF
—H—H 58,595 1,432,011 68,897 1,559,503
Exchange differences EHER 3,024 64,595 3,368 70,987
Charged/(Credited) to M, GrABR
profit or loss (note 10) (Htat10) 16,202 (22,296) 10,668 4,574
At 31 December 2020 and R-B-ZHF
1 January 2021 +=A=+—-HEK
—B-—F
—HA—H 77,821 1,474,310 82,933 1,635,064
Exchange differences EHER 1,222 38,924 2,343 42,489
Charged/(Credited) to kR GT A8z
profit or loss (note 10) (Htat10) 48,497 (27,888) (10,797) 9,812
At 31 December 2021 R-ZEZ-—F
+=HA=+—H 127,540 1,485,346 74,479 1,687,365
Note: Pursuant to changes in certain regulations of the PRC BteF - BEBEFBEBNETHIZESE  AEBE

government, the Group is required to set aside the production
maintenance fee, safety fund, and other expense of similar
nature (collectively the “Mining Funds”). As such amounts are
deductible for tax purpose when they are set aside but are
expensed for accounting purpose only when they are utilised, a
deferred tax liability is recorded for the temporary difference in
respect of excess fund set aside for tax purposes.

BEEBRE Z2BERHEMAEEUEE

zER(RBIRBEEL) -

%ﬂﬁ%%T%mmE%

RRATHIX - MEHBHE

EEEAH/(#EE
S ERE

CEHEEZ

HeBERARGLAEREZRRLERIAS

&



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

32. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (continued)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, no deferred income
tax assets has been recognised in respect of the deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses arising from
certain subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and PRC as it
is uncertain whether future taxable profit is available against
which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can
be utilised. Deferred income tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of the following items:

To-FFH BRHBLEREEERAR 295
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R EEREHEERERGE

RZE-Z—FR-_FE-_FF+=-_A=+—
B EAXREESTEDRRERTEF A AE
AR S =8 R A MBS AHIEEE
WA ERRENEBSMPEEMRILZET
MBARZAHRE R =LA A EES
BHERELFESHEE - YER T SBEE
RIBEEMSHEE

2021 2020

—E-—F —EEF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FETT FET

Deductible temporary differences AR E R SR 94 178
Tax losses HiIAE 1R 350,309 488,256
350,403 488,434

The Group has tax losses of approximately HK$350,309,000
(2020: HK$381,747,000) are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arise. As at 31 December 2020, the Group also has tax
losses of approximately HK$106,509,000 which shall expire in
three to five years.

AEBBERERBRAEENELEEE
ZARZARERB E N 2 W IEERB
4)350,309,0008 T (&2 F :
381,747,000870) - R=ZE-_ZTF+=-A=
+—H  KEBERBE4106,509,000% T2 5
BEEBNR-ZERFANEHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE
33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. B
Number of shares Amount
BHEE ok}
2021 2020 2021 2020
—B-—F =—E-FTF ZZEB--F ZIT=FTF
‘000 shares  '000 shares HK$’000 HK$'000
Fhi Fhg FET FHET
Issued and fully paid: ERTREAR
At 1 January Rn—A—H 5,051,837 5,301,837 15,156,959 15,156,959
Less: Buy-back and cancellation & : [B1 8% M ¥ $5A% 15
of shares (note 34(c)) (H15£34(c) = (250,000) - =
At 31 December R+-_A=+—8H 5,051,837 5,051,837 15,156,959 15,156,959
34. RESERVES 34. f#1E
(a) Statutory reserve (a) ZERE

(b)

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries are required to appropriate
10% of its profit after tax, prepared in accordance with the
accounting regulation in the PRC, to the statutory reserve
fund until the statutory reserve balance reaches 50% of
the registered capital. Such reserve may be used to reduce
any losses incurred or for capitalisation as paid-up capital.

Other reserves

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the Group is
required to transfer production maintenance fee, safety
fund and other expense of similar nature (“production
and maintenance funds”) at fixed rates based on relevant
bases, such as production volume, to a specific reserve
account. The production and maintenance funds could
be utilised when expenses or capital expenditures on
production maintenance and safety measures are incurred.
The amount of production and maintenance funds utilised
would be transferred from the specific reserve account to
retained earnings.

(b)

RIBFBEEBERZIER  PEMBR
AARRTESTROIREIEREI0%
ZBEBRBNELERHBESR  BEEE
ERBREREZMERZ50%B1E ° %
R AR E R EERETEHE
o

Ht

REBEEETEIER - AREARREE
FHRBEEEREENEKEHE 22
ENMBEUMENEMRAS (EHEES])
HREERRER - #EES NGRS
RZ2HEHREERIREARZEE
- EBANERESSRBNERRG
BREBBRERERAN -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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34. RESERVES (continued)

(c) Reserves movement of the Company
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34. f# & (&)

() QA ZfHEEEB

Retained
profits Total
REHEF W
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
At 1 January 2020 N_ZE_FF—H—AH 913,787 913,787
Profit for the year FEHA 1,495,556 1,495,556
Buy-back of shares (Note) B ERG (T a2) (505,000) (505,000)
2019 final dividend approved Eﬁt;&z:ﬁ—ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂ% = (461,260) (461,260)
2020 interim dividend declared ERZZEZFFHRE (378,888) (378,888)

At 31 December 2020 and RZE-_EF+-_A=+—HK

1 January 2021 —E-—%—HF—H 1,064,195 1,064,195
Profit for the year FEH A 1,473,463 1,473,463
2020 final dividend approved E%tt}*éz ToTFERARE (454,665) (454,665)
2021 interim dividend declared Bk —_E-—FHEHEE (404,147) (404,147)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+ZHA=+—H 1,678,846 1,678,846

Note: Pursuant to the resolutions passed by the shareholders of
the Company on 3 September 2020, the Company has
bought-back 250,000,000 ordinary shares at the offer
price of HK$2.00 per share and those bought-back shares
were then cancelled on 28 September 2020. Thus, the
number of issued shares was reduced by 250,000,000. The
total consideration of HK$500,000,000 and the related
expense of approximately HK$5,000,000 were debited the
retained profits upon the completion of this transaction on
28 September 2020.

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 25 May 2012, a share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”)
was adopted by the shareholders of the Company and the
2012 Scheme became effective on 29 May 2012. No share
options have been granted since the adoption of the 2012
Scheme. The maximum number of shares of the Company
(“Shares”) available for issue upon exercise of all share options
which may be granted under the 2012 Scheme is 530,183,784,
representing 10.5% of the Shares in issue as at 31 December
2021 and as at the date of this annual report.

M : BEARABRER-_Z_ZTFh
BZRABBZREER  ARQF
EERENHEETR2.008 00 HE
250,000,000 E@A% + RERZ
TZ_ZTFANA-FTNBEEZSE
EEEZRD - Bt - BEBITRG
2B 2 250,000,000/% - &K (E
500,000,000t R AR H X4
5,000,000 TER—_Z_ZFNA
“HNBERRAZ G ERE G
Bk -

35. iB IR HE T &

R-ZE——FRA-+HA ARFKREHE
M7 —IEEREE((ZE——F5r8))
—E-—FHEERZE——FERA=-1TA
HEfENR - BT ——F:8HEM - AR F
WR AR LEAIEIRE - WESITEREZ
T FEIR R 2B ATRIT
ARG (TR0 ) & B &% £530,183,784
f% » BER T -_—F+-_A=+—HHAMX
FHRAPEHITRHDAI105% °
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The 2012 Scheme were designed to reward and provide
incentives to, and strengthen the Group’s business relationship
with the prescribed classes of participants, including but not
limited to eligible employees and directors of any member of the
Group, who contributed to the development of the Group.

Under the 2012 Scheme, the exercise price of the options is to
be determined by the directors and is at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; (ii) average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Shares on the date of grant. Each of the grantees of the 2012
Scheme is required to pay HK$1 as consideration for the grant
of share options. An option may generally be exercised during
the period commencing on the date of grant and expiring on
the date as determined by the directors, but in any event not
more than 10 years from the date of grant.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their associates, in excess
of in aggregate 0.1% of the Shares in issue (based on the date
of grant) and an aggregate value of HK$5,000,000 (based on
the closing price of the Shares at the date of each grant), within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

Details of the principal terms of the 2012 Scheme are disclosed
under the heading “Share Option Scheme” in the Directors’
report.

No options were exercised, granted or cancelled during 2021
and 2020. No share option was outstanding as at 31 December
2021 and 2020.

FEMBRRM T @®

BE—F-——F+-_A=1—HIFE

35. BB AESTEI(E)

T FFERFERLBRAEEERZ
22 B0 1R (H HR D IA K% DN o8 AN 6% (B B 10 55 2 i
ZEBBEMR - ZFHETHEMN228ER
RETRREAEEERFELERZAKHE
EAXRERARIZEEREERES -

BT —F5r8 BREZTEERES
EE  TREROREHBENEBIAEA
BERABZBROKTE  (MRERRHA
R AEZEXRAEBIMEARERMAERZ
Bedn U E ¢ KGR R B 82 B An E
E=FzRmE BH_FT—_F5t8l 2%
BRAERBERBERENIBETZRE - B
RE-—RIAREEEEEEEE A S
BIETTRE - EEEAIER TR BER G
B R 105 -

AARFRESE  ZRTHRABRETEZRENX
TR E s BMBEALEDERE  BREB
SIEITEE 2 EEPE o SN - FEEM[I2
18 A AR A A A A B 3 B A% R sk (R 98 3 3k
WITESRAMESHEA TR L BIREG
BTN AERBIB0.1% (RFZH B 85t
B) R 4E{EFEB5,000,0005 T (R B A& EF
HRBZBRHETENEHERBRERS
FESARETB SR ©
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36. HOLDING COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF
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36. AZE-—F+A=1+—HE£ER

FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 AR Z B AR R R
2021 2020
—B-—F —TEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Wz FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - HEKEHE 21 46
Interests in subsidiaries NN 37 120,456 120,456
Amounts due from subsidiaries R NGIE 12,160,942 12,181,440
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 12,281,419 12,301,942
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries g Ay NGIE QL] 2,942,950 1,627,434
Deposits, prepayments and e BNFRIEREM
other receivables FEU FRIA 5,651 7,471
Time deposits with original maturity RIF BB =EA 2
over three months EHTF R 1,063,551 584,990
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReESEY 844,762 1,970,649
Total current assets RBEEHLE 4,856,914 4,190,544
Total assets EEHAE 17,138,333 16,492,486
Current liabilities REEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN IENGIEEE 271,587 241,554
Other payables and accruals Hu eI R EETE B 30,941 29,778
Total current liabilities REEERE 302,528 271,332
Net current assets REEEFE 4,554,386 3,919,212
Net assets EEFE 16,835,805 16,221,154
EQUITY xR
Share capital [N 33 15,156,959 15,156,959
Reserves s 34(c) 1,678,846 1,064,195
Total equity RRAE 16,835,805 16,221,154

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2022 and was

signed on its behalf:

Ding Rucai
Tk
Director

EF

RRRZHBRRKER T _—_F=A=
THERESEHAELTKREE

Wang Dongming
ILH
Director

EFE
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37. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
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37. RIS B A Rz =

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2021 are

as follows:

Name

£

Xingwu"

e

Jinjiazhuang"

A

k>
S

Shanxi Fushan Resources Group
Company Limited"*

WmEILEREEBR AR

Jinshan"

eIl

Liulin Luenshan Coking Company
Limited (“Luenshan”)"*

HIARERBIL L BIR AR (L))

Place of incorporation

and kind of legal entity place of operations

MR R
HEERRER

PRC, limited liability
company*

hE - AR

PRC, limited liability
company*

E - AR

PRC, limited liability
company*

E - AR

PRC, limited liability
company-

E - BRAAN

PRC, limited liability
company*

HE - BRAR)
PRC, limited liability

company®

E - BRAAS

FEMBRAR
ZEBNT
Particulars of
Principal activities and issued share capital/
registered capital
BRTRE/
TEEBREENE SMERFEE
Mining, production and RMB250,000,000
sales of coal in the PRC
NGETTEE AR¥250,000,0007
EERHERK
Mining, production and RMB374,000,000
sales of coal in the PRC
NGETTEE AR ¥374,000,0007
EERHERK
Mining, production and RMB800,000,000
sales of coal in the PRC
NGETESE AR #800,000,0007
EERHERK
Development and utilisation ~ RMB10,000,000
of energy resources
and safety operation
management and domestic
corporate management
RRERRENARZE2  AR¥10,000,0007T
EEEER  NREAME
BB
Investment holding, RMB600,000,000
production and sales of
coal products in the PRC
R B SR AR - AR #600,000,0007
EERHERER
Production and sales of RMB330,000,000
coal products in the PRC
RPEREEER AR ¥330,000,0007

HERER

— = —

=

—®+=ZA=+—~”

Effective interest held

by the Group
EEfGERER

2021 2020
“B--f T ZF
88% 88%
65% 65%
95% 95%
100% 100%
67% 67%
44% 44%
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37. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

=L

Fu Hui Investments Limited

REREZRERAA

Fu Hui Jewellery Goldsmith

Company Limited

REREETERAH

Thechoice Finance (HK) Limited"
BE(EB)BRLA
Worldman Industrial (HK) Limited"
EREEB)BRLA
Gumpert Industries (HK) Limited"
REEGE)ERAA
Fushan Resources Group
Management Limited
BLEREEEEERAR
Shougang Resources (Hong Kong)
Limited"
BERERER)BRAR

Jade Green Investments Holding
Limited

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal entity
SRMEILER
EEERER

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&t ARRA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&t ARRA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
&t ARLA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
&t ARLA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
&t ARLA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
&R BRAT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
&t ARLA

BV, limited liability
company

FEMBRRM T @®

BE—F-——F+-_A=1—HIFE

Principal activities and
place of operations

TEXRRERY

Administration and
investment vehicle of
the Group in Hong Kong
REBRTEBERUERRK
REEHR

Investment vehicle of
the Group in Hong Kong

RERRASERHERE
EY)

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REA NS REERR

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REA NS REERR

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REA NS REERR

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
RER NS RERR

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REANSRERR

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

RERLAE  ARAR NEARZRAER

Particulars of

issued share capital/
registered capital
BRTRE/
dMERFHE

HK$100
(100 ordinary shares)

10078 7T (£33 1008)
HK$2,000,000

(2,000,000

ordinary shares)
2,000,000 7T

(%3#M%2,000,0008)
HK$1 (1 ordinary share)
1BT(EBRIR)
HK$1 (1 ordinary share)
1BT(EBRIR)
HK$1 (1 ordinary share)
1BT(EBRIR)
HK$1 (1 ordinary share)
1ET(EBRIR)
HK$1 (1 ordinary share)
1BT(EBRIR)
US$1 (1 ordinary share)

X (EBR1R)

37. R~ 7z R ()

Effective interest held

by the Group
AEEMGERER
2021 2020
“E--f CZTCTHE
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
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37. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. RMIB AR 2 % ()

Particulars of
Place of incorporation  Principal activities and issued share capital/ Effective interest held
Name and kind of legal entity place of operations registered capital by the Group
SRMEILER BRTRE/
£ EEERER TEXBREXLE dMERFHE AEEMGERER
2021 2020
“E--f CZTCTHE
Thechoice Finance Limited" BV, limited liability Investment holding in US$1 (1 ordinary share) 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
RBRAES  ARLRA RNEBREREAZR 1ET(EBRIKR)
Worldman Industrial Limited" BV, limited liability Investment holding in US$1 (1 ordinary share) 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
RBRAES  ARLRA REBRERAZR 1ET(EBRIKR)
Gumpert Industries Limited" BV, limited liability Investment holding in US$1 (1 ordinary share) 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
RBRAMS  ARLRA REBREREAZR 1ET(EBRIKR)
Fushan Energy Group Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding in US$1 (1 ordinary share) 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
Bl REBARAR RERAES  ARAR NEBNFRELR 1ET(EBRIR)
Maxease Limited BV, limited liability Investment vehicle in US$1 (1 ordinary share) 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
RERAEE  ARAR REBUFRERK 1ET(EBRIK)
True Plus Limited BV, limited liability Investment holding in US$1 (1 ordinary share) 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
KERAES ARAR REBRERAER 1ET(EBRIK)
Benefit Rich Limited Samoa, limited liability Investment holding in US$1 (1 ordinary share) 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
#EARAH BETZ ARAF REBREREEMR 1ETERRIKR)

*

only.

These companies are indirectly held by the Company.
The English translation is unofficial and for identification purpose

i Registered as sino-foreign entity joint ventures under PRC Law.
- Registered as wholly foreign-owned enterprises under PRC Law.
L Registered as equity joint venture under PRC Law.

FZERNRBHARRIEERSAE
RXERAIEETT - EHEH -

REFBEIERAMAPIAGERT
BRETEEEEAMAIEBELE -
RETEEREMRAERR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

38. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The following table lists out the information relating to
subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-controlling
interest (“NCI"). The summarised financial information
presented below represents the amounts before any inter-
company elimination.

2021

NCI percentage FEIE IR AR LE A

As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H
Current assets MENEE
Non-current assets EMEEE
Current liabilities mEaE
Non-current liabilities EMBEE

Net assets BEFE

TR s AR (E

Carrying amount of NCI

For the year ended 31 December BZ+_-A=+—H

LEE
Revenue Wz
Profit for the year FEH A
Total comprehensive income iﬁﬂﬁl mieRR

BT IR S A
IEAS T IR A A 2R ALS

Profit allocated to NCI
Dividend paid to NCI

Cash flows from operating activities && 2K 2HERE
Cash flows from investing activities ¥ B EE 2B & RE
Cash flows from financing activities BB EE 2 ERE

FEMBRRM T @®

BE—F-——F+-_A=1—HIFE

38. IR ER
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TRINTERAEBERRERGFIE R ER
([PEEB ) Z2MBARZER - TXZ2
SIZBMBERBERETMNARMEHENS

B e

——_

—_——

Jinjiazhuang
xR
HK$°000
FET

35%

1,137,430
5,123,616
(1,368,037)

(465,443)
4,427,566
891,483

3,179,924

1,064,405

1,148,273
374,243
(28,173)

528,676
(158,557)
(115,913)

Xingwu
g
HK$°000
FET

12.25%

2,000,527
4,839,001
(1,724,571)

(672,894)
4,442,063
649,358

2,932,531
842,174
920,017

96,907

790,612
(268,676)
(180,000)

Zhaiyadi
RER
HK$°000
FET

5%

2,868,849
4,199,413
(1,858,866)

(439,562)
4,769,834
64,440

3,788,548
1,118,362
1,216,508
54,391
(131,487)

1,456,976
(33,478)
(672,962)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

38. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

2020

NCI percentage FEIE IR AR LL A
As at 31 December R+—_A=+—H
Current assets MENEE
Non-current assets EMEEE
Current liabilities mEaE
Non-current liabilities EMBEE

Net assets BEFE

Carrying amount of NCl FEIERERREE

For the year ended 31 December #HZ+_-_A=+—H

IEFE
Revenue Wz
Profit for the year FEH A
Total comprehensive income EHENRETE
Profit allocated to NCI DT IR M A
Dividend paid to NCI KA FIEIEAR RS IR B

Cash flows from operating activities &% %75 2 %)
Cash flows from investing activities & & %2R &
Cash flows from financing activities B & %252 H &M

=
tL,E
Ng=—1
LE
=
=28

FEMBRRM T @®

BE—F-——F+-_A=1—HIFE

38. JE{Z R ()

g Jang 222
Jinjiazhuang Xingwu Zhaiyadi
SR A 4 RER
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK3$°000
T T T
35% 12.25% 5%
501,621 940,784 1,933,379
5,132,563 4,703,232 4,189,073
(1,525,871) (1,457,711) (1,546,706)
(453,342) (664,259) (458,960)
3,654,971 3,522,046 4,116,786
537,168 539,980 136,687
1,580,033 1,620,726 2,722,922
358,419 216,352 657,532
512,442 375,667 835,994
54,304 24,918 32,105
(48,449) (173,100) (31,687)
(377,259) 426,686 526,740
416,531 (232,840) (229,886)
(34,326) (470,044) (571,146)

There is a material NCI of 56% (2020: 56%) amounting to
HK$86,771,000 (2020: HK$86,718,000) in Luenshan during the
year. The summarised financial information for Luenshan is not
presented above as Luenshan is not yet to commence operations
and its cash flows and profit or loss items are minimal to the
Group. Luenshan had non-current assets of HK$274,001,000
(2020: HK$267,041,000) and net assets of HK$238,553,000
(2020: HK$238,402,000) as of 31 December 2021.

RER - BELES A886,771,000/8 T(=
%—i@i : 86,718,000/ 70) 256% (=%
TF : 56%) B RIEEMRBER o B
ﬁqﬂ%ﬁﬁ%&ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%&iﬁﬁlﬁa HARE
EAM/N  ABL 2 HBEERBER
EREXZESN RZZBEZ—F+ZRA=+
B \L 2 3ERB)EE /274,001,000
BIL(ZZT T4 : 267,041,000 7T)
SFEE /238,553,000 T (T T F ¢
238,402,000/ 7T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

38. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

There is a material NCI of 33% (2020: 33%) amounting to
HK$156,083,000 (2020: HK$153,351,000) in Jinshan during
the year. The summarised financial information for Jinshan
is not presented above as Jinshan commenced commercial
operations in 2019 and its cash flows and profit or loss items
are insignificant to the Group. Jinshan had non-current assets

T FFH HABRLERKEEER2[ 305

FEMBRRM T @®

BE—_E-_—F+_A=1—HIFE

38. JE{Z R ()

RER - @U#EE AE156,083,0008 T
(ZZE=-F4 : 153,351,000/ 7T) Z33% (=
ETF 33%) 2 EARETERERE - AR
TUR-_ZE-NFRHAPELERERS
//|LE&T§’\IEEET$E. kTE}E P)lig
SLUZHBEERBMERERLEXES - B

of HK$590,564,000 (2020: HK$575,248,000) and net assets of —E-—F+-_A=+—H  £LZ¥FER

HK$511,998,000 (2020: HK$498,187,000) as of 31 December

& E /590,564,000 T (Z B -FF :

2021, 575,248, ooo;‘%ﬁ) JFAE 511,998,000
ABIL(ZZZTF : 498,187,000 7T) °
No dividend was paid by Jinshan and Luenshan to the NCI RBE-ZE-_—FR-_ZT_ZFF+-_HA=+
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. —HIEFER - oL R ILBEE R IEIE AR
m RS -
39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 39. EARAE
2021 2020
—E-— —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Contracted for: BT SIEETA
— Acquisition of property, plant and -BAWE - BERE
equipment 261,906 254,210
— Exploration and design fees for - FIBEETT 2 ERIRIER 2
a potential mining project BEREZTER 8,826 8,602
270,732 262,812




306 SHOUGANG FUSHAN RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the following transactions for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 were carried out with related parties:

@)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
sold clean coking coal amounted to HK$2,845,122,000
(2020: HK$1,453,909,000) to Shougang Group Co., Ltd.,
being Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited (“Shougang
Holding”)'s ultimate holding company, and its group
companies (collectively referred to as the “Shougang
Group”). Shougang Holding is a substantial shareholder
of Shoucheng Holdings Limited (“Shoucheng Holdings").
Shoucheng Holdings is a substantial shareholder of the
Company. As at 31 December 2021, amount due from
the Shougang Group was HK$810,200,000 (2020:
HK$649,330,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
purchased raw materials amounted to HK$4,390,000 from
Shougang Group (2020: HK$2,488,000). Furthermore,
the Group incurred construction fees amounted to
HK$12,435,000 (2020: HK$2,885,000) and paid no
geology investigation fee (2020: HK$2,821,000) to
Shougang Group. As at 31 December 2021, amount
due to the Shougang Group was HK$9,974,000 (2020:
HK$7,053,000).

FEMBRRM T @®

BE—

—— A=+ —AILFE

40. BEEA LR S

BEAMBRREMEH S A WEN -

S

:?:*i&_Y_yﬁ'i— A=t+—H1t
FREEBBMATETZZZOT ¢

@)

HE—_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE
N AEEREREEER AR (E M
IR (BE)BR AR (EHIZER]) 2 &

BRIEBR AR REEEAR (HEEH
%lDHj&%%‘ik%z,msn22,0005%71
—ZT T4 :1,453,909,000/87T) °
BIMER A ERIERER QA (BT
Rz EERE - BERIERAERRRZ
FERR RZZTZ—F+ZA=*+—
H - EWEHSEIEA810,200,000
BIT(ZEZZFF : 649,330,000/8
JL) °

HE-_Z-_—4F+=-_A=+—81t
FER AEERNERNEBKE
M#4,390,0008 T(Z T =_FF :
2,488,000/ 7T) ° koh - REBEEZE
SBF12,435,0008 0 (T -FF
2,885,000 7o) M A £ ) By 4 62 [ S A+
WEHEE(ZFT_FF : 2,821,000/
L) R-_E-—F+-_F=+—8"
FEM NS B FRIAA9,974,000/8 L (=
T T4 : 7,053,000/87T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-F

FEMBRRM T @®

——F+A=+—HItFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)  40. BB A X 5 (&)

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the (iy HEZZ-—F+-_A=T—HIEFE
Group made rental payment of HK$3,600,000 (2020: W AR E A E R — Fﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%
HK$3,756,000) to a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Al M4 5 3,600, OOO/%TE(_ =
Holding. As at 31 December 2021, there were no lease T4 1 3,756,000/7L) c RZEZ—4F
liabilities with the subsidiary of Shougang Holding (2020: TZA=+—H - AEHERHEL
nil). MEAEERECZSZZTF - &) -

(iv) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group paid vy B2 _FT_—F+-_A=+—HI#F
management and consultancy fees of HK$3,000,000 (2020: EA - AEBEREMERINEER
HK$3,000,000) to Shougang Holding. FEf#3,000,0008 (= =%

3,000,000/ 7T) °

v REA BNEZEEEABZB2ER
MTEE14&E§O

—~

(v)  The compensation payable to key management personnel
during the year have been disclosed in note 14.

All the transactions in (i) to (v) were negotiated with related WEWMFRZERSGHUBRBERR S 2 HE
parties in accordance with the agreements governing those B R A TR o
transactions.

The transactions in (iv) to (v) were continuing connected (VEWFPZR S NEHERERS HER

transactions/connected transactions but were exempt from
any disclosure and shareholders’ approval requirements under
the Listing Rules. Except these transactions, none of the above
transactions falls under the definition of connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

5 EZEXZFEHRRIRE EHRB T IAR
BRERRAE - RZERXZI L5
BABETRAUEVLAEREZNRBER S
SFERERS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

41. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

Set out below is an overview of the carrying amount and fair

FEMBRRM T @®

BE—F-——F+-_A=1—HIFE

4. RERE D M BEERAEHRE

TREINAKEMBEVBEERARBZIE

value of financial assets and liabilities held by the Group: HERAFERE :
2021 2020
—E-— —E-EF
HK$000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Financial assets measured at fair value BAFEGFAEMEZEREZ
through other comprehensive income WG EE 638,494 1,082,464
Financial assets measured at amortised cost: 1R AT 8 2 IS EE -
- Deposits and other receivables - ke RE M EWGRIA 220,239 162,011
858,733 1,244,475
Current assets RBEE
Financial assets measured at amortised cost: IR SR ARET 8 2 B & E -
— Trade receivables - B E S RIA 883,949 666,382
= Bills receivables - EREE 2,260,302 1,382,762
— Deposits and other receivables - e RE M EWGIE 250,918 209,934
— Other financial assets - EmB g EE 116,250 S
- Pledged bank deposits - BEEHIRITER 357,707 290,298
— Time deposit with original maturity over -FEiERHBR=EAZ
three months BT 2,015,677 656,500
- Cash and cash equivalents -ReEMRESEFEY 4,410,209 3,405,615
10,295,012 6,611,491
Total #aza 11,153,745 7,855,966
Current liabilities REBEE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost: 1R AT E 2 BB (E -
- Trade and bills payables -ENESERARENEE 607,247 592,618
— Lease liabilities -HEAaRE 7,957 5,721
- Other financial liability - Hih B aE 180,817 186,300
— Other payables and accruals - Hin N RIERESEA 996,519 993,023
- Amounts due to non-controlling interests - R B A R AR AE 25
of subsidiaries FIE 156,999 52,778
1,949,539 1,830,440
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost: X # sk Azt 2 BB &
— Lease liabilities -HHEaE 18,073 19,317
Total L] 1,967,612 1,849,757
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The financial information contained in this five-year financial
summary does not constitute the Company’s statutory annual
consolidated financial statements for any of the financial years ended
31 December 2021, 2020, 2019, 2018 and 2017 but is derived
from those published audited consolidated financial statements
and restated upon the adoption of the new or amended standards
and interpretations as appropriate, is set out below. Further
information relating to these statutory financial statements required
to be disclosed in accordance with section 436 of the Companies
Ordinance is as follows:

The Company has delivered the consolidated financial statements
for all four years ended 31 December 2020 to the Registrar of
Companies as required by section 662(3) of, and Part 3 of Schedule
6 to, the Companies Ordinance and will deliver the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 in due
course.

The Company’s auditor has reported on these consolidated financial
statements for all five years. The auditor’s reports were unqualified,;
did not include a reference to any matters to which the auditor drew
attention by way of emphasis without qualifying its reports; and did
not contain a statement under either sections 406(2), 407(2) or (3) of
the Companies Ordinance.

LFMBRE

ARFEYBREMBEHEEE_ZS=-_—F - =%
ZEF - ZE-NEF - ZE-N\EFERZZT—LF
TZA=T—HLEFENMBEERLTERER
AZEEENEEEERFREYB®RE  BIRE
ZEO T 2 KBZEEVBME - WRNERAH
RIS ASRT R R B (E A ES - BEBER
FHED) FAIE AR ZE ATV B REAFENE
fhERINT

ARBERBCA RGN F662(3) kL HIKR6FE3
BEAREMRERERRERBE_T_FTF+_H
Tt ALFEEHMOERNGEAMBRS - I
BREERHERRBE TS -_—F+=-_A=1+—
HIEFEREGRE MEHRE

RABNZEMERZAFENRATERERIE
RipeE - ZBMBRETERBER - MERLZ
HEETRZERESERERNBE R TUAEAN S
NEBBEBATEEMEMEE - WIEHIIR
R AHERIY F406(2) ~ 407(2)3(3)E1EH BIF

yl[o

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B —EZ2-TF —ZT-hhF ZE-NF ZT—LtF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Results ¥E
Revenue U= 7,075,818 3,996,951 3,869,308 3,686,176 3,471,922
Profit attributable to KABEA AEM
owners of the Company il 2,538,495 1,080,041 1,140,413 1,100,488 1,080,649
Assets and liabilities EENERE
Total assets BERE 24,779,977 21,433,646 21,472,710 21,251,042 21,694,645
Total liabilities BERE (5,631,759) (4,142,576) (4,426,398) (4,475,236) (4,318,962)
Net assets BEEFE 19,148,218 17,291,070 17,046,312 16,775,806 17,375,683
Non-controlling interests IEPE R (1,848,135) (1,453,904) (1,364,732) (1,391,690) (1,440,871)
Equity attributable to RNAEHEE AEN
owners of the Company ek 17,300,083 15,837,166 15,681,580 15,384,116 15,934,812
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GLOSSARY

In this annual report, the following expressions shall have the
following meanings unless the context indicates otherwise.

AGM 2021

AGM 2022

Articles

ASX

Board

CG Code

Chairman

Companies Ordinance

Company

controlling shareholder

Directors

Executive Committee

Executive Director(s)

the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 30 June 2021

The forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company

The articles of association of the
Company

Stock Code on the Australian
Securities Exchange Limited

the board of Directors of the
Company

the Corporate Governance Code
(version up to 31 December 2021)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules

the chairman of the Board

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

Shougang Fushan Resources Group
Limited (SEHK: 639)

has the meaning ascribed to it
under the Listing Rules

the directors of the Company

the executive committee of the
Board

the executive director(s) of the
Company

R e O — B

A 52

EARFEHRA - BXESBMAEN - THRAZEREE

AT -
T —FRRBF
&

—E - _FREBAF

@
=]

el

ASX

>
HE
i
)
<}

FERR AR

ARRBERZTEZ—FRX
A=1tTBHRTzZBRRBF
7N

ARRAD S RIT 2 BRA
FRE

EN/NS =g E XL
BNBELHRZMER QA
B 55

ZAUNCIF- 5

b AR BB 8% 1 PO P A
CEEARTAHEEZE-Z
—F+ZA=+—HBmRAE)
EEEER

BEED 286225 1 AR
BMELEREERBRA
AJ(SEHK: 639)

BB ETRAET 2 ®E

RRAES

ARAMITRES

ARRRTES



GLOSSARY (continued)

Funde Sino Life

GM 2021

Group

Independent Non-executive

Director(s)

Listing Rules

Nomination Committee

Non-executive Director(s)

Remuneration Committee

SEHK

SFO

Funde Sino Life Insurance Co., Ltd.,
a substantial shareholder of the
Company

a general meeting of the Company
held on 30 June 2021 in relation
to, among others, the entering
into of the 2021 master sales and
purchase agreement between the
Company and Shougang Group to
regulate the possible continuing
connected transactions between
the Group and Shougang Group
and/or its associates for the
period commencing from the date
becoming a connected person
of the Company and ending
on 31 December 2023 (both
days inclusive), and the relevant
proposed caps

the Company and its subsidiaries

the independent non-executive
director(s) of the Company

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

the nomination committee of the
Board

the non-executive director(s) of the
Company

the remuneration committee of
the Board

Stock Code on the Stock Exchange
Securities and Futures Ordinance

(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

A= (E)

ZA e

BIUFNTES

SEHK

&7 MR Rl

“TOFFH ERBELEREEAERIE 311

ABRBBHH
CRARZERE

=4
[==]
E

D)?ﬂ?

KRR ZEZ—FKA
= THAREHEEFE
B)ANE HEHEERT L
TR —FREBEHE
NREAEEETHEE
K,/ SREBEARK AL
NAHEALTHEE_"F
—=F+=ZA=+—81t
HE(BEaREmMA) 8
ETZEHEBERBER S ME
AR LR

ARE) R EM B R A
ZA/N

AIBMIFITER

ii*
HP)Q

freg 7 LR Al
ZAYNCIE L2 R
ARRFFMITES

ARRFMEES

Bt 52 FTAR ) AU 55%

&7 KRGO (B A A

$£571%)
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GLOSSARY (continued)

Share(s)

Shoucheng Holdings

Shougang Group

Shougang Holding

SSE

Stock Exchange

substantial shareholder

the year under review

ordinary share(s) of the Company

Shoucheng Holdings Limited
(SEHK: 697), a substantial
shareholder of the Company

Shougang Group Co., Ltd., the
holding company of Shougang
Holding

Shougang Holding (Hong Kong)
Limited, a substantial shareholder
of Shoucheng Holdings and a
substantial shareholder of the
Company since 27 January 2022

stock code on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

has the meaning ascribed to it
under the Listing Rules

for the year ended 31 December
2021

Ao, L
7 52 (48)
NI ) AR 2 E B
ERE2d HREERAER QD F(SEHK:
697)  AXRREBHRE
HilEE HilEBERAR  AH
3 $52 {% 2 ¥ % 2 )
EEiEedl HIZER(EE)BRA
Al BERERZETER
BrkEZZE-_—F—HF=
++HHBAEARGZEE
&2
SSE LEBBEAERZRRMORSE
B 22 B BERBAERSIMBMR AT
FERR BB EMRAETZRE
CEEFEE HE2_ZT-_—%+=-A=

+—HIEFE
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